é, PUBLIC MEETING
i OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Thomas Haney Secondary School
Rotunda
23000-116 Avenue

Date: Wednesday, April 30, 2025 Maple Ridge BC V2X 0T8

Time: 6:00pm

"Making mistakes simply means you are learning faster.” — Weston H. Agor

AGENDA
A. OPENING PROCEDURES ITEM 1
1. Territory Acknowledgement
2. Call to Order
3. Correspondence
4, Approval of Agenda
5. Invitation for Public Input to matters on the Agenda - Members of the public can provide input
on decision items on the public meeting Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30pm on
April 30, 2025. The email subject line should read: INPUT regarding Decision Item. All public input received
will be shared with trustees electronically. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes.
6. Approval of Minutes
B. DELEGATIONS - the Board will receive delegations on any subject pertinent to Board business provided the item has been

placed on the agenda by the Agenda Preparation Committee. Time limits for individual delegations will be established to allow all
registered delegations to present within the time limit for this item. The Board will ordinarily receive for information the item
presented and may take action after due deliberation. This agenda item has a time limit of 20 minutes including questions; extension
is at the discretion of the Board.

C. PRESENTATIONS - Individuals and groups invited by the Board to make presentations on any subject pertinent to Board
business. Time limits for individual presentations will be established to allow all speakers to present within the time limit for this
item. This agenda item has a time limit of 20 minutes including questions; extension is at the discretion of the Board.

1. Design Plans for Prefabricated Additions to ITEM 2

Golden Ears Elementary and Blue Mountain Elementary

D. DEFERRED ITEMS

E. DECISION ITEMS

1. Chairperson
2. Superintendent of Schools

a) Naming of Environmental School ITEM 3
3. Secretary Treasurer

a) 2025/26 Preliminary Budget Changes and Annual Budget Bylaw ITEM 4
4, Board Committee Reports

a) Finance

b) Facilities Planning

C) Board Policy Development

d) Education Advisory

e) Indigenous Education Community Gathering

f) Accessibility Advisory

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 1


mailto:board@sd42.ca

5.

Indigenous Education Council

INFORMATION ITEMS

1.

AW

5.

Chairperson

a) Chairperson’s Update ITEM 5
b) Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups ITEM 6
Superintendent of Schools

a) Superintendent’s Update ITEM 7

Secretary Treasurer
Board Committee Reports

a) Finance

b) Facilities Planning

C) Board Policy Development

d) Education Advisory

e) Indigenous Education Community Gathering
f) Accessibility Advisory

Indigenous Education Council

TRUSTEE MOTIONS AND NOTICES OF MOTIONS

TRUSTEE REPORTS

QUESTION PERIOD ITEM 8

Question period will be restricted to questions only — statements and debate will not be permitted. Questions, with the
exception of Trustee questions, will be limited to one question per person. Members of the public can submit questions
for the board by emailing them to board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30 pm on April 30, 2025. The email subject line
should read: QUESTION PERIOD. All questions received before the start of the question period will be answered in the

order they are received. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes, extension is at the discretion of the board.

OTHER BUSINESS

1.

Public Disclosure of Closed Meeting Business ITEM 9

ADJOURNMENT

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 2


mailto:board@sd42.ca

’) Public Board Meeting
A April 30, 2025
School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item #1

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Opening Procedures

1. TERRITORY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to acknowledge that this meeting is taking place on the shared
traditional and unceded territories of Katzie First Nation and Kwantlen First Nation. We
welcome and recognize all First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families in our
schools and community. We welcome and recognize the many different cultures that
are represented in our schools and community.

2. CALL TO ORDER
3. CORRESPONDENCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Recommendation:

THAT the Agenda be approved as presented.

5. INVITATION FOR PUBLIC INPUT TO MATTERS ON THE AGENDA

Members of the public can provide input on decision items on the public meeting
Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30 p.m. on April 30, 2025. The
email subject line should read: INPUT regarding Decision Item. All public input received
will be shared with trustees electronically. This agenda item has a time limit of 10
minutes.

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Recommendation:

THAT the Minutes of the April 16, 2025 Public Board meeting be approved as
presented.

(Attachment A)

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 3


mailto:board@sd42.ca

ATTACHMENT A

School District 42 ™ MINUTES OF THE

PUBLIC BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING
Wednesday, April 16, 2025 (6:00 PM)
Boardroom, District Education Office

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chairperson - Elaine Yamamoto Superintendent - Teresa Downs

Vice Chairperson — Kim Dumore Secretary Treasurer — Richard Rennie

Trustee — Hudson Campbell Assistant Secretary Treasurer - Iris Mo

Trustee - Gabriel Liosis Senior Manager, Communications - Irena Pochop
Trustee - Mike Murray Executive Coordinator — Rebecca Lyle

Trustee - Pascale Shaw
Trustee - Katie Sullivan

ABSENT:
Deputy Superintendent — Cheryl Schwarz

GUEST:
Dale Hardy, volunteer delegate, New Westminster & District Labour Council
Louie Girotto, Director, Facilities

A. OPENING PROCEDURES

1. Territory Acknowledgement

The Chairperson acknowledged that this meeting is taking place on the shared traditional and
unceded territories of Katzie First Nation and Kwantlen First Nation. The Chairperson welcomed and
recognized all First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families in our schools and community.
The Chairperson welcomed and recognized the many different cultures that are represented in our
schools and community.

2. Call to Order
The Chairperson called the Public Board meeting to order at 6:01pm.
The Chairperson welcomed and thanked everyone for attending.

3. Correspondence

e Letter to Board Chair from Min. Herbert (BC Summer and Winter Games)

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the correspondence, for information.
CARRIED

4. Approval of Agenda

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Agenda be approved as presented.
CARRIED

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 4



5. Invitation for Public Input to matters on the Agenda

The Chairperson advised that members of the public were able to provide input on decision items
on the Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30pm on April 16, 2025.

No public input was received.

6. Approval of Minutes

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Minutes of the March 5, 2025, Public Board Meeting be approved as presented.
CARRIED

B. DELEGATIONS

1. 2025 National Day of Mourning

A volunteer delegate with the New Westminster & District Labour Council (NWDLC), Dale Hardy,
recognized April 28, 2025, as the National Day of Mourning for workers killed or injured on the job.

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board receive for information the presentation on the 2025 National Day of Mourning.
CARRIED

C. PRESENTATIONS

Proposed Preliminary Budget for 2025/26

The Secretary Treasurer and Superintendent presented the Proposed Preliminary Budget for
2025/26 with highlights on the budget process and timeline, student enrolment and staffing trends,
funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, base operating budget projections, proposed
budget changes, and budget consultation.

Discussion ensued on the Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26.

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board receive the Proposed Preliminary Budget for 2025/26 for information and initiation
of the public consultation process.

CARRIED

D. DEFERRED ITEMS
E. DECISION ITEMS

1. Chairperson
2. Superintendent of Schools
3. Secretary Treasurer

a) Capital Plan Bylaw for 2025/26

The Secretary Treasurer reported that in order to access funding for the capital projects included in
the Ministry Response Letter and in accordance with the Ministry of Education and Child Care
procedures regarding capital bylaws, the Board must adopt a single Capital Bylaw.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 5


mailto:board@sd42.ca

Moved/Seconded
(1) THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD42-01 be given three (3) readings at this

meeting. (vote must be unanimous)
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Moved/Seconded
(2) THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD42-01 be given first reading.
CARRIED

Moved/Seconded
(2) THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD42-01 be given a second reading.
CARRIED

Moved/Seconded

(2) THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD42-01 be given a third reading, passed and
adopted on this 16t day of April 2025.

CARRIED

a) Annual Facilities Grant Spending Plan for 2025/26

The Secretary Treasurer reported that school districts must provide the Ministry of Education and
Child Care with a 2025/26 Annual Facility Grant (AFG) Spending Plan that includes a list of all AFG
projects and expenditures to be undertaken from April 1, 2025, to March 31, 2026. The Director,
Facilities, provided an overview of how the funds may be spent as noted in the memorandum.

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board approve the Annual Facility Grant Spending Plan for 2025/26 and authorize the
Secretary Treasurer to submit it to the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

CARRIED

4. Board Committee Reports
a) Finance
b) Facilities Planning

c) Board Policy Development

i Policies and Bylaw for Approval

The Secretary Treasurer reported that no feedback was received during the consultation process for
policies 4204: Accumulated Surplus, 5400: Student Transportation Provided by the Board, 7230:
Personal Full-Time Leave of Absence, new policy 9550: Process for Raising Concerns, and Bylaw:
Board of Education Appeal Policy and Procedures.

Feedback was received and minor revisions were made to policies 7201: Recruitment and Selection
of District Leadership Personnel, 7610: Compensation Administration for Excluded Employees, and
7810: Performance Evaluation for Excluded Employees.

Feedback was received on policy 6530: Environmental Sustainability and will be returned to the
Committee for discussion before bringing back to the Board for approval.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 6



Moved/Seconded
(1) THAT the Board approve new policy 9550: Process for Raising Concerns, and the following

updated policies:

4204: Accumulated Surplus
5400: Student Transportation Provided by the Board
7201: Recruitment and Selection of District Leadership Personnel
7230: Personal Full-Time Leave of Absence
7610: Compensation Administration for Excluded Employees

e 7810: Performance Evaluation for Excluded Employees
CARRIED

Moved/Seconded

(2) THAT the Board approve Board of Education Appeal Policy and Procedures Bylaw (vote
must be unanimous)
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Moved/Seconded
(3) THAT the Board of Education Appeal Policy and Procedures Bylaw be given first reading.
CARRIED

Moved/Seconded

(4) THAT the Board of Education Appeal Policy and Procedures Bylaw be given a second
reading.

CARRIED

Moved/Seconded

(5) THAT the Board of Education Appeal Policy and Procedures Bylaw be given a third reading,
passed and adopted on this 16" day of April 2025.

CARRIED

d) Education Advisory
e) Indigenous Education Community Gathering
f) Accessibility Advisory

5. Indigenous Education Council

F. INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Chairperson

a) Chairperson’s Update

The Chairperson provided the board with a verbal update on CommunityLINK & Equity of
Opportunity funding advocacy and shared that the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District
receives the lowest per-student funding in the province for Community LINK and Equity of
Opportunity grants combined.

Discussion ensued that the current allocation formula continues to be inequitable across the
province.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 7



Moved/Seconded

THAT the Chairperson, in consultation with the Board, pursue further advocacy efforts for a more
equitable funding model.

CARRIED

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the Chairperson’s Update, for information.
CARRIED

2. Superintendent of Schools

a) Superintendent’s Update

The Superintendent provided the Board with a verbal update on Relief Teachers and also updated
the Board on the Secondary Schedule Public Engagement process that launched on April 14, 2025.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the Superintendent’s Update, for information.
CARRIED

3. Secretary Treasurer

a) Secretary Treasurer’s Update

The Secretary Treasurer provided the Board with an update on the National School Food Program
funding. Secretary Treasurer Rennie shared that the district will receive $211,000 in 2024/25 from the
National School Food Program, which complements Feeding Futures funding. He further explained that
the amount is based on each school’s socioeconomic index and that the spending criteria is similar to
Feeding Futures funding with some exceptions.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the Secretary Treasurer’s Update, for information.

CARRIED
4. Board Committees and Advisory Committee Reports
a) Finance
b) Facilities Planning
c) Board Policy Development

ii. Policies for Consultation

The Secretary Treasurer reported that the Board Policy Development Committee met, reviewed, and
is proposing updates to the following policies outlined in the agenda package: 2400: Board Meeting
Proceedings, 2915: Board Chairperson, Elections, Role and Responsibilities, 2918: Vice-Chairperson,
Elections, Role and Responsibilities, and 7100: Employee Standards of Conduct (new policy). The
Committee is also proposing that policies 7213: Conflict of Interest, and 7220: Dangerous Weapons
be retired on approval of proposed new policy 7100: Employee Standards of Conduct. Input from
education partners and the public is invited from April 17 to noon on May 28, 2025. The Board Policy
Development Committee will review all the input received before the proposed policies are presented
to the Board for approval on June 18, 2025.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 8



Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the following policies for information and continuation of the consultation
process:
e Draft updates to policy 2400: School Board Meeting Proceedings
Draft updates to policy 2915: Board Chairperson, Elections, Role and Responsibilities
Draft updates to policy 2918: Vice-Chairperson, Elections, Role and Responsibilities
Draft new policy 7100: Employee Standards of Conduct
Proposal to retire policy 7213: Conflict of Interest — District Staff
e Proposal to retire policy 7220: Dangerous Weapons
CARRIED

d) Education Advisory

i Receiving Minutes of Meeting

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board receive the Education Advisory Committee minutes for the meeting held on April 9,
2025, for information.

CARRIED

e) Indigenous Education Community Gathering
f) Accessibility Advisory

i Receiving Minutes of Meeting

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board receive the Accessibility Advisory Committee minutes for the meeting held on
February 7, 2025, for information.

CARRIED

5. Indigenous Education Council
G. TRUSTEE MOTIONS AND NOTICES OF MOTIONS
H. TRUSTEE REPORTS
District Parent Advisory Council

Chairperson Yamamoto reported on the March 13, 2025 meeting and highlighted the DPAC awards
night that took place at Garibaldi Secondary school.

I. QUESTION PERIOD

One question was received and answered on the following topics:
e HVAC staffing vacancies, wages, and contractor costs

J. OTHER BUSINESS
K. ADJOURNMENT
Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board adjourn the meeting.
CARRIED

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 9



The Public Board Meeting adjourned at 8:34pm.

Elaine Yamamoto, Chairperson Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 10



’) Public Board Meeting
A April 30, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Item #2
From: Elaine Yamamoto, Chairperson
Topic: Design Plans for Prefabricated Additions to Golden Ears Elementary and

Blue Mountain Elementary

BACKGROUND

The following individuals have prepared a presentation on the Design Plans for Prefabricated
Additions to Golden Ears Elementary and Blue Mountain Elementary:

e Louie Girotto, Director, Facilities, SD42
e James Kao, Principal, DA Architects (external consultant)

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board receive for information the presentation on the Design Plans for
Prefabricated Additions to Golden Ears Elementary and Blue Mountain Elementary.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 11



’) Public Board Meeting
A April 30, 2025
School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item #3

From: Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools
Michael Scarcella, Director of Learning Services
Nicole McKenzie, Principal

Topic: Naming of Environmental School

BACKGROUND

Since its inception in 2011, the school has been known informally as the Environmental
School.

In recent years, members of the school community have expressed a desire for the school to
have a formal name, consistent with other schools in the district.

Beginning in 2022, Principal Nicole McKenzie initiated a collaborative process to explore a new
name for the school. This process has included meaningful engagement with staff, students,
families, and local First Nations to ensure the chosen name reflects both the identity of the
school and its connection to the local community.

This naming process has been conducted in alignment with Policy 6600 - Naming of School
District Facilities (Attachment).

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board of Education approve the school name of ci:tmax¥ Environmental
Community.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 12



ATTACHMENT

25

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

SD 42 POLICY: 6600

NAMING OF SCHOOL DISTRICT FACILITIES

PHILOSOPHY

The Board of Education ("Board”) believes that school district facilities should be named in
reference to historical, geographical or operational characteristics. Consideration will be given
to names that will have significant meaning to students, First Nations, Métis, Inuit, and other
community members.

AUTHORITY

The Board assigns the responsibility for the implementation of this policy to the
Superintendent and authorizes the Superintendent to establish procedures that will guide the
implementation of this policy.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Except where otherwise determined by the Board, new schools or district facilities will be
named in reference to historical, geographical or operational characteristics.

The naming or re-naming of school district facilities should involve a broad-based constituency
consultation and should consider local First Nations, Métis, and Inuit perspectives.

The process of naming a new building will begin as soon as possible after the school site has
been purchased and where construction is scheduled in the Board’s current capital plan.

During the consultation process, the Board will ensure the following are considered:

e Geographical features of the site that contribute to a sense of identity and connection
with the local environment such as the name of a prominent natural feature, historical
landmark, or relevant geographical aspect.

e Indigenous context and history of the region, with respectful engagement with local
Indigenous Elders or other Indigenous representatives.

e Community input gathered through surveys, public forums, or other inclusive methods
to ensure a diverse range of perspectives.

When an existing facility undergoes a major change of use, the Board may consider a name
change for the facility.

An effort will be made to avoid confusion that may be caused by having schools with similar
names.

Naming opportunities when individuals, businesses, organizations, and others provide a
contribution in exchange for naming recognition associated with a school district owned asset
are subject to the Naming Privileges Policy of the Province of British Columbia.

In all cases, the final decision on naming a school district facility will be made by the Board.

APPROVED: June 19, 2019
UPDATED: June 19, 2024

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 13



’) Public Board Meeting
A April 30, 2025
School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item #4

From: Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer

Topic: 2025/26 Preliminary Budget Changes and Annual Budget Bylaw

BACKGROUND

The attached Preliminary Budget 2025/26 (Attachment A) is presented to the Board for
approval. The preliminary budget contains budget balancing proposals developed with
consideration to the feedback received through the budget consultation process.

Following the April 16, 2025, presentation of the Proposed Preliminary Budget for 2025/26,
feedback on the proposed budget was collected through an online survey, the April 22, 2025,
Indigenous Education Community meeting (Katzie First Nation, Kwantlen First Nation, Golden
Ears Métis Society, and Fraser River Indigenous Society), written submissions, and
presentations at the April 23, 2025 Finance Committee of the Whole meeting.

In total, the school district received 54 presentations on the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary
Budget, some of which were accompanied by written submissions. Additionally, 1,211
individuals provided feedback through our online survey, which was open to the public from
April 17, 2025, to April 23, 2025. The feedback received is summarized in the 2025/26
Proposed Preliminary Budget Public Engagement Summary (Attachment B).

BUDGET CHANGES/CLARIFICATIONS

Based on the feedback received, the following budget changes and clarifications have been
incorporated in the 2025/26 Preliminary Budget.

e For Safe and Caring Staffing at Secondary Schools, the proposal was amended to further
propose that $37,383 be allocated on a one-time basis for an additional 2 safe and caring
school teacher staffing blocks (0.286 FTE) from the carryforward of appropriated 2024/25
operating fund surplus for 2025/26 thereby increasing the total blocks from 6 to 8 (page
52).

e For the Extracurricular Elementary Band Program, the proposal was amended to further
propose that $81,689 (0.625 FTE teacher) be allocated from the carryforward of
appropriated 2024/25 operating fund surplus on a one-time basis to support the
extracurricular elementary band program for the 2025/26 school year (page 54).

e For Indigenous Education, the Indigenous support worker staffing is restored to 21 to
maintain the 2024/25 allocation, and the pilot project of 2 FTE Indigenous child and youth
care workers is changed to be funded from 2024/25 carryforward into 2025/26 (page 42).

e For Education Assistant Staffing, clarification was added that the district will continue to
plan and adjust supports for kindergarten classrooms each year based on the needs of
incoming students (page 55).

e For Feeding Futures School Food Programs staffing, clarification was added that the 6.43
FTE of CYCW time added in 2023/24 and continued in 2024/25 was for the top up of hours
at some elementary schools specifically to assist with school food programs and that the
6.29 FTE cafeteria assistant staffing for 2025/26 will support food programming across all
elementary schools (page 72).

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 14



ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW

The attached Annual Budget Bylaw for 2025/26 was prepared in accordance with Public Sector
Accounting Standards and incorporates the budget balancing proposals as outlined in the
Preliminary Budget 2025/26 for the operating, special purpose and capital funds.
(Attachment C)

The major components of the special purpose fund budget are the Classroom Enhancement,
Learning Improvement, Annual Facilities Grant, Feeding Futures School Food Programs,
CommunityLINK, Early Learning Programs and Projects, and School Generated Funds
(Schedules 3 and 3A).

The capital fund budget is comprised of estimates for Local Capital revenue and expense,
amortization of deferred capital revenue, amortization of capital assets and annual
expenditures related to Board approved capital bylaw projects, which include the capital
portion of the Annual Facilities Grant (Statement 4 and Schedule 4).

As shown on Statement 2 and Schedule 2 of the budget bylaw, a balanced operating budget
is projected. The capital fund deficit is a result of local capital spending and amortization
expense, and budgeted capital assets purchased from operating and special purpose funds
exceeding the amortization of deferred capital revenue plus budgeted local capital revenue
(Schedule 4). This type of deficit is permitted under the Accounting Practices Order of the
Ministry of Education and Child Care.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. THAT the Board approve the following preliminary budget changes for 2025/26
for implementation:

a. the 4.13 FTE of temporary education assistant staffing for kindergarten
transition be discontinued for ongoing budget savings of $234,888 and in
favour of utilizing full-time EA positions to support students requiring
ongoing assistance, and

b. the ongoing instructional staffing bank be reduced by $1,004,265 for a
budget saving and structural deficit reduction.

2. THAT the Board approve the following:

a. the appropriation of $119,072 of 2024 /25 operating surplus to assist with
funding the 2024 /25 operating budget;

b. the transfer of $1,058,185 from the Operating Fund to the Local Capital fund
for the following purposes: childcare capital ($62,750), IT capital plan
($851,039), facilities equipment and vehicles ($144,396); and

c. that any additional available operating surplus from 2024/25 be transferred
to the Local Capital fund and allocated as follows:

1. First, to top up the contingency reserve held in local capital to 1.25% of
budgeted operating expenses for 2025/26 (an increase of $0.58M);

2. Second, to increase the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan by up
to $0.53M;

3. Third, to increase new temporary classrooms by up to $0.84M;
4. Finally, any remaining available operating surplus be allocated as follows:
e 50% to the IT capital plan,

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 15



e 259 to other facilities renewal, and

e 259% as a further contribution to the facilities equipment and vehicle
capital plan;

AND FURTHER THAT the Board approve the preliminary budget changes for
2025/26 as outlined in the Preliminary Budget 2025/26 for implementation and
incorporation in the 2025/26 Annual Budget Bylaw.

THAT the School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows) Annual Budget
Bylaw for the fiscal year 2025/2026 in the amount of $264,391,495 be given
three (3) readings at this meeting. (vote must be unanimous)

THAT the School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows) Annual Budget
Bylaw for the fiscal year 2025/2026 be given first reading on this 30t day of
April, 2025,

THAT the School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows) Annual Budget
Bylaw for the fiscal year 2025/2026 be given second reading on this 30 day of
April, 2025.

THAT the School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows) Annual Budget
Bylaw for the fiscal year 2025/2026 be given a third reading, passed and
adopted on this 30th day of April, 2025.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 16



&A ATTACHMENT A

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

PROPOSED PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025/26

APRIL 30, 2025

PROPOSED PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025/26

MAPLE RIDGE - PITT MEADOWS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 42
Maple Ridge, BC, Canada

V2X 8N6

www.sd42.ca



2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 18



PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025/26
MAPLE RIDGE - PITT MEADOWS SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 42

Maple Ridge, BC, Canada
V2X 8N6
www.sd42.ca

iii
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 19



INTERNATIONAL

ASSOCIATION OF
() SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS

This Meritorious Budget Award is presented to:

MAPLE RIDGE PITT MEADOWS
SCHOOL DISTRICT

for excellence in the preparation and issuance of its budget
for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025.

The budget adheres to the principles and standards
of ASBO International’s Meritorious Budget Award criteria.

< Ryan S. Stechschulte James M. Rowan, CAE, SFO

President CEO/Executive Director

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 20



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......ouuuuiiiiiiiinnnriicnnsssnesisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 1
Message from the Board of Education and Senior Staff ...........coe oot 2
BUAGEE OVEIVIEW ...ttt ettt te st e st e st et e st e et e s ae et e s e e s e e s asssesasssessaeseassassaessanseassansaessansasssansesnsansanses 3
SEALEGIC DIFECLION ...ttt et este et e st e et e b e st et e e s e et e sse e e esseess e sasseessaessassasseessassesssansesssensanns 4
StUAENT ACRIEVEMENL ...ttt ettt e e et e e e et e s se e e e s s e e st e sbesseessessaassesseessasseessansesssansaans 4
Budget Process and Consultation TIMEIINE .........cceeveeieiieeieeeecteeetetee et sae et ae e sae s e et e s e e s e re e e e e e snn e aasns 5
Student Enrolment Trends @and ProjECLIONS. .......cc.eecveeieieeeeececteee ettt ve e ae s e v e s e e saesseesaesaessaanenans 6
1] 12111 T USROS SRUPRRRSTRSRU 6
Summary: Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 ..........cuo oottt sve et sae e e sae s sae s e ete s e aeseeens 7

All FUNAS COMDBINEM......ccuiiiieieieeeeteeeeteste ettt et te et ste et e st e e e e te e s e saeesaessasseessassaassasseessansaensansesssansesssansanns 7

RECONCIIALION Of All FUNGS ......cvenveeeeieieeieieteieeiesieteiteiesieteit e teste st esessesse s s e sseste st e e ssessestessssassansensssessensensessssansensesessenes 8

OPEIALING FUNG.....c.eiieeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt e et e st e e e et e e ae e b e s s e e b e saaasaessaessesseesaanseessansanssansesneensenses 9
Preliminary Operating BUOGEE CRANGES...........oceecueeeeeieeeeieeteeeeeteteeieeeeseetestessseaestesaessessse s assassasssassansassssssassansansessssnes 10
SPECIAI PUIPOSE FUNG ...ttt ae et e s e a e e e et e e ae e b e s se e b e sseesaassaessansesssansasnsensenses 12
Classroom ENRANCEMENT FUMNG..............couvueeueirerenieieisientetetsiesiesseteiessestessesessessestesassessessesessansensessesessensessesessensensesessen 12
ANNUGT FACIITEES GITNL ...ttt tetest et esies st esse st et e st sse st et et ese s s e te st sssssessessesessensentesessesensensesansensessesensn 13
08 T =1 I 0 1 o SRRSO 14
LOCAI CAPILAL ...ttt ettt et et e eteste et e et e stesse et et e sassaessassasassaessestansassasssessansassasssassansansasssessansansansennes 15
Local Capital BUAGET SUMMAIY ......ecvieiicierieetisieeeetesteeteeee e steetesesseeseeseesee st esaestessessessassessessassassassansassassassassassassesssssseseesseseessessessasans 15
Contingency Reserve Held in LOCAl Capital.......coeieerirerieirieieeriecrtetse ettt ettt ettt ettt b et b et st sesse e enen 15

ORGANIZATIONAL SECTION......cuueiiieriirneeieecssssnssssossssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssasssssssssne 17

DISTIICE OVEIVIEW... ettt ettt ettt et s et e ae st e b e et e b e e st e s e saeesbesse st esaeensessa et e sasntessesnsessasasensaaes 18
BOAId Of EAUCATION ...ttt ettt ettt e a et e s b st e b e st et e s e ebes st ensessesnsenaans 19
D1 £ ot = o =T 6] ] o USRS 19
SHALEGIC DIFECHIONS ...ttt ettt e e e e te e ee e s e e e ae e se e saesssessseeseasssessseenseessaeaseesssesnseenseanns 21
Strategic PrioritieS @nd GOAIS .......oocuvieieeeeceeeeeeeee ettt e e s e e re e s e e s e e e re e seessaesae e saesseesnseenseennaanns 21

210 fa T=T = 7= Lol 1o (o1 o [ SRS 25
270 [o =Y B o € Yol Y] TSRS 26
Budget Implementation, Monitoring and REPOIING .......ccveeieeieeeeeeeeeeete e 27
Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation TIMEIINE .........ocveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeetee et 28

FINANCIAL SECTION.......cccorruiiieiinrnnetiecsssnsesssssssnssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssnnssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssnssssssssssnssssssssssnassasss 29

Preliminary BUdget 2025/26 ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ne st ee 30

Revenue and Expense (All FUnds COMDINEM) .......ccooiiiiiriiinieieeeeeeet ettt 30
RECONCIIALION OF All FUNGS ...ttt ettt ettt te vt et et e s te st e et et e st et asss et assassasssansensassesssensansassesssensensassasnsens 31
OPEratiNg BUAGEL ...ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt et s et e se s s b s b b e be b e b enbenee 32
OPErating BUAGET ESTIMQLES........coueeeueeerieieieiieiesieteesieste et ie st te sttt e s te b et esesseste st esessentestesessensentesessensentesessensan 32
Student Enrolment Trends @nd ProJECHIONS .......coviiiieieieietetetetete ettt ettt e sttt s e s s e s seeseeseeseesassaensessensensenseneen 33
OPETALING REVENUE ...ttt ettt sttt s e sttt et e ae et e st e ae et et e st et e st e st e st ensensensensansensesansensassessaeseeseesaeseentessensentensansen 37
OPETALING EXPENSES ...ttt ettt et et st esteste st e s se s st eae e st e st sse e st e st e st e st e st esse st essansansensansansesansensansessassesseesasseenseseensensessenean 39
One-Time ltems Not Included i BaSE BUAGET .....cveuiiieieeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ettt s st e e e e e e esaennen 4
INAIGENOUS EAUCATION......couiiiieiiieieteetee ettt ettt ettt et et et et et et et e sb et et e se st e s e sassasbassesseesesseeseeseesessaeneensesaansans 4
RIAGE MEAUOWS COIIEGE ...ttt ettt ettt st e et et et et et et et et et et et et essansensasassesbassessesseesesaaeseeseessensensesaensans 42
INTErNALIONAI EAUCATION ...ttt ettt et ettt et et et e st et e st e b et e s b e sasbasbasseesesseeseeseeseeseesaensensesaensans 43
Continuing Education and ONIINE LEAIMING.......ccueeiruirierireeeeieereetet sttt ettt et et et et e s te st e stesbass e st assessassassessasssensessensensesseneen 44

Continued on next page

v
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 21



Operating Budget FOUr-YEAr PrOJECHIONS ..........ccceeeiesieeieeieiesieeieeeesestasseessessessasssessessessasssessessassassasssassessasssessessassasssenes 45

Projected Operating Base BUdget fOr 2025/26.............ueeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeecteeieeteaeetesaesseesestassesssesessassessssssessassassasssenes 45
Proposed Preliminary Budget Changes fOr 2025/26 ..............uueoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeecteeteeeese e e ee st stesaesssesessasaassassnenes 49
1.0 SUPPOIt fOr SCHOOI GIOWEN PIANS.....ccuieeiieieeeieeeeee ettt e st e st e st et e st e st e st e e s e e s e s s aesaesaeseeseeseeseesaessensessessensensanean 50
2.0 LEAINING SEIVICES ....veeuieiieeieieieiestestetestestestestessastessessassaesesseeseeseessassestessessessassassassansassansansansansansansassassessessessessessesssessessensensenen 54
3.0 SUpPOrt fOr OPEratioNAl PIANS......cc.eiuieeieeieeeieieeee ettt ettt et este et e st e st e te st et e s sa st esbassaesassaeseesaeseeseeseeseessessensensessensensenean 56
4.0 STUAENT TrANSPOITALION ....evietietietieeeeeiet ettt et et e st et et et et et et et et e saa st e sasassassassassassaasaesaeseasaasessseseeseesaessensessessensensasean 59
5.0 Use of 2024/25 Available Operating SUIPIUS ......ccuceieieieieieeeeeeeeetetete et te st este st et et e st essessassassassassassasssesasssessessessensessenean 60
Summary of 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary BUAget ChangES ........ccueveiioieriieiecieesiesteeeeeee e e e ee e ere e se e e e ese e e enseneen 60
Summary of 2025/26 Preliminary OPErating BUGQGET.............c.eoueeeeieereeieieiecteeteeeeetesteeeeseesestesseessessessessesssessassassssnsens 62
OPErating BUAQET REVENUE..........ooeiieieieeeeste ettt ettt e te et s et et et e e e e et esae st e st assassassassassasansansassassaesaeseesaeseensessessensessanean 62
OPErating BUAQET EXPENSES......c.viiiieieieieieeiestesteeteste e e ste e e e eteese et e e ssee st e st esee st essesse st assassassansansassansansassansassassesseesseseessessessensessanean 62
Operating Fund and CEF BUAGet STAffiNg .....ccueoueeiieieeeeee ettt ettt e sttt e st b e st e s te s s e e beeseesaesaeneeseennensensennan 64
Special PUrpoSe FUNG BUAGET .......oveeeeeeeeeeee ettt te ettt s et se et e sae et be et ae e e ba e e eaaens 65
Special Purpose Funds Background INFOrMQLION ...........c..cueeueeuieiecieeieetieieiecteeteeeectesteeseesesestesssessessessassesssesassassasnnens 66
Classroom ENhanCemMent FUNG (CEF) ......ooviiiieeeeeeeeeee ettt sttt ettt ettt et et et et et e s b e b e st assassassassaesasseensessensenseseanean 66
Learning IMProVemMENT FUNG.........c.ocviiiieieeieeeeeteseetee et e et ettt e et e e e e et et et et e st e sae st essassansassassansansassassaessesseseeseeseessenseseensans 69
ANNUAI FACIHIEY GIANT (AFG)....eitieeieieeieeeeteeeee ettt ettt ettt et e b et et et et e b e s e sassassassassassansassassassaesessaessesaaseeseessaseessessessensanes 69
Official Language Education Program (OLEP) ..........c.coueeioieioiieieeeeeteeetetete e tete st et et et et esaessessassassassassassassassasseessessessensessenean Ul
Feeding Futures SChool FOOd Programs (FFSFP) ........cou oottt ste et steste st e v e s s e stassaesasseesseseeseesseseensenseseeneans 72
National SCNOOI FOOT PrOGIAM ......cvicuiieieeieeeeeetestestee et te e et et e e et et e e e sae st et et et et essessessassansassassansansassassesssesseseessessessenseseensans 72
COMMUNIEYLINK ...ttt ettt et e st e st e et e e e s e eae e st e se s s e e st e st eseeseessessessassansassansansassansansansansassaaseeseasaeseensessensansessanean 72
Early Learning Programs @Nd PrOJECES .....c.ecieeeuieireeieieeeeeieeeeesteeete st eseete st esaessessessessessessassansassassassassessassessssssesesssessessensessensens 73
MeEntal HE@IH IN SCROOIS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt e s bt s b et e st et e b et s be b e se b enassentenens 74
First Nation StUdent TranSPOITATION ......c.coeeiieeeeeieceeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et e st e st e st et et e st et assassassessassassseseeseesseseessesseseaneans 75
Youth EAUCAtIoN SUPPOIT FUNG ..ottt ettt ettt ettt e st e st e st e b e st e s sa s assassaesaesaeseesasseeseesaeneenseseansensanes 75
SCHOIArSHIPS ANT BUISAMES ....eveeieeieeieieeeetete ettt ettt et et et et et et et et e saa st e s et e sassassassassaasassaaseesaeseesseseeseesaessensensensensessanean 76
SCHOOI GENEIALEM FUNGS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt st et et b et e s et et e st b e st e b et ese b e st e b et ebe st esentenesentesen 76
Literacy Professional LEArning FUNG ..........cc.eouieieieeeieieeecetee ettt et e et e st et e st e sae st e saa st e st e sa st assassaesassasssessesesssessessesseseenaans 76
Capital FUNA BUAGET...... oottt ettt s ettt e s e et e s s e e b e sae et e se e st assaessansasnnansannes 77
Capital Funds INVeSted i CAPILAI ASSELS .........cceeeeeeeieereeieiteiteeeeeetesteeteeeestessassaesestessasssessassassassaessesassasssessessassasssenes 78
BYIAW CAPILAL ...veeeieeeeeieieieieetete ettt s et e st e et e e te e e et e e s e e seeseeseeseesee st eseasaessessansass et essansansansansansassansanseesaeseesseseeseesseseeneensesaanaans 79
Ministry of Education and Child Care Restricted Capital ........ccccueveerieieiieiieieieiecieiete et ste et e st e stestestesaeese s e eseeseeseeseeseessesseseeneens 79
Other ProViNCIal CAPILAl ......ccveoveieieiiesiecietestes et et e e e st e et e et eeeete et e e esee st e st et e e e st esse st essassansansansassansansansassassaasasseasasssessessensensessanean 79
LANA CAPIAL ettt et e st e et e et e e e et e et e seeseeseese e st e st eseeseensessassansensessassassansansasassaasanseasaeseessesseseeseeseeseensaseanaans 79
LOCAI CAPIAL ...ttt ettt et et e st s ae et et e st e sse et et e sassaessa st asassaessa st ansassasssestansansasssestansassasssensansansassennen 79
Contingency Reserve Held in LOCAI CAPITAL.......cceeieeeeeeeieieeeeeeee ettt ettt et et e e st et e st e s aa b e st assasseesasseesaeseensessessensessenean 80
Information Technology (IT) CAPital PIAN........c.coueeuieeeieieeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt et et et e st et e st et e s e st e sa st esbassassassasssessesaesseseeseesseseensans 80
NEW TEMPOTATY CLASSIOOMS ......vicveieriieiesiestesteeteetestesteeseeseeseesteseeseeseeseeseessessassessessassassansessansassassansassassansessessessessessseseeseeseessessessensans 80
Facility Equipment and VEhicle Capital PIAN ........c.coueouieieeeeeieeeeeeetete ettt et este e st esae st e st et assasbassaesassessssssesassessesssenseseaneans 81
Other FACIlITIES RENEWAN .....c..ouiieiiiiieieeeete ettt ettt sttt s b et et e e s et e st eae et et e s et e se b et b et ebentenesseneesen 81
Local Capital BUAGET SUMMAIY ......ecviriirierieetiseeeeteeteeteeeeeeeeeteseeseeseeseeee e essesaessessessassessassessassassansassassansessassessessesseesesseeseessensessensans 82
Impact of CaPital PIAN 0N BUGGEL.............c.oooueeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeteeteee et e teete et e eeetestesse e s et este s e esse s assassasssassassassasssensasansasssanes 82
FIVE-YEAr CAPILAI PIAN ....ceieeieeieieieietecteste sttt ettt et e et e et e e et e st e e e e et e saesee st e s e st e st e s assansassansansarsassaasassaesassaessessesesseeseeseesseseansans 82
Risk to the Preliminary Budget EStIMAtes......c..co oottt aaeae s 86
ROVEIUE. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt s e sttt st et et e s e st et e st s ae s s et e st e st e se st et e st ebeban s e st ssesbetestesabansensesessenss 86
EXDEISES ..ttt ettt ettt et e et e st e s ae et et et e s s e et et et et e e st e Rt et et e e st et e beeaeeatententasee st entetesseessentetanseenaanes 86
COSE PIrESSUIES .....coveneeueeeeeieieieeeiestest e e seste st esesse s et e sesse st et et esesbe s e st sses b et et ese b entestesesbentanteseesansentesessasbansentesensentesessensn 86
CADIEQI PIrOJECES «..veeeeveeteeteeeeteeeete e eteetee et e te et e et et e s e et et e sa e st e st et e saess e st et e saessa st ensasssessassansassaessansansasssessansansensaanes 87
Enrolment ANd SEAFfING GIOWER ...........o.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeeete ettt ettt et este st e et esae s e et et e sassaess et asesssessensansansasssanes 87
CONUINGEINCY RESEIVE ...ttt ettt et e st e et e e et e st e e st et e s et ae st e s e s e s ae st et e sassse st ansansaesaessansansasssestansansessnanes 87

vi

Continued on next page

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 22



INFORMATIONAL SECTION .....couuriiiiinirintienieensteensnnesssnesssnesssnesssnesssnesssnssssnssssnssssnssssnssssnssssnssssnssssnssssnssssnsssanssss 89

StUAENT ACRIBVEMENT ...ttt ettt e et e st e et e st e e e e s b e e st e s s eeseessessaassasseessassesssansesssansanns 90
COMPIELION RALES ..ttt ettt e e et e e te e be e se e e e e ese e ssessaeesseessaeseeessesssesseerssesssesnseenseeseenns 90
AL STUABNTS.....eeeeeeeeteetetee ettt e sttt e st e st e st e et e st e et et e e e e ssesssessesseassessaessasseassanseessasseansansaensansesssansenssansanns 90
Students with Disabilities and Diverse ADIlIHIES........cccueeeriererieeeeeee ettt 9
Operating Budget HiStOriCal DAta........cccevicuirieriieieciesectesee ettt ettt saesse e saesse s aesae e s e saeeaessasssassessnansans 92
Amended Budget ReVENUE @nd EXPENSES.......ccueiiireeiereeiectectesteet et st et e e sae s e ete s e st e sse e s e saaesaessessessesssansans 92
SEAFFING ettt ettt et e et e et b e r e et e e s e et e nae e s e te et e be e st e teesa e teeneentannes 94
GlOSSANY Of TEIMIS....ceeeeieeieetecteetesee ettt e et e st e steste et e stee s esse et e seesaesseessassesseensasseessanseassanseansasseassansesssansesssansenns 96

vii
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 23



viii
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 24



R\l
m
>
@
g
=
o
(7,)
=
3
3
o
=

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY




==
S
(-]
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
—
=]
-
o
(]
>
(]
I
A

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF EDUCATION AND SENIOR STAFF

In preparing the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget, we have been guided by our school district’s vision, mission,
and values, and have relied on school growth plans, operational plans, and the strategic priorities and goals of the
district to further inform our work. In a year marked by financial challenge, we have made every effort to preserve the
structures and supports that most directly serve students and essential operating infrastructure, even as we have had to
implement necessary reductions in some areas to address a structural deficit and balance the budget.

As we work through the budget process for the 2025/26 school year, we remain mindful of the continued enrolment
growth projected for the coming year and beyond, as well as the shifting demographics within in our community. At
the same time, we must respond to the ongoing reality that inflationary increases to costs are outpacing inflationary
increases in provincial funding, placing further limitations on the flexibility of our budget.

In this context, we continue to prioritize an education system with high expectations for student learning, inclusive
supports, and strategic investments that promote student success. We recognize the importance of building both direct
and indirect supports across the system to respond to increasingly complex student needs, particularly in the early years
where intervention has the greatest long-term impact. These and many other considerations have shaped the thoughtful
development of this budget, which attempt to balance the needs of the system against the demands of our context.

Thank you for taking the time to review our 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget and for your feedback on the
Proposed Preliminary Budget for 2025/26.

BOARD.
EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.42

ELAINE YAMAMOTO KIM DUMORE HUDSON CAMPBELL
BOARD CHAIRPERSON VICE CHAIRPERSON

GABRIEL LIOSIS MIKE MURRAY PASCALE SHAW KATIE SULLIVAN
TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

TERESA DOWNS RICHARD RENNIE
SUPERINTENDENT / CEO SECRETARY TREASURER / CFO

2 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 26



BUDGET OVERVIEW

The Board of Education School District No. 42 (SD42) meets the learning needs of more than 17,000 students

of all ages in Maple Ridge and Pitt Meadows, and is defined by its determination to keep student learning and
growth at the heart of all its decisions. The district provides K-12 educational services in 22 elementary schools, six
secondary schools, and two alternate schools. It also provides a variety of certificate programs and relevant, quality,
life-long learning opportunities through Ridge Meadows College and Continuing Education.

The approved preliminary budget for 2024/25 reflected a structural deficit of $2.20 million, as ongoing expenses
exceeded ongoing funding sources. Under board policy, structural deficits are not permitted. To balance the
2024/25 budget, the district used $2.29 million from the prior year’s operating surplus to fund the approved
expense proposals. However, this approach is not sustainable.

The board and senior staff remain committed to eliminating the structural deficit in the 2025/26 budget. The base
budget for 2025/26 initially projected a structural deficit of $0.92 million due to rising cost pressures—such as
salaries, benefits, and inflationary increases in non-discretionary expenses—that continue to outpace both funding
increases and internal savings. The proposed ongoing budget adjustments, totaling $1.49 million, fully eliminate
this structural deficit and support the board’s goal of maintaining long-term financial stability.

For 2025/26, the school district is projecting a balanced budget, represented by an ongoing operating surplus of $0.57
million funding a one-time deficit of $0.57 million. This is estimated to be followed by budget funding shortfalls of
approximately $1.44 million for 2026/27, $2.12 million for 2027/28, and $2.20 million for 2028/29.

The board maintains local capital reserves to address capital needs not funded by the provincial government, including
technology infrastructure, facility equipment and vehicles, temporary classrooms, and the renewal of administrative
and maintenance facilities. In accordance with board policy, a minimum contingency reserve of 1% of budgeted
operating expenses ($2.15 million for 2025/26) is held in local capital to mitigate financial risks. An additional

$0.58 million is required to meet the 1.25% target and protect the district from elevated financial risks—such as the
expanded scope of major capital projects in progress, and the impact of U.S. tariffs, which are expected to raise the cost
of construction, maintenance, technology, and classroom supplies.

Opver the next four years, the district faces significant funding shortfalls across several key areas: $3.68 million for the
IT capital plan, $1.93 million for facility equipment and vehicles, $0.84 million for new temporary classrooms, and
$1.69 million for renewal of non-school facilities. Without additional funding, the district may need to delay critical
upgrades, reduce investments in operational efficiency, or reallocate resources from other priorities. The local capital
funding shortfalls can be addressed by securing funding from the provincial government for eligible capital projects
and by considering the allocation of any future operating surpluses, if available, to local capital.

The school district operates under the authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation and receives
over 90% of revenue from the BC provincial government through the Ministry of Education and Child Care
(MECC). Any changes to provincial grants will consequently have a significant impact on the school district’s budget.
The school district is exempt from federal and provincial corporate income taxes.

In accordance with the School Act, school districts in the province must approve a balanced budget for the 2025/26
fiscal year (July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026) and submit it to the MECC by June 30, 2025. The school district has
developed a preliminary budget that supports its vision and considers its shared priorities and the needs of its
community of learners. This budget has been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency
and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011
issued by the Province of British Columbia Treasury Board.

As required by the Ministry of Education and Child Care and public sector accounting standards, the school district
tracks and reports revenue and expenses under three separate funds: the Operating Fund, the Special Purpose Fund,

and the Capital Fund.

OPERATING FUND: The Operating Fund includes operating grants and other revenue used to fund instructional
programs, school and district administration, facilities and I'T operations, maintenance, and transportation.

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND: The Special Purpose Fund is comprised of separate funds established to track revenue
and expenditures received from the MECC and other sources that have restrictions on how they may be spent
(e.g., Classroom Enhancement Fund, Annual Facilities Grant, Feeding Futures School Food Programs Fund,
CommunityLINK, and School Generated Funds).

CAPITAL FUND: The Capital Fund includes capital expenditures related to facilities (purchases and enhancements)
and equipment (purchases) that are funded by MECC capital grants, operating funds, and special purpose funds.
An annual deficit in the capital fund that is a result of amortization expense and budgeted capital assets purchased
from operating and special purpose funds exceeding the amortization of deferred capital revenue plus budgeted local
capital revenue is permitted under the Accounting Practices Order of the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 3
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 27

R\l
m
>
@
g
=
o
wv
=
3
3
o
<




=
S
(<~
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
=
b
-
o
(2]
>
(]
I
A

STRATEGIC DIRECTION

VISION STRATEGIC DIRECTIONS

The district vision is for every individual 1. Inclusive culture of care and belonging

to feel valued and for all learners to where the well-being, diversity, identity,

reach their potential. and success of all learners is supported
and celebrated.

MISSION 2. Intentional support for a growth mindset,

Our mission is to support all individuals collaboration, interdependence, and staff

in their development as successful development.

learners, and as respectful, caring, and 3. Forward-thinking, research-informed,

responsible members of society. effective, efficient, sustainable, value-

based, and connected school district.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND GOALS

The strategic priorities and goals for the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District (SD42) are established on a rolling
four-year planning cycle and are summarized in departmental operational plans and school growth plans.

This budget supports the specific strategic goals identified in school growth plans and operational plans. Specifically,
allocations have been made that support literacy, numeracy, safe and caring schools, education leadership, equity,
student voice, collaborative teaching, and essential operations. In addition, reductions have been made in some areas
to achieve a balanced budget and eliminate the unsustainable structural deficit. Additional information on these budget
changes is outlined in the table on page 11.

STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

The six-year completion rate for B.C. students in SD42 2023/24 SIX-YEAR GRADUATION RATES BC STUDENTS
for the 2023/24 school year was 97.4% - exceeding the

provincial average of approximately 91%. 98BA% 9749

95.6% 96.0%
Six years ago, in 2018/19 the school district’s 02.7% 93.2%
overall six-year completion rate was 92.3%. We 92-3%
have dedicated considerable attention and effort to 59-5%
providing engaging and inclusive programming for
students, focusing both on improving graduation rates
and the quality of graduation. Our graduation rates
for students of Indigenous ancestry and our students
with disabilities and diverse abilities also continue
to show favourable trends. For 2023/24, our six year
completion rate for students of Indigenous ancestry

is 93.2%, which is higher than the provincial average 2016/17 201718 201819 2019/20 2020/21 202122 2022/23 2023/24
of approximately 75%. Similarly, our completion rate

for students with disability or diverse ability is 88.3%

for 2023/24, which is also higher than the provincial

average of approximately 78%.

A comprehensive review and analysis of student
achievement is provided in the Supporting All Learners:
Enhancing Student Learning Report (September, 2024).

4 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 28


https://www.sd42.ca/assets/media/2024-09-11-2023-24-SD42-Framework-for-Enhancing-Student-Learning.pdf
https://www.sd42.ca/assets/media/2024-09-11-2023-24-SD42-Framework-for-Enhancing-Student-Learning.pdf

BUDGET PROCESS AND CONSULTATION TIMELINE

Rl
PUBLIC BOARD MEETING m
LB AL L B . Presentation and approval of the proposed budget process and consultation timeline E
=
=
PUBLIC BOARD MEETING @
Wednesday, February 12, 2025 . Presentation of projected enrolments for 2025/26, 2026/27, 2027/28, and 2028/29 §
3
[-3]
<

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

LIS AL BT I 24P . Presentation and board approval of the 2024/25 Amended Annual Budget

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

. Presentation of the 2025/26 draft preliminary budget estimates
. Consultation with partner groups on budget priorities

. Consultation with students on budget priorities

Wednesday, March 5, 2025

FIRST NATIONS AND INDIGENOUS PARTNERS BUDGET CONSULTATION

. Presentation of the 2025/26 draft preliminary budget estimates

«  Co-construct on budget priorities for targeted funds for Indigenous Education
«  Consultation on budget priorities for non-targeted funds

Monday, April 7, 2025

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, April 16, 2025 . Presentation of the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

Thursday, April 17 to ONLINE BUDGET SURVEY
Thursday, April 23, 2025 «  Online budget survey on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

FIRST NATIONS AND INDIGENOUS PARTNERS BUDGET APPROVAL AND CONSULTATION
Tuesday, April 22, 2025 . Approval of the proposed 2025/26 spending plans for targeted funds
. Feedback on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget for non-targeted funds

. FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Wednesday, April 23, 2025 «  Public and partner group input on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

«  Approval of 2025/26 Budget Balancing Proposals

. Receipt of approved 2025/26 spending plans for targeted Indigenous Education funds
«  Adoption of the 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

Wednesday, April 30, 2025

3
Download the budget and consultation summary documents at:
o https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/2025-budget-process/

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 5
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 29


https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/2025-budget-process/
https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/budget-process-2023/

=
S
(<~
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
=
b
-
o
(2]
>
(]
I
A

STUDENT ENROLMENT TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS

The enrolment information presented below is based on actual full-year enrolment (regular, alternate, online learning,
continuing education, summer learning, and non-graduated adult learners) for 2017/18 to 2023/24, actual enrolment for
September and projected enrolment for February and May for 2024/25, and projected enrolment for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

For 2025/26, full-year enrolment is projected to increase by 75 FTE (0.4%), followed by a projected enrolment increase of
271 FTE (1.6%) in 2026/27, 171 FTE (1.0%) in 2027/28, and 173 FTE (1.0%) in 2028/29.

18,000

17,467
17,500 17103 1729

17,000 16,777 16,852
16,526

16,500
16,000
15,500
15,000
14,500
14,000

13,500

13,000
17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

STAFFING

From 2017/18 to 2025/26, as presented in the following table, total operating staffing in the Maple Ridge — Pitt
Meadows School District has increased by 492 FTE, primarily to support increased enrolment and additional
collective agreement staffing requirements funded from the Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF) since 2017/18.

From 2017/18 to 2025/26, as presented in the following table, total operating and classroom enhancement funded staffing
in the Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows School District has increased by 492 FTE (30%), primarily to support increased
enrolment and collective agreement staffing requirements. This includes an increase in school-based stafling of 457

FTE (31%) and an increase in district-based staffing of 35 FTE (20%).

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

School-based Staffing

Teachers 903.43 912.74 929.85 951.87 989.29  1,002.97  1,051.82 1,07019 1,072.46
Principals/VPs - Teaching time 9.40 1.40 13.60 14.20 14.20 15417 16.30 16.10 15.82
Principals/VPs - Admin time 3770 39.44 42.29 4237 43,55 43,85 43.82 4415 44.43
Educational Assistants 343.08 368.43 418.43 446.91 478.44 529.36 561.62 604.42 591.50
Support Staff 177.82 179.96 186.14 189.66 190.93 19314 19414 20153 201.40
Other Professionals 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Total School-based Staffing 147143 15197 159031  1,645.01 171941 178749  1,870.70  1,939.39 1,928.61

District-based Staffing

Principals/VPs 6.00 6.00 6.95 6.35 6.65 7.45 775 7.65 7.65
Other Professionals 32.30 36.30 39.30 40.30 40.30 43.30 47.80 49.80 50.80
Support Staff 133.41 135.96 142.41 143.63 143.90 143.65 144.90 146.71 147.97
Total District-based Staffing 7.7 178.26 188.66 190.28 190.85 194.40 200.45 20416 206.42
Total 1,64314 1,690.23 1,778.97  1,835.29 1,910.26  1,981.89 2,07115 2,143.55 2,135.03
Student to Staff Ratio 9.23 9.05 8.76 8.40 8.41 8.38 8.20 8.03 8.06

6 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 30



SUMMARY: PROPOSED PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025/26
All Funds Combined

The following table summarizes revenue and expense by type for the Operating Fund, Special Purpose Fund, and
Capital Fund — actuals for years 2021/22 to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for
2025/26 to 2028/29.

($ millions) 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual T Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC $178.97 $196.07 $219.27  $23166  $229.75 $23413 $237.61 $241.06
Provincial Grants - Other 0.39 0.33 0.33 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42
Federal Grants 0.07 0.23 0.32 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36
Tuition 8.16 9.52 10.03 1.22 1.27 1.78 12.20 12.20
Other Revenue 4.31 5.88 7.29 6.89 6.87 6.81 6.81 6.81
Rentals and Leases 0.66 0.83 0.76 0.83 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Investment Income 0.38 1.67 2.45 1.66 110 0.74 0.74 0.74
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6.55 6.68 6.78 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68
Total Revenue 199.49 221.21 247.23 259.92 257.67 263.01 267.84 273.16
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 172.33 186.89 210.31 229.57 2249 230.84 235.08 238.27
Services and Supplies 18.48 22.22 2370 2618 24.06 23.92 24.26 24.60
Amortization of Capital Assets 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 14.78
Total Expenses 201.41 219.76 244.79 266.69 259.98 266.60 27214 277.65
Interfund Transfers - - - - - - - -
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1.92) 1.45 244 (6.77) (2.31) (3.59) (4.30) (4.49)
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year
Opening Balance 89.24 89.22 79.90 81.40 79.68 77.49 73.90 69.60
Use of Prior Year Surplus 6.37 4.47 4.23 517 012 - - -
Prior Period Adjustment (11.01)
Total Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 95.61 82.68 8413 86.57 79.80 77.49 73.90 69.60
Accumulated Surplus, end of year $93.69 $84.13 $86.57 $79.80 $77.49 $73.90 $69.60 $65.11

The surplus (deficit) for the year is comprised of operating surplus (deficit) and capital surplus (deficit) for the year.
All Operating Fund deficits have been funded from available accumulated surplus carried forward from a prior
year. The capital funds surplus (deficit) is comprised of amortization of deferred capital revenue, amortization of
tangible capital assets, and targeted revenue for specific capital projects that show as expenses in the year they are
recognized under generally accepted accounting principles. An annual deficit is permitted in the Capital Fund.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 7
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 31

R\l
m
>
@
g
=
o
wv
=
3
3
o
<




Reconciliation of All Funds
The following table shows the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget reconciliation between all funds. The end of

; the year Capital Fund accumulated surplus of $77.61M represents $73.13M invested in capital assets (non-cash)
E and $4.48M held in local capital and appropriated by the board for specific purposes.
S
)
g A . Special .
-,g ($ millions) Operating Fund PurpeselFund Capital Fund
(%}
E Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC $200.57 $2918 $- $229.75
Provincial Grants - Other 0.42 0.42
Federal Grants 0.36 0.36
Tuition 1.27 1.27
Other Revenue 1.67 5.20 6.87
Rentals and Leases 0.89 0.89
Investment Income 110 - 110
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 7.01 7.01
Total Revenue 216.28 34.38 7.01 257.67
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 19777 2714 224.91
Services and Supplies 17.28 6.78 24.06
Amortization of Capital Assets 11.01 11.01
Total Expenses 215.05 33.92 11.01 259.98
Interfund Transfers 1.35 0.46 (1.81) -
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (0.12) - (2.19) (2.31)
Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year - - 79.80 79.80
Opening Balance (0.12) 79.80 79.68
Use of Prior Year Surplus 012 012
Total Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year - - 79.80 79.80
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year $(0412) $- $77.61 $77.49

8 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 32



Operating Fund

The Operating Fund includes operating grants and other revenues used to fund instructional programs, school and
district administration, facilities and I'T operations, maintenance, and transportation.

The following table summarizes revenue and expense by object for the Operating Fund — actuals for years 2021/22
to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

(5 millions) 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC $157.36 $170.86 $188.52 $197.67  $200.57 $204.95 $208.43 $211.88
Provincial Grants - Other 0.39 0.33 0.33 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42
Federal Grants 0.07 0.23 0.32 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36
Tuition 8.16 9.52 10.03 1.22 1.27 178 12.20 12.20
Other Revenue 0.89 1.08 143 1.69 1.67 1.61 1.61 1.61
Rentals and Leases 0.66 0.83 0.76 0.83 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Investment Income 0.31 133 240 1.66 110 0.74 0.74 0.74
Total Revenue 167.84 18418 203.79 213.85 216.28 220.75 224.65 228.10

Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 153.53 164.02 182.41 198.03 197.77 20374 207.98 217
Services and Supplies 13.07 15.47 15.58 18.77 17.28 1710 17.44 1778
Total Expenses 166.60 179.49 197.99 216.80 215.05 220.84 225.42 228.95

Capital Purchases and Other 313 4.93 4.86 2.22 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1.89) (0.24) 0.94 (5.17) (0.12) (1.44) (212) (2.20)

Use of Prior Year Operating Surplus 6.37 4.47 4.23 517 012

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year $4.48 $4.23 $5.17 $- $- $(1.44) $(212) $(2.20)

Addressing the projected deficits for 2026/27 to 2028/29 will require a combination of revenue increases, expense
reductions, or the use of the contingency reserve in local capital to achieve balanced budgets.

For 2025/26 budgeted operating revenue, SD42 is estimating to receive 93.05% from the province and other grants,
5.21% from tuition, and 1.74% from other sources. The 2025/26 budgeted operating expenses are allocated for salaries
and benefits (91.39%); services and supplies (6.69%); utilities (1.30%); and capital assets purchased and other (0.62%).

PROVINCIAL AND OTHER GRANTS $201.35 (93.05%)
/ SALARIES $156.07 (72.12%)

TUITION $11.28 (5.21%)

RENTAL & LEASES $0.89 (0.40%)
BUDGETED 4 INVESTMENT INCOME  $1.10 (0.51%)

REVENUE
BY SOURCE % OTHER REVENUE  $1.67 (0.77%)

BUDGETED
EXPENSES
BY TYPE
2025/26

—— BENEFITS $41.70 (19.27%)

2025/26

APPROPRIATED SURPLUS  $0.12 (0.06%)
™ SERVICES & SUPPLIES $14.47 (6.69%)

\\ UTILITIES $2.81(1.30%)
CAPITAL ASSETS PURCHASED AND OTHER $1.35 (0.62%)

The table on the following page summarizes the changes to the operating budget four-year projections. Additional
information about these estimates can be found in the financial section of the budget document.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 9
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 33

'y,

‘ll]
m
>
D
o
=
=
<
oD
w
=
=
3
{3}
—

<




==
S
(-]
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
=
b
-
o
(]
>
(]

OPERATING BUDGET FOUR-YEAR PROJECTIONS

($ millions)
Ongoing Base Budget Changes
Incremental Cost Changes
Changes in Salaries and Benefits
Salary rate increases $(1.32) $(1.29) $(1.29) $(1.29)
Benefit rate and usage increases (0.94) (0.83) (0.83) (0.83)
Other changes to teacher and education assistant 1.50
Services, Supplies and Utilities (0.09) (0.24) (0.28) (0.29)
(0.85) (2.36) (2.40) (2.41)
Enrolment Driven Changes 113 0.43 0.25 0.26
MECC Funding Changes (other than enrolment driven) 0.06
Revenue and Expense Changes
Impact of prior year’s budget (0.89) 0.57
International Education (0.06) 0.07 (0.05) (0.05)
Ridge Meadows College 0.14 (045) 0.08
Other ongoing revenue and expenses (0.45)
(1.26) 0.49 0.03 (0.05)
Total Ongoing Base Budget Changes (0.92) (1.44) (212) (2.20)
Total One-Time Base Budget Changes 0.44
Total Base Budget Changes (Projected Shortfall) (0.48) (1.44) (212) (2.20)
Total Ongoing Proposed Budget Changes 1.49
Total One-Time Proposed Budget Changes (113)
Use of Prior Year Surplus 012
Total Projected Shortfall $- $(1.44) $(212) $(2.20)

Preliminary Operating Budget Changes

Since 2015/16, enrolment in the Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows School District has been increasing annually. While
this trend is projected to continue, the growth rate is expected to be lower than in recent years. At the same time,
the district is facing a structural deficit in 2024/25 that requires difficult decisions to ensure financial sustainability
moving forward.

To address the structural deficit while maintaining student supports and essential services, the district has conducted
a thorough review of existing systems, structures and strategies. This process has required difficult but necessary
adjustments to the base budget, along with proposed budget changes, to reduce spending in some areas while
aligning resources with strategic priorities.

The base budget was developed through a thorough review and analysis of all current one-time and ongoing district
budget allocations, as well as expected changes in enrolment, revenue, and non-discretionary expenses. The budget
remains heavily focused on human resource, with 91% allocated to salaries and benefits. In many cases, increased
enrolment automatically triggers staffing increases based on ministry, board, and collective agreement formulas. This
includes positions such as classroom teachers, support teachers, counsellors, English Language Learning teachers,
teacher-librarians, principals and vice principals, clerical staff, and lunch hour supervisors. These formula-driven
staffing increases are reflected in the base budget and not as proposals in this section.

The proposed preliminary budget changes for 2025/26 that are outlined in the following section were developed
through a comprehensive consultation process. Input on budget priorities was gathered from First Nations and
Indigenous partners, Student Voice representatives, all partner groups, managers, principals and vice principals,
and the board. The budget review process has been guided by and aligned with the strategic directions set in the
board’s strategic plan, school growth plans, departmental operational plans, the strategic facilities plan, and budget
prioritization principles.

10 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 34



2025/26 Budget Impact

Budget Changes Salaries & Services & LQ]]
FTE Benefits Supplics Revenue Total -
a
ONGOING BUDGET CHANGES =
Support for School Growth Plans %
Secondary assessment committee $18,000 $- $- $18,000 ?
Elementary administration staffing (74,035) (74,035) g
Clerical staffing - Yennadon Elementary 0.57 32,850 32,850 5
Extracurricular elementary band program (0.63) (81,689) (81,689)
Learning Services
Temporary education assistant staffing (413) (234,888) (234,888)
Home and hospital teacher (1.00) (58,644) (58,644)
Support for Operational Plans
Payroll staffing - Senior payroll & benefits administrator 1.00 90,115 500 90,615
Human Resources staffing - Dispatch coordinator 0.26 9,970 9,970
Human Resources staffing - HR assistant for health and safety 1.00 891595 1,700 101,225
Secondary staffing bank (190,139) (190,139)
Instructional bank (1,004,265) (1,004,265)
Budget savings and financial sustainability (75,034) (23,61) (98,195)
TOTAL ONGOING BUDGET CHANGES (2.93) (1,393,200) (72,834) (23,161) (1,489,195)
ONE-TIME BUDGET CHANGES
Support for School Growth Plans
Literacy - Helping teacher 0.80 108,437 108,437
Literacy - Use of Curriculum and Learning Support Fund (54,218) (54,218)
Numeracy - Resources and supplies 10,000 10,000
Numeracy - Use of Curriculum and Learning Support Fund (10,000) (10,000)
Successful learning opportunities for secondary learners
Resources and supplies 20,000 20,000
Use of Curriculum and Learning Support Fund (20,000) (20,000)
Early Learning - StrongStart - Use of other supplies budget 14,000 14,000
Safe and Caring Schools - Staffing at secondary schools 114 149,397 149,397
Safe and Caring Schools - Staffing for Bridges 0.60 78,423 1,000 79,423
Student Voice leadership 14,000 14,000
Relief teacher training 17,985 2,015 20,000
Extracurricular elementary band program 0.63 81,689 81,689
317 435,931 (23,203) - 412,728
Learning Services
Collaborative teaching 4.00 522,815 522,815
School psychologist assessments (1.50) (183,920) 183,920 -
2.50 338,895 183,920 - 522,815
Student Transportation 260,082 (67,098) 192,984
Use of Prior Year Surplus (119,072) (119,072)
TOTAL ONE-TIME BUDGET CHANGES 5.67 774,826 420,799 (186,170) 1,009,455
TOTAL BUDGET CHANGES 274 $(618,374) $347,965  $(209,331) $(479,740)

The following proposed budget changes having net budget impact of $0 are not presented on the table above: Carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 funds
for numeracy ($20K) and equity ($85K) to utilize these allocations in 2025/26 to support School Growth Plans, and ongoing addition of 1 FTE ELL helping
teacher fully funded from international student enrolment-generated ELL teacher staffing of 1.03 FTE.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 11
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 35



==
S
(-]
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
=
b
-
o
(]
>
(]

Special Purpose Fund

The Special Purpose Fund is comprised of separate funds established to track revenue and expenses received from
the Ministry of Education and Child Care and other sources that have restrictions on how the funds are spent.

The following table summarizes budgeted deferred contributions, revenue, and expenses for all special purpose
funds — actuals for years 2021/22 to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for

2025/26 to 2028/29.

2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual A TE] Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $1.56 $1.76 $1.98 $2.44 $1.92 $1.92 $1.92 $1.92
Contributions Received
Provincial Grants - MECC 21.65 25.32 30.89 33.47 2918 2918 2918 2918
Other 3.54 4.87 6.12 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20
Investment Income 0.01 0.05 0.05 - - - - -
Total Contributions Received 25.20 30.24 37.06 38.67 34.38 34.38 34.38 34.38
Less: Allocated to Revenue or Recovered by MECC (25.00) (30.02) (36.60) (39.19) (34.38) (34.38) (34.38) (34.38)
Deferred Revenue, end of year 176 1.98 244 1.92 1.92 1.92 1.92 1.92
Allocated to Revenue
Provincial Grants 21.61 25.21 30.75 33.99 2918 2918 2918 2918
Other Revenue 3.38 475 5.80 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20
Investment Income 0.01 0.04 0.05 - - - - -
Total Allocated to Revenue 25.00 30.00 36.60 39.19 34.38 34.38 34.38 34.38
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 18.81 22.87 27.90 31.54 2714 2710 2710 2710
Service and Supplies 5.41 6.75 812 741 6.78 6.82 6.82 6.82
Total Expenses 24.22 29.62 36.02 38.95 33.92 33.92 33.92 33.92
Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.78 0.38 0.58 0.24 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46
Total Expenses and Capital Purchases 25.00 30.00 36.60 3919 34.38 34.38 34.38 34.38
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

Classroom Enhancement Fund

For 2025/26, the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District has been provided with a preliminary Classroom

Enhancement Fund (CEF) allocation of $24.51 million, sufficient to fund an estimated 187.72 FTE teachers and

overhead costs of $0.83 million. It is estimated that a surplus of $0.05 million will exist and may be required as

enrolment numbers evolve in September.

Revenue
Classroom Enhancement Fund grant $24,509,985
Preliminary funding surplus (45,881)
Expenses
Teacher staffing 18772 (23,635,071)
Substitutes (408,502)
Principals and vice principals 170 (287,684)
Custodial staff 1.55 (132,847)
Total Classroom Enhancement Fund 190.97 $-

12 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 36



Annual Facilities Grant

For 2025/26, the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District has been provided with an annual facilities grant ‘Q]]
allocated between two funds: Special Purpose Fund portion ($0.52M) and Capital Fund portion ($3.11M), m
totaling $3.63 million. The annual facilities grant spending plan for 2025/26 is presented in the following tables. a
%.

g»

Maintenance Shop Floor replacement - Main corridor, 3 washrooms, staff room $25,497 g

Alouette Elementary Wall carpet removal - Room 1031 10,009 3

District Wide Miscellaneous mechanical repairs 75,000

Harry Hooge Elementary Floor replacement - Staff room 1005 8,520

District Wide Plumbing repairs - Including backflow preventers, domestic water lines, drinking fountains 96,572

District Wide Painting - Exterior and Interior 100,000

District Wide Project tracking module of District's Asset Planner system 7,949

District Wide Ministry's Capital Asset Management System (CAPS) 44,051

District Wide Accessibility enhancements 50,000

District Wide Support spaces enhancement 100,000

Total AFG Special Purpose Fund $517,597
[loion ] 0 roptescrpton o | owagm]|

Albion Elementary Asphalt replacement - Parking and main driveway $122,970

District Wide Card access upgrade 203,200

Kanaka Creek Elementary Fire alarm panel replacement 24,636

Alouette Elementary Fire alarm panel replacement 25,000

Glenwood Elementary Interior lighting and controls upgrade 93,539

Blue Mountain Elementary Low-efficiency boilers replacement with high-efficiency boilers 250,000

District Education Office Low-efficiency boiler replacement with high-efficiency boiler 75,000

Glenwood Elementary Floor replacement - Rooms 1009, 1022 & 1025 27109

Fairview Elementary Floor replacement - Rooms 1013, 1062, 1063 & 1064 30,771

Hammond Elementary Floor replacement - Gym rubber floor (damaged) 74,823

Glenwood Elementary Floor replacement - Main corridors 85,000

Gym Floor repair - Including sanding and repainting lines

LLCLER L I AT L Floor replacement - Change room corridors Lk
Highland Park Elementary Wall carpet removal - Library and side Rooms (1030 & 1082) 20,000
Riverside Centre Structural restoration of rotten beam 45130
Maple Ridge Secondary Replace elevator door system 31,500
Westview Secondary Roof replacement - Sections 14 & 15 642,840
Harry Hooge Elementary Roof replacement - Sections 2 & 14 255,210
Golden Ears Elementary Roof replacement - Sections 7, 8, 11 & 12 403,992
Glenwood Elementary Roof replacement - Sections 4, 7 & 10 184,000
Samuel Robertson Secondary Roof replacement - Portables 4, 9, 10, & washroom portable 137,000
District Wide Portable ramp replacement (accessibility) - Phase 2 123,273
Total AFG Capital Fund $3,114,391
Total Annual Facilities Grant $3,631,988

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 13
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 37



Capital Fund

The Capital Fund includes capital expenditures related to land, buildings (purchases and enhancements), computer
hardware and software, vehicles and equipment that are funded from Ministry of Education and Child Care capital
grants, land capital, local capital, the Operating Fund, and special purpose funds. An annual deficit in the Capital
Fund that is a result of amortization expense and budgeted capital assets purchased from operating and special purpose
funds exceeding the amortization of deferred capital revenue plus budgeted local capital revenue is permitted under the
Accounting Practices Order of the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

==
S
(-]
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
=
b
-
o
(]
>
(]

The following table summarizes the changes in the Capital Fund — actuals for years 2021/22 to 2023/24, amended
budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 | 2028/29
A TE] Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Capital Surplus, beginning of year $89.25 $89.22 $79.90 $81.40 $79.80 $77.61 $75.46  $73.28

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC - - = - - - - -

School Site Acquisition Fees - - - - - R - R

Investment Income 0.06 0.30 - - - - - -

Other Revenue 0.04 0.05 0.06 - - - - -

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6.55 6.68 6.78 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68

Total Revenue 6.65 7.03 6.84 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68
Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 1478

Total Expenses 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 14.78
Net Transfers from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 2.00 112 1.84 116 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

Local Capital 1.92 419 3.60 1.30 1.06 1.06 1.06 1.06

Total Net Transfers 3.92 5.31 5.44 2.46 1.81 1.81 1.81 1.81
Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (0.03) 1.69 1.50 (1.60) (2.19) (215) (218) (2.29)
Prior Period Adjustment - (11.01) - - - - - -

Use of Prior Year Operating Surplus
Accumulated Capital Surplus, end of year $89.22 $79.90 $81.40 $79.80 $77.61 $75.46  $73.28  $70.99

The following table presents confirmed ministry-approved capital projects and the estimated capital spending associated
with these projects over the next four years.

Estimated Amount

Project | Funded by Local | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29

Facility Name Project Description Value Others Funding
($ millions)

Eric Langton Elementary Seismic replacement and expansion $53.76 $51.26 $2.50  $20.40 $8.80 $10.62 $-
Pitt Meadows Secondary Seismic replacement 143.88 143.74 014 6.70 36.00 49.00 51.78
Blue Mountain Elementary Addition 5 prefabricated classrooms 750 750 6.40 0.50

Golden Ears Elementary Addition 8 prefabricated classrooms 12.00 12.00 10.00 1.20

Golden Ears Elementary CNCP - HVAC upgrades 0.56 0.56 0.56

Highland Park Elementary SEP — HVAC upgrades 0.67 0.67 0.67

Highland Park Elementary PEP - Playground upgrade 0.20 0.20 0.20

Riverside Centre FIP — Delivery vehicle 012 012 012

Thomas Haney Secondary SEP - HVAC upgrades 0.51 0.51 0.51

Total $219.20  $216.56 $2.64 $45.56 $46.50 $59.62  $51.78

14 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 38



Local Capital

. . . . > . . 'V,
The local capital balance is comprised of previous years’ operating surpluses, which are transferred to the local m
capital reserve (LCR) and proceeds from the sale of land. With board approval, the funds in the LCR can be used -
to assist in funding capital or operating expenses. The LCR can also be used to fund major initiatives that are not =
funded by the province. 2
The table below summarizes local capital funding priorities over the next four years. 3
£
Local Capital B =
ocal Capital Budget Summary 3
<
($ millions) 2025/26 Proposed Identified Funding
Preliminary Budget Requirements
Contingency Reserve Held in Local Capital $2.1 $0.58
IT Capital Plan 2.27 3.68
Facilities Equipment and Vehicles 0.14 1.93
Child Care Capital 0.24
Virtual Boardroom 0.01
Strategic Facilities Plan Implementation
New Temporary Classrooms 0.90 0.84
Capital Planning 0.09
Sustainability Upgrades 0.57
Other Facilities Renewal m 1.69
Capital Cost Share - Eric Langton Elementary 0.70
Total Local Capital $814 $8.72

Contingency Reserve Held in Local Capital

The Board of Education is responsible for ensuring the district is protected financially from extraordinary
circumstances which would negatively impact school district operations and the education of students. To
discharge this responsibility, the board maintains a contingency reserve of at least 1% of operating expenses and
not exceeding 3% of operating expenses to mitigate any negative impact such circumstances might cause. The
current balance of $2.11M is held in local capital and equates to 0.98% of 2025/26 budgeted Operating Fund
expenses. An increase of $0.58M is needed to meet the 1.25% target.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 15
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 39



==
S
(-]
£
£
-
(%]
(<]
—
=]
-
o
(]
>
(]
I
A

16 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 40



ORGANIZATIONAL SECTION




DISTRICT OVERVIEW

The Board of Education of School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows) meets the learning needs of over

17,000 students of all ages in Maple Ridge and Pitt Meadows, and is defined by its determination to keep student learning
and growth at the heart of all its decisions. The district provides K-12 educational services in 22 elementary schools, six
secondary schools and two alternate schools. It also provides a variety of certificate programs and relevant quality life-long
learning opportunities through Ridge Meadows College and Continuing Education.

ot
Yennadan 57
Elementary
Alouett 26
Elementary
Highland Park Laity View =
Elementar iementary H
i - 'y Hooge 73
e e . Rsiemien, S
mentary | Glenwoo lemen
El S5 74
Pitt Meadows 9 mentary @ Q Q Webster's Corners e t P ok
Elementary Westview 9 Maple Ridge Elementary 38135 34 ] eCh 8. a7 48
Q Secondary Secondary # Alexander Robinson Q ey D s =
Q- Riverside Environmental Golden Ears Elementary Q Wealiy, Bash it 7e
i doney Centre School  Elementary Garibaldi Secondary o 4
Elementary — 0\ 5= (33
Q 9 9 (Connex]
Pitt Meadow Hammans d Whonnod T
Secondary Elementary Thomas Haney Elsmantary
iy Q

Samuel Robertson
Secondary,

Albion Elementary

All decisions made by the school district are guided by its vision, mission and values, and are based on research
and consultation. Similarly, the district’s initiatives and resources are all aligned to support its firm commitment
to fostering an inclusive culture of care and belonging where the well-being, diversity, inclusivity, and success
of all learners is supported and celebrated; providing intentional support for a growth mindset, collaboration,
interdependence, and staft development; and being a forward-thinking, research-informed, effective, efficient,
sustainable, value-based, and connected school district.

The approved preliminary budget for 2024/25 reflected a structural deficit of $2.20 million, as ongoing expenses
exceeded ongoing funding sources. Under board policy, structural deficits are not permitted. To balance the 2024/25
budget, the district used $2.29 million from the prior year’s operating surplus to fund the approved expense
proposals. However, this approach is not sustainable.

The board and senior staff remain committed to eliminating the structural deficit in the 2025/26 budget. The base
budget for 2025/26 initially projected a structural deficit o@g $0.92 million due to rising cost pressures—such as
salaries, benefits, and inflationary increases in non-discretionary expenses—that continue to outpace both funding
increases and internal savings. The proposed ongoing budget adjustments, totaling $1.49 million, fully eliminate this
structural deficit and support the board’s goal of maintaining long-term financial stability.

For 2025/26, the school district is projecting a balanced budget, represented by an ongoing operating surplus of $0.57
million funding a one-time deficit of $0.57 million. This is estimated to be followed by budget funding shortfalls of
approximately $1.44 million for 2026/27, $2.12 million for 2027/28, and $2.20 million for 2028/29.

The board maintains local capital reserves to address capital needs not funded by the provincial government,
including technology infrastructure, facility equipment and vehicles, temporary classrooms, and the renewal of
administrative and maintenance facilities. In accordance with board policy, a minimum contingency reserve of 1%
of budgeted operating expenses ($2.15 million for 2025/26) is held in local capital to mitigate financial risks. An
additional $0.58 million is required to meet the 1.25% target and protect the district from elevated financial risks—
such as the expanded scope of major capital projects in progress, and the impact of U.S. tariffs, which are expected to
raise the cost of construction, maintenance, technology, and classroom supplies.

Over the next four years, the district faces significant funding shortfalls across several key areas: $3.68 million for the
IT capital plan, $1.93 million for facility equipment and vehicles, $0.84 million for new temporary classrooms, and
$1.69 million for renewal of non-school facilities. Without additional funding, the district may need to delay critical
upgrades, reduce investments in operational efficiency, or reallocate resources from other priorities. The local capital
funding shortfalls can be addressed by securing funding from the provincial government for eligible capital projects
and by allocating future available operating surplus funds to local capital.

The school district operates under the authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a corporation and receives
over 90% of revenue from the BC provincial government through the Ministry of Education and Child Care. Any
changes to provincial grants will consequently have a significant impact on the school district’s budget. The school
district is exempt from federal and provincial corporate income taxes.

In accordance with the School Act, school districts in the province must approve a balanced budget for the 2025/26
fiscal year (July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026) and submit it to the Ministry of Education and Child Care by June 30,
2025. The school district developed a preliminary budget that supports its vision and considers its shared priorities
and the needs of its community of learners.

18 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 42



Board of Education

A board of education (“board”) elected for a four-year term governs School District No.42. The Maple Ridge —
Pitt Meadows Board of Education is comprised of five trustees representing the community of Maple Ridge and
two trustees representing the community of Pitt Meadows. Trustees are elected every four years at the same time
as the mayor and city council for the two municipalities.

ELAINE YAMAMOTO KIM DUMORE HUDSON CAMPBELL GABRIEL LIOSIS
BOARD CHAIRPERSON VICE CHAIRPERSON TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

MIKE MURRAY PASCALE SHAW KATIE SULLIVAN
TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

District Leadership

s

Teresa Downs Richard Rennie
Superintendent/CEQ Secretary Treasurer/CFO

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Cheryl Schwarz Jovo Bikic Ken Cober Michael Scarcella  David Vandergugten
Deputy Assistant Assistant Director Assistant
Superintendent Superintendent Superintendent  Learning Services  Superintendent

o
I
(%)
o
(T}
(=]
<t
L
o
o
=
=
T}
(%)

Kevin Abma Dana Sirsiris Irena Pochop Iris Mo Louie Girotto
Director Director Senior Manager  Assistant Secretary Director
Information Technology ~ Human Resources ~ Communications Treasurer Facilities

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 19
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 43



Our vision is for every individual to
feel valued and for all learners to
reach their potential.

OUR VALUES

Responsibility to all learners
We believe that all individuals in
our school district community have
the capacity to learn and that we
are responsible for supporting
their learning.

Uniqueness of each individual

We value the uniqueness of each
learner and embrace diverse ways
of learning. We foster a variety of
instructional methods and provide
support to all learners so that they
can realize their potential.

Diverse learing opportunities

We value choices for all learners,
equity of access to all programs, and
a holistic approach to learning. We
encourage learning opportunities
beyond the classroom. We support
life-long learning.

e mnmoddus (eLOTUR)U)
Be

07 Jaspui WO’

N “Uonesogp

Ispuadap,q

Qur mission is to support all
individuals in their development
as successful learners, and as
respectful, caring and responsible
members of society.

awdohsp J1BIS pue

Personal and social responsibility
We believe that a sense of belonging
is at the heart of our school district
community and is fundamental to
the success of all learners. We are
committed to acting as responsible
stewards within our community. We
cultivate a culture of care within
our school district community, and
seek to develop the leadership and
H‘gh Wm for success citizenship capacity of all learners.

We value the ability of all learners

to set high expectations for

themselves and to describe personal

success. We believe success is

measured through credible evidence
Calture and community of leaming and rigorous self-
We celebrate our many cultures assessment. We are committed to
and seek ways to appreciate and supporting all learners in achieving
embrace diversity. We encourage personal success,
interdependence and collaboration
within the school district community.
We value community partnerships.

20 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 44



SCHOOL

rONTH LS Strategic Directions
e
STT{;;GIG e’ . \ OPERATIONAL
© PLANS
i

INCLUSIVE CULTURE OF CARE AND BELONGING WHERE THE WELL-BEING, DIVERSITY,
IDENTITY, AND SUCCESS OF ALL LEARNERS IS SUPPORTED AND CELEBRATED.

INTENTIONAL SUPPORT FOR A GROWTH MINDSET, COLLABORATION, INTERDEPENDENCE,

YN

@ AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT.
i, © © oy
N Do /
FORWARD-THINKING, RESEARCH-INFORMED, EFFECTIVE, EFFICIENT, SUSTAINABLE,
IMPLEMENTATION VALUE-BASED AND CONNECTED SCHOOL DISTRICT.

Strategic Priorities and Goals

The following are our strategic priorities and related goals for supporting all learners.

EQUITY: Improved learning outcomes and improved levels of safety, care and belonging for every learner.

LITERACY: Improved literacy outcomes.

SOCIAL EMOTIONAL LEARNING: Improved levels of social and emotional well-being.

ASSESSMENT AND REPORTING: Improved assessment and reporting practices.

SECONDARY INNOVATION: Improved levels of engagement and graduation.

ALIGNMENT: Align planning, processes, policies, and procedures to improve efficiency and effectiveness of the system, and support
the success of all learners.

ok wbh =

Strategic goals for the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows school district are established on a rolling four-year planning
cycle and are summarized in departmental operational plans and school growth plans.

Board of Education

1. Continue to adopt, support, and strengthen innovative programs and learning options that
enhance teaching and learning

2. Improve relationships and communication with partner groups, representatives of Indigenous
Peoples, all levels of government, and the communities we serve

3. Advocate for the wellness, safety, and success of all learners
4. Collaborate with other boards through the BC School Trustees Association (BCSTA) on

advocacy matters of mutual interest and on strengthening a meaningful co-governance model
with the provincial government

5. Assess board performance on an annual basis and support trustee professional development by
providing ongoing educational opportunities for trustees and by encouraging trustees to take
advantage of these learning opportunities

6. Review, create, and update board policies and ensure that board policies meet legislative
requirements and reflect school district values

7. Continue to improve the board’s communication plan to ensure increased awareness of the
role and work of the board

8. Support public engagement in school district governance

9. Continue to celebrate success and recognize accomplishments and service of students, staff,
and volunteers

10. Support the superintendent by monitoring and providing feedback on their performance and
growth planning

11. Ensure continuity of leadership through robust succession planning for the superintendent
and key leadership positions

12. Monitor performance against the strategic plan, facilitate annual review of operational plans,
and ensure that budget decisions reflect school district strategic priorities

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 21
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 45



Education

1. Promote and enhance learning by aligning research informed practices, initiatives, resources,
staffing, and supports

2. Continue to adopt meaningful and effective district-wide assessment and reporting practices

3. Identify and increase opportunities for student engagement with inclusive, innovative,
purposeful, and personalized educational experiences aligned with the curriculum

4. Enhance literacy and numeracy outcomes for all learners

5. Support the success and sense of belonging of every Indigenous learner as guided by
the Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act (DRIPA) and informed by the
Deepening Indigenous Education and Equity report

6. Ensure that all learners, regardless of ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, ability, culture,
religion, and family status have a voice and see themselves in our schools and learning activities

7. Promote cultures of caring and belonging through our district-wide approach to Social
Emotional Learning (SEL)

8. Nurture a culture of inclusion and engagement that empowers staff and enables them to grow
and succeed

9. Support inclusive and effective engagement to enhance relationships and collaboration that
informs sound decision making

10. Ensure that school district facilities best meet the educational needs of all learners

Business Operations

1. Ensure that annual Capital Plan submissions to the province and facilities spending plans reflect
the priorities identified in the Strategic Facilities Plan and that facilities are strategically managed

2. Continue to lower climate-changing emissions, build cleaner buildings and prepare for our
future climate

3. Support the achievement of the board’s strategic objectives and the sustainable allocation and
use of resources through budget reviews and comprehensive annual budget processes

4. Design, review and implement adequate internal controls and processes that support
continuous improvement and ensure school district assets are safeguarded and the school
district’s financial position is stable

5. Ensure that our departments have the organizational capacity (people and expertise) to manage
all current and planned initiatives and projects, while maintaining effective regular operations

6. Ensure business continuity through succession planning, strategic recruitment, retention,
professional development and effective risk management

7. Nurture a culture of inclusion and engagement that empowers employees and enables them to
grow and succeed

8. Support our community of learners through inclusive and effective engagement that enables
sound decision making, fosters collaboration, continuous improvement and learning

9. Effectively support the governance function of the Board of Education

10. Continue to effectively represent the district perspective to the provincial government on

business related initiatives

Human Resources

Develop and implement best practices in recruitment and engagement strategies

Continuously review and improve succession planning models to support continuity of key
leadership positions within the organization

Promote joint initiatives, agreements, and collaborative problem-solving with local and
provincial partner groups

Continue to promote the health, safety, and well-being of our employees and ensure continued
compliance with the Workers’ Compensation Act and Occupational Health and Safety regulations

Continue to celebrate success through recognition of employee accomplishments and service

22 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 46

J STUDENT
- AMBASSADOR
b




6. Support and facilitate leadership development, training, and mentorship throughout the
school district

7. Support the review and development of human resource related board policy and procedures
that meet legislative requirements and reflect school district values and expectations and
standards for employees

8. Apply a continuous improvement culture within the HR department and maximize the
utilization of technology to deliver human resource services

9. Utilize human resource metrics to measure operational efficiency and effectiveness in order to
plan for and support our school district’s operational needs

10. Continue to grow our human resource expertise within our HR department and with key
leadership positions within the school district

Information Technology

Ensure that school district technology is strategically managed
Ensure that the most important IT services are properly designed, resourced, and effectively utilized

Measure and report on the performance of IT services

B =

Build a stable IT environment by focusing on staff, service support coverage, and resolution of
IT architectural problems

5. Ensure business continuity and continuity of instruction by focusing on quality backups for
critical systems and disaster recovery

6. Standardize district IT services, streamlining their delivery, support, and overall sustainability

7. Develop and implement an IT governance framework to guide how IT services are
implemented, supported, updated, or changed

8. Identify, effectively manage and mitigate IT related risks for the school district

9. Nurture a culture of inclusion and engagement that empowers employees and enables them to
grow and succeed

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 23
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 47



School Growth Plans

School Growth Plans are prepared annually for each school. Principals work with school staff to develop the
plans. The goals identified in the school growth plans fall into the following six broad categories: assessment and
reporting (AR), secondary innovation (SI), social emotional learning - school culture (SEL), numeracy (NU),
literacy (LIT), and equity (EQ). The table below documents the “big ideas” of the school goals selected by each

school community for 2024/25.

| aR | st | seL | wu | eo | Big Ideas

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

Albion

Literacy, building resiliency, growth mindset

Alexander Robinson

Improving reading skills, community

Alouette

Belonging, community

Blue Mountain

Self-regulation, improving literacy and numeracy skills

c':esqenele Indigenous perspectives, outdoor education, numeracy
Davie Jones Targeted reading interventions, developing confidence in math
Edith McDermott Improving number sense, literacy skills, inclusion, Indigenous Ways of Knowing

Environmental School

Multi-age, multi-generational learning, place based

Eric Langton

Improve reading, writing, numeracy skills, improve executive functioning skills

Fairview Pro-social behaviours, improving reading skills

Glenwood Build community connections, bridge learning gaps in literacy

Golden Ears ::r(a)g;nwugla/ connections, improving engagement in reading using literacy intervention
Hammond Improving financial literacy and number sense,belonging

Harry Hooge Belonging, identity, improving literacy phonemic and phonological awareness

Highland Park

Developing literacy skills, celebrating diversity, building community

Kanaka Creek

Self-regulation, co-regulation, development of literacy skills

Laity View

Improving reading strategies, pro-social behaviour

Maple Ridge Elementary

Building resiliency, improving reading and comprehension skills

Pitt Meadows Elementary

Improving reading skills, building resiliency

Webster's Corners

Building connections, improving reading engagement

Whonnock Improving number sense and reading strategies
Yennadon Improving Collaboration, communication-creating flexible learning opportunities
SECONDARY SCHOOLS

District Alternate

Building relationships, identity

Garibaldi Secondary

Trauma informed practices, anti-racism, diversity, inclusion

Maple Ridge Secondary

Equity, diversity, culturally responsive

Pitt Meadows Secondary

Culturally responsive teaching practices, belonging, diverse assessment practices

Samuel Robertson Tech.

Improving flex time, inclusivity

Thomas Haney Secondary

Culture, community, self directed learning skills

Westview Secondary

Improving numeracy skills, community, belonging

OTHER SCHOOLS AND PROGRAMS

Indigenous Education

Community, belonging, equity

Riverside Centre,
Continuing Education,
Connected Learning
Community

Assessment, culture, community, belonging

24 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 48




BUDGET BACKGROUND

This budget has been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability
Act of the Province of British Columbia supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the
Province of British Columbia Treasury Board. This Section requires that the budget be prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards except in regard to the accounting for government transfers.
For more information about the basis of accounting used please refer to https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/
education-training/k-12/administration/resource-management/school-district-financial-reporting.

As required by the Ministry of Education and Child Care (MECC) and Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Board, the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District tracks and reports revenue and expenditures under three
separate funds: the Operating Fund, the Special Purpose Fund and the Capital Fund.

OPERATING FUND: The Operating Fund includes operating grants and other revenue used to fund instructional
programs, school and district administration, facilities and I'T operations, maintenance, and transportation.

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND: The Special Purpose Fund is comprised of separate funds established to track revenue
and expenditures received from the MECC and other sources that have restrictions on how they may be spent
(e.g. Classroom Enhancement Fund, Annual Facilities Grant, Feeding Futures School Food Programs Fund,
CommunityLINK, and School Generated Funds).

CAPITAL FUND: The Capital Fund includes capital expenditures related to facilities (purchases and
enhancements) and equipment (purchases) that are funded by MECC capital grants, operating funds, and
special purpose funds. An annual deficit in the Capital Fund that is a result of amortization expense and
budgeted capital assets purchased from operating and special purpose funds exceeding the amortization of
deferred capital revenue plus budgeted local capital revenue is permitted under the Accounting Practices Order
of the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

School districts in the province of British Columbia must report revenues and expenditures within a provincially
defined structure. The main revenue and expenditure categories include:

Grants Includes provincial grants received from the provincial or federal government.

Tuition Includes tuition fees for non-resident students enrolled in the international education program,
and fees for students enrolled in Ridge Meadows College.

Rentals and Leases Includes all revenue from rentals and leases of school district facilities.

Investment Income Includes interest from funds deposited by the school district in term deposits and all other
investment income.

Other Revenue Includes donations, fundraising, and other locally generated revenue.

Salaries and Benefits Includes all salaries paid to employees and all benefits paid on behalf of employees including
contributions to pension plans; Canada Pension Plan, Employment Insurance, and WorkSafeBC
premiums; extended health tax; and the cost for extended health and dental benéefit plans.

Services and Supplies Includes the cost of supplies, materials, services rendered, and utilities.

Capital Asset Purchases  Includes the cost of capital assets acquired or constructed, including sites, building, furniture
and equipment, vehicles, and computer software and hardware.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 25
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 49


https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/resource-management/school-district-financial-reporting 
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/resource-management/school-district-financial-reporting 

Budget Process

In accordance with the School Act, school districts in the province must approve a balanced budget and submit
it to the Ministry of Education and Child Care by June 30, 2025. The Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows School
District has developed a preliminary budget that supports its vision, mission, and values, and considers its shared
priorities and the needs of its community of learners. This budget was prepared in accordance with board Policy
4203: Budget Planning and Reporting.

All budget decisions made by the Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows School District are guided by its vision and core

values, are based on research and consultation, and reflect the prioritization principles outlined below:

* Fiscally responsible — the proposed changes represent prudent spending of taxpayer dollars and do
not create a deficit or a structural deficit for the school district

* Strategic alignment — the proposed changes show alignment with school district strategic directions,
priorities and goals; school growth plan goals; and departmental operational plans

* No negative impact on Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF) allocations — the proposed changes
will not result in a reduction of CEF allocations for the school district

* Future proof — the proposed changes create systems and structures that support enrolment growth

The following infographic illustrates the annual financial planning cycle for our school district.

ENROLMENT PRELIMINARY PROPOSED BUDGET PRELIMINARY
PROJECTIONS OPERATING GRANT BUDGET PROCESS BUDGET
JANUARY
. TO
APRIL
(5) N4
SEPTEMBER INTERIM BUDGET AMENDED
ENROLMENT COUNT  OPERATING GRANT PROCESS BUDGET

SEPTEMBER

TO
FEBRUARY

FEBRUARY MAY FINAL
ENROLMENT COUNT ENROLMENT COUNT  OPERATING GRANT

FEBRUARY

TO

ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JuLy

TO

SEPTEMBER

26 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 50


https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/policy-manual/
https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/policy-manual/

Budget Implementation, Monitoring and Reporting
The budget is a “living” document. The Board, through policy, provides appropriate flexibility in budget

management to enable management to ensure effective use of fiscal resources while maintaining budgetary control.

The Superintendent of Schools and the Secretary Treasurer are delegated responsibility for the overall management
of the educational and operational programs that are supported by the annual budget. The Secretary Treasurer is
specifically responsible for the financial management of the budget, and all financial reports.

The Secretary Treasurer or designate is authorized to approve budget transfers within the board-approved budget
to meet contractual obligations, statutory requirements, approved staffing complement, or approved educational/
operational objectives. Permanent budget transfers that are not formula-driven and impact staffing levels must be
approved by the board. Additionally, budget transfers that materially alter the board-approved fiscal plan must be
approved by the board. With the Secretary Treasurer’s approval, expenses may exceed estimates if offset by related
revenue sources.

Unless otherwise instructed by the Board, quarterly financial reports shall be presented to the Board providing a
high level overview of the performance against budget. These reports will include an analysis of budget variances,
with explanations for any variances exceeding 10% of the budgeted amount.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 27
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 51




Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

LR TR D LS C b et ) . Presentation and approval of the proposed budget process and consultation timeline

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, February 12, 2025 . Presentation of projected enrolments for 2025/26, 2026/27, 2027/28, and 2028/29

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

e . Presentation and board approval of the 2024/25 Amended Annual Budget

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

. Presentation of the 2025/26 draft preliminary budget estimates
. Consultation with partner groups on budget priorities

»  Consultation with students on budget priorities

Wednesday, March 5, 2025

FIRST NATIONS AND INDIGENOUS PARTNERS BUDGET CONSULTATION

. Presentation of the 2025/26 draft preliminary budget estimates

«  Co-construct on budget priorities for targeted funds for Indigenous Education
«  Consultation on budget priorities for non-targeted funds

Monday, April 7, 2025

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, April 16, 2025 «  Presentation of the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

Thursday, April 17 to ONLINE BUDGET SURVEY
Thursday, April 23, 2025 «  Online budget survey on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

FIRST NATIONS AND INDIGENOUS PARTNERS BUDGET APPROVAL AND CONSULTATION
Tuesday, April 22, 2025 - Approval of the proposed 2025/26 spending plans for targeted funds
. Feedback on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget for non-targeted funds

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

feties ilaineoes . Public and partner group input on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

. Approval of 2025/26 Budget Balancing Proposals

. Receipt of approved 2025/26 spending plans for targeted Indigenous Education funds
. Adoption of the 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

Wednesday, April 30, 2025

A
Download the budget and consultation summary documents at:
0 https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/2025-budget-process/

28 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 52


https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/2025-budget-process/
https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/budget-process-2023/

FINANCIAL SECTION




PRELIMINARY BUDGET 2025/26

This section includes the preliminary (annual) budget for 2025/26, detailed information by fund for years
2021/22 to 2028/29, and the proposed preliminary budget changes for 2025/26.

The projections in this section have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards and Ministry of Education and Child Care annual budget instructions.

Revenue and Expense (All Funds Combined)

The following table summarizes revenue and expense by object for all funds — actuals for years 2021/22 to
2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC $178.97 $196.07 $219.27 $231.66 $229.75 $234.13 $237.61 $241.06
Provincial Grants - Other 0.39 0.33 0.33 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42
Federal Grants 0.07 0.23 0.32 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36
Tuition 8.16 9.52 10.03 1.22 1.27 11.78 12.20 12.20
Other Revenue 4.31 5.88 7.29 6.89 6.87 6.81 6.81 6.81
Rentals and Leases 0.66 0.83 0.76 0.83 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Investment Income 0.38 1.67 2.45 1.66 110 0.74 0.74 0.74
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6.55 6.68 6.78 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68
Total Revenue 199.49 221.21 24723 259.92 257.67 263.01 267.84 273.16
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 172.33 186.89 210.31 229.57 224.91 230.84 235.08 238.27
Services and Supplies 18.48 22.22 23.70 2618 24.06 23.92 24.26 24.60
Amortization of Capital Assets 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 14.78
Total Expenses 201.41 219.76 24479 266.69 259.98 266.60 27214 277.65
Interfund Transfers - - - - - - - -
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1.92) 1.45 2.44 (6.77) (2.31) (3.59) (4.30) (4.49)
.§ Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year
(S}
= Opening Balance 89.24 89.22 79.90 81.40 79.68 77.49 73.90 69.60
g Use of Prior Year Surplus 6.37 4.47 4.23 517 012 - - -
E Prior Period Adjustment (11.01)
(] Total Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 95.61 82.68 8413 86.57 79.80 77.49 73.90 69.60
m Accumulated Surplus, end of year $93.69 $84.13 $86.57 $79.80 $77.49 $73.90 $69.60 $65.11

Source: 2021/22 - 2023/24 audited financial statements, 2024/25 amended budget, and estimates for future years. The prior period adjustment for 2022/23
relates to an accounting policy change for asset retirement obligations.

The surplus (deficit) for the year is comprised of operating surplus (deficit) and capital surplus (deficit) for

the year. All Operating Fund deficits have been funded from available accumulated surplus carried forward
from a prior year. The capital funds surplus (deficit) is comprised of amortization of deferred capital revenue,
amortization of tangible capital assets, and targeted revenue for specific capital projects that show as expenses in

the year they are recognized under generally accepted accounting principles. An annual deficit is permitted in the
Capital Fund.

While consolidated surpluses for the year were reported, Operating Fund deficits that were balanced in the
preliminary budget using prior year accumulated surplus were $2.04 million in 2021/22, $0.70 million in
2022/23, $1.08 million in 2023/24, and $2.29 million in 2024/25. The use of prior year surplus shown in the
table above for these years is higher because it includes prior year appropriations based on actual financial results.

30 April 30,2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 54



For 2025/26, the operating budget is balanced with the use of prior year surplus of $0.12M; a deficit of $2.19
million is projected for the capital fund. Per Ministerial Order 033/09 “Accounting Practices Order,” a capital
fund deficit is permitted for the amount that amortization of tangible capital assets expense exceeds amortization
of deferred capital revenue.

A detailed analysis by fund for 2025/26 to 2028/29 is included in the following sections of this document.

Reconciliation of All Funds

The following table shows the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget reconciliation between all funds. The end
of the year Capital Fund accumulated surplus of $77.61M represents $73.13M invested in capital assets (non-
cash) and $4.48M held in local capital and appropriated by the board for specific purposes.

($ millions) Operating Fund Purf)’;z:iilund Capital Fund

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC $200.57 $29.18 $- $229.75
Provincial Grants - Other 0.42 0.42
Federal Grants 0.36 0.36
Tuition 1.27 1.27
Other Revenue 1.67 5.20 6.87
Rentals and Leases 0.89 0.89
Investment Income 110 - 110
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 7.01 7.01
Total Revenue 216.28 34.38 7.01 257.67

Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 197.77 2714 224.91
Services and Supplies 17.28 6.78 24.06
Amortization of Capital Assets 11.01 11.01
Total Expenses 215.05 33.92 11.01 259.98

Interfund Transfers 1.35 0.46 (1.81) - m

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (0.12) - (2.19) (2.31)

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year - - 79.80 79.80 '5"'
Opening Balance (012) 79.80 79.68 =
Use of Prior Year Surplus 012 012 9_’

Total Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year - - 79.80 79.80 §

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year $(0412) s$- $77.61 $77.49 §

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 31
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 55



=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

Operating Budget

The Operating Fund includes operating grants and other revenues used to fund instructional programs, school
and district administration, facilities operations, maintenance, and transportation.

This section provides background information for the budget process, together with preliminary budget changes
that form the basis of the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Operating Budget. This section contains:

e asummary of the 2025/26 operating base budget information;

*  major assumptions made when building the 2025/26 base budget and the four-year projections;

e asummary of the 2025/26 revenue and expenses by type and the projected 2025/26 operating budget balance;
* four-year operating budget projections for 2025/26 to 2028/29; and

*  proposed ongoing and one-time budget changes for 2025/26.

Addressing the projected deficits for 2026/27 to 2028/29 will require a combination of revenue increases, expense
reductions, or the use of the contingency reserve in local capital to achieve balanced budgets.

The following table summarizes revenue and expense by object for the Operating Fund — actuals for years
2021/22 to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

($ millions) 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC $157.36  $170.86  $188.52 $19767  $200.57  $204.95  $208.43 $211.88
Provincial Grants - Other 0.39 0.33 0.33 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42 0.42
Federal Grants 0.07 0.23 0.32 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36
Tuition 8.16 9.52 10.03 1.22 1.27 178 12.20 12.20
Other Revenue 0.89 1.08 1.43 1.69 1.67 1.61 1.61 1.61
Rentals and Leases 0.66 0.83 0.76 0.83 0.89 0.89 0.89 0.89
Investment Income 0.31 1.33 2.40 1.66 110 0.74 0.74 0.74
Total Revenue 167.84 18418 203.79 213.85 216.28 220.75 224.65 22810

Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 153.53 164.02 182.41 198.03 197.77 203.74 207.98 2117
Services and Supplies 13.07 15.47 15.58 18.77 17.28 1710 17.44 1778
Total Expenses 166.60 179.49 197.99 216.80 215.05 220.84 225.42 228.95

Capital Purchases and Other 313 4.93 4.86 2.22 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1.89) (0.24) 0.94 (5.17) (0.12) (1.44) (212) (2.20)

Use of Prior Year Operating Surplus 6.37 4.47 4.23 517 012

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year $4.48 $4.23 $5.47 $- $- $(1.44) $(212) $(2.20)

Source: 2021/22 - 2023/24 audited financial statements, 2024/25 amended budget, and estimates for future years.

Operating Budget Estimates

The base budget presented in this section was developed based on a thorough review and analysis of all current
one-time and ongoing district budget allocations and expected changes in enrolment, revenue, and non-
discretionary expenses. The 2025/26 base budget reflects assumptions made for:

*  projected student enrolment changes;

*  projected changes to revenue and staffing due to changes in student enrolment;

* projected changes to revenue due to funding formula changes;

* estimated changes to employee salaries and benefits;

* estimated changes to services, supplies, and utilities due to contractual rate changes and usage; and
* adjustments for one-time revenue or expenses included in the prior year budget.

32 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 56



Student Enrolment Trends and Projections

The student full time equivalent (FTE) enrolment information presented in this section is based on actual full-year
enrolment for 2017/18 to 2023/24, actual enrolment for September and projected enrolment for February and May
for 2024/25, and projected enrolment for 2025/26 to 2028/29. The enrolment history for regular, alternate, online
learning, continuing education, summer learning, and non-graduate adult learners is presented in the following chart.
Funded enrolment has increased by 2,061 FTE (14.0%) during the 8 years ending in 2024/25 and is projected to
increase by another 690 FTE (4.1%) for the 4 years ending 2028/29.

18,000

17,467

17,500 17,294
17,000
16,500
16,000
15,500
15,000
14,500
14,000

13,500

13,000
17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

For 2025/26, full-year enrolment is projected to increase by 75 FTE (0.4%), followed by a projected enrolment
increase of 271 FTE (1.6%) in 2026/27, 171 FTE (1.0%) in 2027/28, and 173 FTE (1.0%) in 2028/29.

Enrolment Projections Assumptions

The four-year headcount enrolment projections for students enrolled in regular K-12 schools were prepared using
the following data:

* population projections generated by Baragar Systems software;

* five-year average (grade-to-grade) transition rates; and

* local knowledge of recent and historical enrolment trends.
The enrolment estimates include an adjustment for grades 10 to 12 where we estimated that the student FTE
enrolment will exceed the estimated student headcount enrolment at the same rate as 2024/25. The funding unit is
full time equivalent student enrolment defined as a student enrolled in eight courses.

=
-
3
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-

Births: The children currently enrolled in grades K-12 were born from 2007 to 2019. The estimated number of
children born after 2019 residing within the school district is a key factor used to forecast the kindergarten cohort
for future years.

Migration: The net impact of youth moving in and out of the school district has been consistently positive over
the last 10 years. The assumptions in this projection are for continued positive migration varying by age group
and consistent with patterns experienced in recent years.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 33
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 57



Enrolment History and Projections

The enrolment history and projections for various categories of students is represented on the following graphs, where:

* 2017/18 to 2023/24 are reported as actual full-year enrolment numbers.

* 2024/25 numbers are actual enrolment for September and projected enrolment for February and May. The
projection for February and May is for continuing education and online learning, and inclusive education.

e All charts reflect student FTE for the fiscal year, except for the summer learning chart, which reflects courses.

* Regular and alternate education includes all students funded by MECC.

REGULAR AND ALTERNATE EDUCATION ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

18,000

16,961 17,134

17,000 16,790
16,519
16,266 16434
16,000 15,896
15,460
14,982
15,000 14,780
14,541
14,327
14,000
13,000
12,000

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

700
600
500
400

300

=
=)
=
(S}
-7}
]
8
(=]
=
<
=
(= ™

200

100

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

34 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 58



CONTINUING EDUCATION AND ONLINE LEARNING ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

350 [ B Online Learning

0 B B Coninuing Education
250

200
150
1

17/18  18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26  26/27 27/28 28/29

v

8

o
(=]

SUMMER LEARNING COURSES ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

1,800
1,603

1,600 1,510 1,510 1,510 1,510
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600

400

200

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 2425 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

INDIGENOUS EDUCATION ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

=
-
3
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-

1,500

1,450

1,400 1,350 1,389

1,350

1,300

1,250

1,200

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29%

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 35
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 59



ENGLISH LANGUAGE LEARNERS ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

3,000

2,525

2,500

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

17/18  18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

INCLUSIVE EDUCATION (LEVEL 1& 2) ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

1,600
1,421
1,400
1,200
1,000

800

600

400

200

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

INCLUSIVE EDUCATION (LEVEL 3) ENROLMENT HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS

500

=
=)
=
(S}
-7}
]
8
(=]
=
<
4=
(= ™

400

405 408 201 414
383 175 388
340
311 319
300 272
218

200

100

17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24{25 25/26 26/27 27/28 28/29

36 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 60



Operating Revenue

Operating Grant

Operating Grant calculations are based on the preliminary operating grants announced by the Ministry of
Education and Child Care on March 13, 2025.

In 2025/26, the Ministry of Education and Child Care will be providing $198.05 million in operating grants to
the school district. This includes Labour Settlement Funding from 2024/25 that was previously provided as an
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care grant.

For 2026/27 to 2028/29, operating grant projections and other provincial-revenue projections are high-level
estimates based on the following assumptions:

e There will be no further changes in the per student operating grants from the province or in other
provincial funding; and

e All future cost increases related to the CUPE and MRTA collective agreements will be fully funded by
the province.

Based on the projected enrolment changes, the operating grant from the Ministry of Education and Child Care is
estimated to increase by $4.38 million in 2026/27, $3.48 million in 2027/28, and $3.45 million in 2028/29.

The table on the following page shows the projected changes in 2025/26 Ministry of Education and Child Care
operating grant funding for all enrolment counts and additional supplemental operating funding. The $2.27M
increase is associated to MECC rate changes and the $2.14M increase is associated to enrolment-driven changes.

Curriculum and Learning Support Fund

The Curriculum and Learning Support Fund is provided to assist districts with implementing initiatives as part

of the new provincial curriculum. This $5.35 million supplement is in place for 2025/26. Boards may consider

ways to leverage these funds with other existing structures and initiatives to further the education programs and
services in the school district. The Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District will continue to receive $0.15
million for 2025/26.

For 2026/27, 2027/28, and 2028/29 our assumption is that the supplement for the Curriculum and Learning
Support Fund funding of $0.15 million will continue to be provided for purposes specified by the province.

Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants
In 2025/26, the following grants are expected to be received:

e $0.19 million student transportation fund - to support student transportation services in our school
district and no changes are estimated for future years;

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-

e $0.77 million Integrated Child and Youth (ICY) Teams grant to fund staffing and resources to our three
ICY hubs. These teams connect children and youth in the community to the care they need to support
mental health and substance use issues.

Other Revenue

Other revenue includes income from tuition, rentals and leases, investments, and other sources. For interest
bearing investments, an ongoing 2% annual interest rate is assumed for 2025/26 to 2028/29 to align with the
Bank of Canada’s long-term target interest rate, and an additional 1% interest rate is assumed for 2025/26 only.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 37
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 61



Funding Change from 2024/25

. . Projected Funding Rate 2025/26
MECC Operating Grant Funding Category Student FTE per FTE Funding Rate Change Rate Change Enrolment
per FTE Total Change Total

Basic Allocation - September Enrolment

Standard Schools 16,234 $9,015 $146,351,854 $100 $1,614,038 $846,373
Continuing Education 2 $9,015 $18,030 $100 $200 $-
Alternate Schools 285 $9,015 $2,569,275 $100 $29,400 $(81,135)
Online Learning 20 $7,280 $145,600 $80 $1130 $42,770
Homeschoolers 21 $250 $5,250 $- $- $-
Course Challenges 37 $282 $10,434 $3 $111 $-

Supplemental Funding - September Enrolment

Unique Student Needs
English Language Learners 1,866 $1,815 $3,386,790 $20 $31,840 $497,310
Indigenous Education 1,403 $1,790 $2,511,370 $20 $27,780 $25,060
Inclusive Education - Level 1 13 $51,300 $666,900 $570 $8,550 $(102,600)
Inclusive Education - Level 2 1,223 $24,340 $29,767,820 $270 $315,630 $1,314,360
Inclusive Education - Level 3 362 $12,300 $4,452,600 $140 $54,320 $(319,800)
Adult Education 26 $5,755 $149,630 $65 $1,803 $(10,071)
Summer Learning - July Enrolment (per course)
Summer Learning Grade 1-7 525 $260 $136,500 $5 $2,665 $(2,080)
Summer Learning Grade 8-9 285 $260 $74,100 $5 $1,525 $(5,200)
Summer Learning Grade 10-12 700 $510 $357,000 $5 $3,830 $(33,660)
Supplemental Summer $219,092 $2,388 $-
Cross-Enrolment (Grade 8-9) - $510 $- $- $50 $(5,100)

February Enrolment

Continuing Education - School Age 2 $9,015 $18,030 $100 $200 $-
Continuing Education - Adults 25 $5,755 $143,875 $65 $1,170 $40,285
Online Learning - Grade K-9 - $3,640 $- $40 $- $-
= Online Learning - Grade 10-12 20 $7,280 $145,600 $80 $1,760 $(14,560)
."§ Online Learning - Adults 5 $5,755 $28,775 $65 $325 $-
% Inclusive Education - Level 1 - $25,650 $- $285 $- $-
E Inclusive Education - Level 2 20 $12.170 $243,400 $135 $2,700 $-
iag; Inclusive Education - Level 3 13 $6,150 $79,950 $70 $1,400 $(43,050)
Newcomer Refugees - $4,508 $- $50 $- $-
m ELL - Newcomer Refugees only - $908 $- $10 $- $-
May Enrolment
Continuing Education - School Age 2 $9,015 $18,030 $100 $200 $-
Continuing Education - Adults 30 $5,755 $172,650 $65 $1,040 $80,570
Online Learning - Grade K-9 - $2,427 $- $27 $- $-
Online Learning - Grade 10-12 10 $7,280 $72,800 $80 $1,760 $(87,360)
Online Learning - Adults 2 $5,755 $11,510 $65 $130 $-
Additional Supplemental Funding
Equity of Opportunity Supplement $499,319 $1,707 $-
Unique Geographic Factors $2,849,922 $140,524 $-
Salary Differential $2,715,135 $14,588 $-
Curriculum and Learning Support Fund $148,055 $1,626 $-
Indigenous Education Councils $76,700 $8,200 $-
TOTAL $198,045,996 $2,272,590 $2142,112

38 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 62



Operating Expenses

Salaries and Benefits

Staffing

Staffing allocations have been reviewed to ensure the classroom teaching staffing allocated to schools from the
operating fund is sufficient to support the creation of school organizations within the School Act-stipulated
class-size limits by grade. Preliminary organizations have been created for all elementary schools based on
estimated enrolment by school for 2025/26. The secondary stafling allocations have been reviewed to ensure
accuracy of staffing allocations. For 2025/26, all classroom teacher allocations will be based on student FTE
with no supplemental staffing for specialty courses. The classroom teaching staffing required is summarized in
the table that follows.

m School Act Class Size Student FTE Enrolment Classroom Teacher FTE

Kindergarten 1:22 1140 58.77
Grade 1-3 1:24 3,709 172.03
Grade 4-7 1:30 5,242 195.54
Grade 8-12 1:30 6,428 231.91
Total 16,519 658.25

The actual staffing required will not be confirmed until October 2025 when the actual student enrolment for
September 2025 is known and schools are re-organized to meet the collective agreement mandated class size
and composition by grade and course type. The stafhing required to meet collective agreement requirements is
funded by the Ministry of Education and Child Care under the Classroom Enhancement Fund. This funding is
confirmed in December 2025; however, school staffing and organization must occur in May-June 2025.

For 2025/26, it is estimated that an additional 0.80 FTE occupational therapists and 0.28 FTE vice principal
administration will be required to support increased enrolment.

It is expected that the restored collective agreement language for the Maple Ridge Teachers’ Association (MRTA)
will continue to result in increased staffing allocations that are estimated to continue to be fully funded by the
province under the Classroom Enhancement Fund for the next four years.

Salary and Benefit Costs Changes
In 2025/26, salaries and benefits budgets are estimated to increase by $0.56 million comprised of:

* an increase in average teacher salaries ($1.29M);

e an increase in other salaries ($0.03M);

* an increase in benefit rate usage ($0.94M);

e adecrease in generated classroom teacher prep time, covered by teacher librarians ($1.2M); and

* adecrease in education assistants budget due to anticipated unplanned vacancies ($0.50M).

The collective agreement with the Maple Ridge Teachers” Association (MRTA) was ratified in 2022. This contract
will end June 30, 2025, and projections for 2025/26 to 2028/29 reflect no wage increases as future wage increases
are uncertain.

The collective agreement with the Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE) was ratified in 2023. This
contract will end June 30, 2025, and projections for 2025/26 to 2028/29 reflect no wage increases as future wage
increases are uncertain.

In 2022, the BC Public Schools Employers’ Association (BCPSEA) reviewed the compensation models for
principals, vice principals, and other non-unionized staff and provided the school district with new salary grids
for all non-unionized staff. All salary changes for non-unionized staff are implemented based on policy directives

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 39
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 63

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

provided by the Public Sector Employers’ Council (PSEC) and BCPSEA. Projections for 2025/26 to 2028/29
assume no wage increases.

Benefit costs are estimated to increase by $0.94 million. The estimated increase is related to the following:

e CPP: Up $137K due to a projected increase in the yearly maximum pensionable earnings from
$71,300 to $74,200 at the existing rate of 5.95% plus the second-tier rate projected increase for
maximum pensionable earnings from $81,200 to $84,500 at the existing rate of 4.00%.

e EI: Up $50K due to a projected increase in the yearly maximum insurable earnings from $65,700 to
$68,700 at the existing rate of 1.64%.

*  WorkSafeBC: Increase of $34K due to an estimated increase of maximum insurable earnings from
$121,500 to $127,575 at the existing rate of 1.94%.

*  Extended Health: Up $480K due to 12.41% premium increase for teachers, 12.38% premium
increase for CUPE, and increased enrolment in the plan.

e Dental: Up $209K due to 4.78% premium increase for teachers, 7.86% premium increase for CUPE,

and increased enrolment in the plan.

* Life Insurance: Up $26K due to 43% premium increase for CUPE.

For years 2026/27 to 2028/29, the salaries and benefits budgets are estimated based on the following assumptions:

*  Annual teacher increment costs will remain consistent with increment costs experienced in 2025/26
*  Cost increases for employee benefits will not be provincially funded
*  BCPSEA-approved salary ranges for non-unionized staff will remain unchanged for 2026/27 to 2028/29

*  Thatall costs related to the implementation of the restored MRTA collective agreement language will be
fully funded by the Ministry of Education and Child Care through the Classroom Enhancement Fund

* That any negotiated labour settlements for MRTA and CUPE will be fully funded by the province;

therefore, this is not included as increased costs or increased revenue

The projections assume all other benefit cost rates, including employer health tax at the existing rate of 1.95%,
and pension plans, will remain unchanged for the next four years.

Services, Supplies and Utilities

In 2025/26, services and supplies budgets, which include utilities, have increased by $0.09 million due to the
following known factors:

* Inflationary increases of $34K

e Water and sewer cost increase of 4.5% ($25K)

*  Electricity cost increase of 3% effective April 1, 2025 ($30K)

*  Natural gas cost decrease of $21K due to decreased consumption

e Software licenses contractual cost increases of $21K

Our estimates assume a CPI inflation for services and supplies of 2% ($0.34M) in 2026/27, 2% ($0.34M)
in 2027/28, and 2% ($0.34M) in 2028/29. No changes to service levels and existing budget allocations are
contemplated in these projections.

The provincial government’s recent announcement to eliminate the consumer carbon tax effective April 1, 2025,
has not been reflected in the preliminary budget estimates. Given the uncertainty regarding the financial and
operational impacts of this policy change—including how provincial funding programs may be impacted—no
adjustments have been made at this time.

40 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 64



One-Time Items Not Included in Base Budget
The following one-time budget items included in the 2024/25 budget are not included in the 2025/26 base budget:

2024/25 One-Time Budget Items ($ millions)

2024/25 One-Time Preliminary Budget Changes
Support for School Growth Plans

Literacy $0.1
Numeracy 0.02
Early Learning 0.05
Secondary Assessment Committee 0.02
Safe and Caring Schools 0.07
Indigenous Education, Racial Inclusivity and Equity 0.09
Student Voice Leadership 0.04
School Staffing 0.03

Support for Operational Plans

Facilities 0.03
Human Resources 0.08
Ridge Meadows College (RMC)* 0.01

Learning Services

Education Assistant Training 0.24
Student Transportation 0.28
2023/24 Use of Surplus 2022/23 (2.29)

(1.22)

2024/25 One-Time Amended Budget Changes
Other Revenue, Expenses, and Savings 0.33
2024/25 Amended Budget Structural Deficit $(0.89)

* RMC budget changes approved in 2024/25 on a one-time basis for a two year term, subject to a mid-term evaluation, are not proposed to continue in

2025/26

Indigenous Education

The Ministry of Education and Child Care provides enhanced funding to school-age students of Indigenous
ancestry. Enhanced funding provides culturally appropriate educational programs and services to support the success
of Indigenous students.

=1
S
)
=

Targeted Indigenous education funding requires the collaboration of boards of education and local Indigenous
communities to develop and deliver Indigenous education programs and services that integrate academic
achievement and Indigenous culture or language or both. School age students of Indigenous ancestry participating
in Indigenous education programs and receiving services offered by the school district are eligible for Indigenous
education funding. Adult students are not eligible for funding.

uoNas [e

The following table summarizes the projected enrolment and targeted funding for the next four years.

_ 2025/26 Budget 2026/27 Budget 2027/28 Budget | 2028/29 Budget

Enrolment 1,403 1,416 1,429 1,442
Funding Rate $1,790 $1,790 $1,790 $1,790
Targeted Funding $2,51,370 $2,534,640 $2,557,910 $2,581,180

Targeted funding provided to boards of education must be spent on the provision of Indigenous education cultural
programs and services that support the education areas identified in the recommendations of the Deepening
Indigenous Education and Equity report (2022).

Local First Nations and Indigenous partners met on April 7, 2025, to review current budget allocations and to

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 41
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 65



provide input regarding 2025/26 budget priorities for the Indigenous education targeted funding, and will meet
again on April 22, 2025, to review the proposed budget and provide further input.

The 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget for Indigenous education targeted funding is summarized below.

2025/26
Proposed
Preliminary
Budget

Description

Salaries and benefits for 0.95 FTE Indigenous Education District Principal, 1 FTE Clerical, 6.65 FTE Indigenous Resource Teachers, 21 FTE $2.269,220
Indigenous Support Workers (1 FTE equals 30 hours per week), and staff replacement costs T

Cultural learning programs including artist in residence and Elder in residence professional services, cultural supplies and books 67,635
Family and community events including food and cultural supplies 48,716
Honoraria and supplies including professional services, food for students and meetings, cultural supplies, office supplies, and phones 41,552
Transitions programs including professional services, field trips, and supplies for leadership activities 31,000
Training and travel for staff to meet departmental goals, travel for itinerant staff, and travel to three annual regional sessions for 21500
Indigenous education principal ’

Awards program (annual event including supplies, professional services, and food) 16,747
Language revitalization facilitated development & resources 15,000
Total Indigenous Education Targeted Funding $2,511,370
Pilot project of 2 FTE Indigenous Child Care Worker funded from 2024/25 carryforward $107,030

Indigenous Education Council Funding

Our district, like all districts, is working towards the establishment of an Indigenous Education Council (IEC)
in accordance with Bill 40 and IEC policy. Targeted Indigenous Education Council funding was first allocated
in 2024/25 to support the implementation of an IEC. It provides for secretariat and administrative support plus
travel to attend district, regional, and provincial meetings. The 2025/26 funding allocation is $76,700, and is
projected to remain unchanged.

Ridge Meadows College

Ridge Meadows College (RMC) provides quality employment-focused educational opportunities. RMC has
developed a comprehensive business plan which outlines a path for transformation. This plan includes both
the development and expansion of post-secondary programs and services available for community members.
In the past two years, RMC has demonstrated growth in student enrolment, the introduction of new academic
programs, and the implementation of a dual-credit grant.

ion

| Sect

©
S
[—
(<]
=

The revenue and expense estimates for RMC are summarized in the following table.

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

A -

Revenues
Tuition $775,227 $857,876 $1,045,707  $1,206,218  $1,331,471  $1595367  $2,015,563  $2,015,563
Federal Grants 70,281 229,789 413,559 362,900 362,900 362,900 362,900 362,900
Provincial Grants and Contracts - 23,200 44,563 115,600 115,600 115,600 115,600 115,600
Total Revenue $845,508  $1110,865  $1,503,829  $1,684,718 $1,809,971 $2,073,867 $2,494,063 $2,494,063
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits $506,182 $837,886 $1139,623  $1313,431  $1,244374  $1,601198  $1925569  $1,925,569
Service and Supplies 277,237 235,957 349,394 315,760 305,722 364,044 384,107 384,107
Total Expenses $783,419  $1,073,843  $1,489,017  $1,629,191 $1,550,096 $1,965,242 $2,309,676 $2,309,676
Net Contribution $62,089 $37,022 $14,812 $55,527  $259,875  $108,625  $184,387 $184,387

42 April 30,2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 66



The revenue growth for 2025/26 is attributed to two new course offerings for the school year: community
support worker, and core construction.

RMC expenses have been adjusted to reflect the programs expected to be offered each year. These expenses do
not include indirect costs such as administrative support and facility usage.

International Education

The district has a multi-year business plan to support non-resident students in the International Education
program that is built around four main priorities: international recognition, outstanding education experience,
authentic Canadian cultural experience, and positive economic impact. The projected program enrolment is

550 FTE for 2025/26 and the following three years.

The expense estimates for the academic and short-term programs are summarized in the following table. These
expenses do not include indirect costs such as administrative support and facility usage.

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget
Revenues

Academic Program Enrolment

Elementary (FTE) 48 68 59 58 60 60 60 60
Secondary (FTE) 405 446 482 500 490 490 490 490
Total FTE 453 514 541 558 550 550 550 550

Academic Program Revenue

Tuition - Elementary $672,000 $986,000 $855,500 $887,400 $960,000 $972,000 $972,000 $972,000
Tuition - Secondary 5,680,950 6,482,003 7,049,490 7,718,925 7,563,925 7,661,925 7,661,925 7,661,925
Application/Custodial Fees 160,000 144,648 126,452 261,600 261,600 261,600 261,600 261,600
Homestay Placement Fees 132,984 145,850 175,735 198,299 198,299 198,299 198,299 198,299
Medical Fees 519,055 637,939 672,770 686,616 677,016 752,416 752,416 752,416
Total Academic Revenue 7,164,989 8,396,440 8,879,947 9,752,840 9,660,840 9,846,240 9,846,240 9,846,240

Short-Term Program Revenue

Tuition 29,249 167,743 123,648 187,431 225,483 303,815 303,815 303,815
Medical Fees 1,360 4,200 2,830 8,712 8,712 12,110 12,110 12,110 m
Total Short-Term Revenue 30,609 171,943 126,478 196,143 234,195 315,925 315,925 315,925
Total Revenue $7195,598 $8,568,383  $9,006,425 $9,948,983 $9,895,035  $10162,165  $10162,165  $10,162,165 =
Expenses g
Academic Program ;‘7”
Salaries and Benefits $3,715,960 $4101,397  $4703,299  $5116,409  $5,084,194  $5185,878  $5185,878  $5,185,878 g_
Services and Supplies 1,578,626 1,964,179 2,100,100 2,319,302 2,251,282 2,316,308 2,362,634 2,409,886 S
Total Academic Expenses 5,294,586 6,065,576 6,803,399 7435711 7335476 7502186 7,548,512 7,595,764

Short-Term Program

Salaries and Benefits 5,149 18,589 14,390 1717 27,830 28,387 28,387 28,387
Services and Supplies 7,470 52,147 45,986 56,892 76,292 97,592 97,592 97,592
Total Short-Term Expenses 12,619 70,736 60,376 74,009 104,122 125,979 125,979 125,979
Homestay Program
Salaries and Benefits 280,012 298,932 321,854 324183 326,61 337,280 337,280 337,280
Services and Supplies 21,851 18,001 18,761 17,820 19,970 18,540 18,540 18,540
Total Homestay Expenses 301,863 316,933 340,615 342,003 346,581 355,820 355,820 355,820
Total Expenses 5,609,068 6,453,245 7,204,390 7,851,723 7786179  7983,985 8,030,311 8,077,563
Net Contribution $1,586,530 $2,115,138  $1,802,035 $2,097,260 $2,108,856  $2,178,180  $2,131,854 $2,084,602

2025/26 and 2026/27 reflect board-approved tuition rates. While a collective agreement is yet to be signed, the salaries and benefits for the academic
program for 2026/27 have been increased by 2% to align with anticipated inflation, given approved rate increases for revenue have been applied. Similarly,
services and supplies for the academic program for years 2026/27 to 2028/29 have been increased by 2%.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 43
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 67



Revenue for 2025/26 reflects tuition rates of $16,000 for elementary students and $15,500 for secondary
students as approved by the board on March 6, 2024. Revenue for 2026/27 reflects tuition rates of $16,200
for elementary students and $15,700 for secondary students as approved by the board on February 12, 2025.

Expenses for the International Education program are adjusted in the base budget to reflect enrolment driven
changes and contractual obligations.

In 2025/26, international short-term programming revenue is estimated to increase to $234K with expense
increase to $104K to give a net contribution of $130K. For 2026/27, it is anticipated to continue to increase
revenue to $316K with expenses of $126K and a net contribution of $190K.

The Net Contribution for 2025/26 is a decrease of $0.06M mainly due to a $71K decrease due to enrolment,
average salary, and benefit changes offset by $60K increase in service and supplies, revenue, and cultural
program changes.

For 2026/27, total services and supplies expenses ($181K) related to increased tuition and orientation fees are
anticipated, along with increased staffing costs.

Continuing Education and Online Learning

The Continuing Education program provides a variety of courses for individuals aged 16 or older, including
adult graduation, high school graduation, and English language foundations. Classes are offered in person

and online during the day and evening. Courses are tuition free for non-graduated resident students and for
graduated resident students enrolled in foundations and academic upgrading courses funded by the Ministry

of Education and Child Care.

The Continuing Education team has established a successful working relationship with both Alouette
Correctional Centre for Women and Fraser Regional Correctional Centre creating opportunities for students
in these facilities to engage in formal academic learning.

The district continues to evaluate and refine its continuing education programs to ensure they meet the
evolving needs of the community.

Revenue and expenses for Continuing Education and Online Learning are presented in the following table.

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

E Revenues
=]
g Provincial Grants - MECC
] School-Age $519,414 $393,756 $348,698 $471,990  $418,090 $418,090 $418,090 $418,090
% Non-Graduated Adult 227,608 413,089 490,633 391,188 506,440 506,440 506,440 506,440
= Graduated Adult 89,912 117,262 214,695 154,950 296,382 296,382 296,382 296,382
m Fee Payers 54,800 24,180 51,845 28,775 28,775 28,775 28,775 28,775
Total Revenue $891,734 $948,287  $1,105,871 $1,046,903 $1,249,687  $1,249,687 $1,249,687  $1,249,687
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits $977,889 $921,508 $1172,332  $1194,447  $1,344163  $1344,163  $1,344163  $1,344,163
Service and Supplies 43,640 23,500 59,834 43,413 32,925 32,925 32,925 32,925
Total Expenses 1,021,529 945,008 1,232,166 1,237,860 1,377,088 1,377,088 1,377,088 1,377,088
Net Contribution (Loss) $(129,795) $3,279  $(126,295)  $(190,957)  $(127,401)  $(127,401)  $(127,401)  $(127,401)

44 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 68



Operating Budget Four-Year Projections

Based on the assumptions detailed above, the following table summarizes the operating budget projections for
the next four years.

OPERATING BUDGET FOUR-YEAR PROJECTIONS

($ millions)
Ongoing Base Budget Changes
Incremental Cost Changes
Changes in Salaries and Benefits
Salary rate increases $(1.32) $(1.29) $(1.29) $(1.29)
Benefit rate and usage increases (0.94) (0.83) (0.83) (0.83)
Other changes to teacher and education assistant 1.50
Services, Supplies and Utilities (0.09) (0.24) (0.28) (0.29)
(0.85) (2.36) (2.40) (2.41)
Enrolment Driven Changes 113 0.43 0.25 0.26
MECC Funding Changes (other than enrolment driven) 0.06
Revenue and Expense Changes
Impact of prior year’s budget (0.89) 0.57
International Education (0.06) 0.07 (0.05) (0.05)
Ridge Meadows College 014 (0.15) 0.08
Other ongoing revenue and expenses (0.45)
(1.26) 0.49 0.03 (0.05)
Total Ongoing Base Budget Changes (0.92) (1.44) (212) (2.20)
Total One-Time Base Budget Changes 0.44
Total Base Budget Changes (Projected Shortfall) (0.48) (1.44) (212) (2.20)
Total Ongoing Proposed Budget Changes 1.49
Total One-Time Proposed Budget Changes (113)
Use of Prior Year Surplus 012
Total Projected Shortfall $- $(1.44) $(212) $(2.20)

=1
S
)
=

Projected Operating Base Budget for 2025/26

Based on projected cost increases and enrolment changes for 2025/26, the base operating budget deficit is estimated
to be $0.48 million ($0.92 million ongoing budget shortfall and $0.44 million one-time budget surplus). The
estimated available 2024/25 surplus of $0.12 million is proposed to be used to fund one-time changes in 2025/26.

2025/26 Projected Operating Budget Balance

uoNas [e

($ millions)
Salary and benefit changes Schedule 1 $(0.56)
Services, supplies, and utility changes Schedule 2 (0.09)
Enrolment driven changes Schedule 3 m
Other changes Schedule 4 (1.00)
MECC funding changes (other than enrolment) 0.06
Projected Base Operating Budget Shortfall (0.48)
Proposed Ongoing Budget Changes 1.49
Proposed One-Time Budget Changes (113)
Use of Prior Year Surplus 012
Total Projected Operating Budget Shortfall s$-

Schedules 1-4 that follow provide further detail on the base budget changes summarized above.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 45
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 69



M 2025/26 PROJECTED CHANGE IN SALARIES AND BENEFITS

FTE ($ millions)
Salary and benefit changes

Increase in average teacher salaries $(1.29)
Increase in average associated support salaries (0.01)
Increase in support salaries (0.01)
Increase in general wage for trustees (0.01)
Classroom teacher prep time covered by librarians 913 1.20
Anticipated unplanned vacancies for education assistants * 8.79 0.50
0.38

Benefit rate and usage changes
Increase in CPP (0.14)
Increase in El (0.05)
Increase in WorkSafeBC (0.03)
Increase in non-statutory benefits (0.72)
(0.94)
Total Projected Change in Salaries and Benefits $(0.56)

* The anticipated unplanned vacancy reduction of education assistants of 8.79 FTE is based on
historical vacancy savings realized in recent years. The 8.79 FTE is a reduction in budget only
and is still available to be staffed based on the needs in the schools.

m 2025/26 PROJECTED CHANGE IN SERVICES, SUPPLIES AND UTILITIES

($ millions)

Services, supplies and utilities changes
Increase in utilities $(0.03)
Increase in software licenses (0.02)
Increase in other services and supplies due to inflation (0.04)
Total Projected Change in Services, Supplies and Utilities $(0.09)

ion

| Sect

©
S
[—
(<]
=

A -

46 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 70



2025/26 PROJECTED ENROLMENT DRIVEN CHANGES

2024/25 2025/26 2024/25 2025/26 Student FTE | Budget Change
Rate Rate Student FTE | Student FTE Change ($ millions)

PROJECTED REVENUE CHANGES

September Enrolment

Regular and Continuing Education - School Age $8,915 $9,015 16,436.38 16,521.26 84.89 $0.76
Online Learning 7,200 7,280 1413 20.00 5.88 0.04
Adults 5,690 5,755 2175 26.00 (1.75) (0.01)
Inclusive Education - Level 1 50,730 51,300 15.00 13.00 (2.00) (0.10)
Inclusive Education - Level 2 24,070 24,340 1,169.00 1,223.00 54.00 1.31
Inclusive Education - Level 3 12,160 12,300 388.00 362.00 (26.00) (0.32)
English Language Learners 1,795 1,815 1,592.00 1,866.00 274.00 0.50
Indigenous Education 1,770 1,790 1,389.00 1,403.00 14.00 0.02
February Enrolment
Continuing Education - School Age 8,915 9,015 2.00 2.00 - =
Continuing Education - Adult 5,690 5,755 18.00 25.00 7.00 0.04
Online Learning - Grade K-9 3,600 3,640 = = = =
Online Learning - Grade 10-12 7,200 7,280 22.00 20.00 (2.00) (0.01)
Online Learning - Adult 5,690 5¥55 5.00 5.00 = =
Inclusive Education - Level 1 25,365 25,650 - - - -
Inclusive Education - Level 2 12,035 12,170 20.00 20.00 - -
Inclusive Education - Level 3 6,080 6,150 20.00 13.00 (7.00) (0.04)
Newcomer Refugees 4,458 4,508 - - - -
English Language Learner - Newcomer Refugees Only 898 908 - - - -
May Enrolment
Continuing Education - School Age 8,915 9,015 2.00 2.00 - -
Continuing Education - Adult 5,690 5,755 16.00 30.00 14.00 0.08
Online Learning - Grade K-9 2,400 2,427 - -
Online Learning - Grade 10-12 7,200 7,280 22.00 10.00 (12.00) (0.09)
Online Learning - Adult 5,690 5,755 2.00 2.00 - -
Summer Learning (0.04)
Total Changes in Operating Grant Funding 214
Graduated Adults 5,690 5,755 28.50 51.50 23.00 013
Total Projected Revenue Changes $2.27

PROJECTED EXPENSE CHANGES

Enrolment Driven Staffing Changes

Employee FTE | Budget Change
Change ($ millions)

Teachers 712 (0.93)

Occupational therapists 0.80 (0.1)

Vice principal administration 0.28 (0.03)
Additional Enrolment Driven Expense Changes

Services and supplies (0.06)

Indigenous education (0.03)
Total Projected Expense Changes (116)
Total Enrolment Driven Changes $111

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 47
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 71

=1
S
)
=

uoNas [e




LY 2025/26 PROJECTED OTHER CHANGES TO THE BUDGET

($ millions)
Ongoing Impact of 2024/25 Amended Budget $(0.89)
2025/26 Ongoing Revenue and Expenses

Indigenous Education (0.04)
International Education (0.06)
Teacher professional development (0418)
Ridge Meadows College 014
Child Care 0.06
Interest income 0.05
HVAC contracted services (0.1)
Other facilities (0.05)
Information technology (0.1)
Miscellaneous expense (0.07)
(0.37)

2025/26 One-Time Revenue and Expenses
Interest income 0.36
Community rentals (0.01)
Information technology (0.08)
Miscellaneous expense (0.02)
0.26
Total Projected Other Changes $(1.00)

=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

48 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 72



Proposed Preliminary Budget Changes for 2025/26

Since 2015/16, enrolment in the Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows School District has been increasing annually.
While this trend is projected to continue, the growth rate is expected to be lower than in recent years. At the
same time, the district is facing a structural deficit in 2024/25 that requires difficult decisions to ensure financial
sustainability moving forward.

Several factors contribute to these budget challenges, including the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s
funding model and allocations, commitments within collective agreements, and rising costs due to inflation that
are not adequately funded.

To address the structural deficit while maintaining student supports and essential services, the district has
conducted a thorough review of existing systems, structures and strategies. This process has required difficult but
necessary adjustments to the base budget, along with proposed budget changes, to reduce spending in some areas
while aligning resources with strategic priorities.

The base budget presented in the previous section was developed through a thorough review and analysis of all
current one-time and ongoing district budget allocations, as well as expected changes in enrolment, revenue,
and non-discretionary expenses. The budget remains heavily focused on human resource, with 91% allocated

to salaries and benefits. In many cases, increased enrolment automatically triggers staffing increases based on
ministry, board, and collective agreement formulas. This includes positions such as classroom teachers, support
teachers, counsellors, English Language Learning teachers, teacher-librarians, principals and vice principals,
clerical staff, and lunch hour supervisors. These formula-driven staffing increases are reflected in the base budget
and not as proposals in this section.

The proposed preliminary budget changes for 2025/26 that are outlined in the following section were developed
through a comprehensive consultation process. Input on budget priorities was gathered from First Nations and
Indigenous partners, Student Voice representatives, all partner groups, managers, principals and vice principals,
and the board. The budget review process has been guided by and aligned with the strategic directions set in

the board’s strategic plan, school growth plans, departmental operational plans, the strategic facilities plan, and
budget prioritization principles.

Following the April 16, 2025, presentation of the Proposed Preliminary Budget for 2025/26, feedback on the
proposed budget was collected through an online survey, the April 22, 2025, Indigenous Education Community
meeting (Katzie First Nation, Kwantlen First Nation, Golden Ears Métis Society, and Fraser River Indigenous
Society), written submissions, and presentations at the April 23, 2025 Finance Committee of the Whole
meeting. A summary of the feedback received can be reviewed on the district website in the 2025/26 Proposed
Preliminary Budget Public Engagement Summary.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 49
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 73

=
-
3
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

1.0 Support for School Growth Plans

Each year, school staff review student progress and develop school growth plans to improve student learning,.
The goals identified in the school growth plans fall into six themes: equity, literacy, social emotional learning,
numeracy, assessment and reporting, and secondary innovation.

Achieving the goals outlined in these plans requires resources, some of which is reflected in the ongoing base
budget. These resources include dedicated staffing, collaborative planning time, and learning resources. Ongoing
investment in these areas continues to drive improvements in student achievement as demonstrated by rising six-
year graduation rates.

There is alignment between school growth plan themes, board-approved stafling, and learning resources—all
dedicated to student learning. These priorities are further reinforced by the provincial goals set by the Ministry of

Education and Child Care through the Framework for Enhancing Student Learning.

Supporting Effective Literacy Practices

Recently, the Ministry of Education and Child Care announced an enhanced focus on literacy, including an
investment in school districts through the Literacy Professional Learning Grant. At the same time, the school
district continues to prioritize literacy as a strategic goal, reflected in the majority of school growth plans. We
recognize the importance of providing effective literacy instruction, assessment, and interventions that reflect the
uniqueness and interests of students.

Over the last two years, we have developed a literacy framework for the district based on current research. We
have also provided learning opportunities and resources aligned with this framework. We are now building
on this foundation by developing a district literacy strategy. For the 2025/26 school year we will focus on K-3
students and educators. This will involve the implementation of a literacy screener and other recommended
assessments to help teachers better support a students’ literacy development. Literacy helping teachers, in
collaboration with other teachers, will develop literacy instructional supports and guides for instruction,
assessment, and intervention. Professional learning will be provided for K-3 teachers in the upcoming school
year. In addition, resources and communication materials will be developed for parents and guardians.

It is proposed that 1 FTE of literacy helping teacher staffing at a cost of $135K be allocated on a one-time basis
to maintain the current allocation of two elementary literacy helping teachers serving our 22 elementary schools.
The funding breakdown is as follows:

* 0.2 FTE ($27K) from the Literacy Professional Learning Grant special purpose fund

* 0.4 FTE ($54K) from the Curriculum Learning and Support Fund within the Operating Fund

* 0.4 FTE ($54K) from other operating funds

It is proposed that $135K be allocated on a one-time basis for 1 FTE literacy helping teacher staffing to support literacy initiatives in schools, with
$108K of this amount funded from the Operating Fund.

Supporting Effective Numeracy Practices

District and provincial data demonstrate the need to prioritize numeracy instruction to ensure that students
develop strong numeracy skills. During 2024/25, multiple professional learning opportunities were provided to
support effective numeracy instruction and assessment practices. These included differentiated entry points for
learners, growth mindset strategies in math, multiple ways for students to demonstrate learning, and hands-on
problem solving and concrete ways to think about and solve math problems. These learning opportunities were
delivered through workshops in schools, side-by-side team teaching, lunch-and-learning sessions, and online
developed resources.

In addition, during 2024/25, we have been working with a group of teachers from three elementary schools

to explore effective numeracy pedagogy and assessment practices. The goal is to strengthen understanding of

the numeracy curriculum and effective numeracy instruction by working with curriculum progressions and
assessment practices that align with the Universal Design for Learning (UDL) Framework. This working group
will continue their work in 2025/26 to create a numeracy instructional framework and a year-end summative
numeracy assessment tool ready for spring 2026. This new tool will replace the current year-end BC Performance
Standards Numeracy Assessment in our Parent Portal and will provide more detailed data to support instructional
planning and intervention.

50 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 74




It is proposed that $30K be allocated on a one-time basis to expand our district’s numeracy exploration teams to
continue their work on creating numeracy curricular progressions and formative and summative assessment tools.

The funding breakdown is as follows:
*  $20K from a carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 numeracy funds (not fully utilized due to TTOC shortages)
*  $10K from the Curriculum Learning and Support Fund

These funds will support district and school-based workshops on topics such as inquiry-based numeracy, K/1
Numeracy Series, hands-on and open learning tasks using the UDL framework.

It is proposed that $20K be allocated as a carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 numeracy funds and $10K be allocated on a one-time basis
to expand our district’s numeracy exploration teams to continue their work on creating numeracy curricular progressions and formative and
summative assessment tools.

Successful Learning Opportunities for Secondary Learners

There has been an ongoing focus on enhancing secondary assessment and instructional practices to support all
secondary-aged learners in achieving meaningtul high school graduation outcomes.

The diversity of secondary-aged learners continues to grow, along with the need for learners and educators to adapt
to the ever-changing landscape of the pathways to contribute to society. In addition, a recent ministry audit has
provided an opportunity to review alternate educational and alternative learning opportunities in the district. This
review will help ensure that secondary schools and programs are effectively supporting all students towards graduation.

It is proposed that $20K of the Curriculum Learning and Support Fund be allocated on a one-time basis, to support
this work among secondary leaders, educators and students.

It is proposed that $20K of the Curriculum Learning and Support Fund be allocated on a one-time basis to review what alternate educational and
alternative learning opportunities are needed in the district and secondary schools to support each student towards graduation.

Early Learning - StrongStart

StrongStart is an early learning program that allows parents to participate with their young child (aged birth to five)
in play-based early learning activities, including stories, music, and art. At no cost to families, this early learning
drop-in program helps prepare children for success in kindergarten. StrongStart special purpose funding from the
Ministry of Education and Child Care has remained unchanged since 2012/13 at $256K while the cost to operate
this program has increased annually with inflation and is projected at $325K for 2025/26. $55K of this $69K total
shortfall can be funded from other early learning program and project special purpose funds, as outlined on page 72,

leaving a funding shortfall of $14K.

It is proposed that $14K be allocated from the operating budget on a one-time basis to fund the portion of
StrongStart supply expenses that exceed available early learning grant funding.

It is proposed that $14K be allocated from the operating budget on a one-time basis to fund the portion of StrongStart supply expenses that exceed
available early learning grant funding.

Secondary Assessment Committee

The district’s secondary assessment committee was originally established in 2016/17 with the introduction of the
revised provincial curriculum. Its mandate is to support secondary innovation in instruction and assessment. Each
year, the committee has undertaken meaningful work to support staff at all secondary school sites with implementing
practices such as core competencies, proficiency scale assessment, formative assessment strategies, descriptive
feedback, and inclusive instructional approaches.

During 2024/25, the committee focused on enhancing formal and informal reporting practices, including student-
led conference structures. In 2025/26, the committee will continue to support implementation of the K-12 Student
Reporting Policy. Additionally, it is anticipated that the committee will play a leadership role in the district’s response
to the ministry audit and the districts public engagement survey on secondary school scheduling.

The replacement staffing costs associated with this committee’s work have changed significantly over the years;
however, the annual ongoing allocation has remained unchanged. During the pandemic, we were able to redirect
other secondary innovation funds to cover the costs associated with the committee’s work but have been unable to
sustain this post-pandemic.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 51
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 75

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

It is proposed that $18K be allocated on an ongoing basis to supplement the secondary assessment committee’s
annual ongoing allocation and ensure that the necessary replacement costs for committee members are fully covered.

It is proposed that $18K be allocated on an ongoing basis to support the secondary assessment committee.

Safe and Caring Schools

Safe and Caring Staffing at Secondary Schools

Our secondary schools continue to require additional staffing to support vulnerable students and those with
intensive or additional support needs. We also recognize the importance of regular attendance and the need to
continue to monitor and encourage it by providing wraparound support.

It is proposed that $112K be allocated on a one-time basis for 6 safe and caring school teacher staffing blocks
(0.857 FTE) for secondary schools to support student wellness and provide targeted interventions to promote
student attendance and success.

It is further proposed that $37K be allocated on a one-time basis for an additional 2 safe and caring school teacher
staffing blocks (0.286 FTE) from the carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 operating fund surplus for 2025/26.

It is proposed that $112K be allocated on a one-time basis for 6 safe and caring school blocks (0.857 FTE teacher) for secondary schools to
support student wellness. It is further proposed that $37K be allocated on a one-time basis for an additional 2 safe and caring school
blocks (0.286 FTE teacher) from the carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 operating fund surplus for 2025/26.

Bridges Program

The Bridges Program (Bridges), established in 2024/25, is designed to provide vulnerable youth across the school
district with the necessary support to re-engage in their home school environment and enhance their overall
academic success. The program supports students in grades 6-8 who are facing unique challenges in their learning,
mental health, and personal circumstances. The program currently supports 15 students with learning opportunities
both on-site and in the community three times per week. The Bridges team provides ongoing connections with
students as they transition back to their home school.

Students benefit from a personalized and flexible education approach tailored to their individual needs, with a focus
on fostering social-emotional learning (SEL), self-regulation, and academic skills in literacy and numeracy. The
district’s completion rates reflect its commitment to keeping students engaged in learning. Through a strength-based
approach, Bridges identifies and provides targeted interventions to support vulnerable youth, offering outreach
programming outside of their home-based schools.

Over the past year, the Bridges team has made significant strides in establishing a program that allows students to
engage in hands-on learning at Riverside Centre and in the community. Students participate in activities at the Greg
Moore Youth Centre and Connex shop spaces, ensuring they remain connected to their learning in dynamic and
supportive settings. The team also collaborates closely with local mental health services, including the Family &
Youth Resource and Support Team (FYRST) and Foundry, to provide holistic care and support.

Through this ongoing work, our staff has built meaningful connections with students that have already resulted
in significant success. Many students who previously struggled to engage in their learning are now finding success
and confidence in their abilities. Some students who once did not see themselves as learners are now actively
participating, making progress, and bridging the gaps in their academic and personal development. Notably, 4
students who were not attending school prior to participating in Bridges are now attending Bridges regularly, a
direct result of the program’s consistent support and tailored interventions.

The safe and caring schools department, in collaboration with the learning services department, will extend support
to serve approximately 20 students across the district who struggle to attend class and require further guidance
cultivating self-regulation strategies. Using a trauma-informed approach, staff will create educational experiences for
students to develop their numeracy and literacy skills, fostering SEL competencies and self-regulation skills.

It is proposed that $79K be allocated on a one-time basis to increase itinerant teacher staffing by 0.6 FTE to 1 FTE
to support the Bridges Program for grade 6-8 students.

It is proposed that $79K be allocated on a one-time basis to increase itinerant teacher staffing by 0.6 FTE to 1 FTE to support the Bridges Program
for grade 6-8 students.

52 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 76




Equity Team

In alignment with the district’s ongoing commitment to equity, the K-12 Anti-Racism Action Plan, and

in response to the BIPOC (Black, Indigenous, and People of Colour) Student Forum, and the Deepening
Indigenous Education and Equity: Supporting the Wholistic Success of Indigenous Learners, Families and Communities
report (Strand 5 and Strand 6 recommendations), it is proposed that $85K be allocated as a carryforward of
appropriated 2024/25 anti-racism funds to support development of a Train-the-Trainer model for anti-racism
learning and the establishment of an Equity Team to advance this critical work.

It is proposed that $85K be allocated as a carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 anti-racism funds to support the development of a Train-the-
Trainer model for anti-racism learning and the establishment of an Equity Team to advance this critical work.

Student Voice Leadership

Based on input from Student Voice, it is proposed that $14K be allocated on a one-time basis for secondary
schools, inclusive of alternate education, to support student-led selection of resources that promote equity,
diversity, and inclusion. This funding empowers students to exercise leadership in choosing and purchasing
resources that reflect their identities and experiences, aligning with feedback from the BIPOC Student Forum.
Students have expressed a desire to see themselves reflected in learning materials, leadership opportunities, and
workshops led by BIPOC professionals. They want resources that go beyond a Eurocentric focus, embracing
diverse perspective, histories, and contributions that affirm their identities and lived experiences. In collaboration
with school administration and within established guidelines, students will play an active role in distributing
these funds.

It is proposed that $14K be allocated on a one-time basis for secondary schools, inclusive of alternate education, to support student-led selection of
resources that promote equity, diversity, and inclusion.

Relief Teachers

Relief teachers are casual on-call positions dispatched as needed to provide classrooms coverage. They engage
with students, provide temporary instructional supervision and guidance, and manage classroom behaviour
to maintain a positive learning environment for all students. Relief teachers are dispatched to cover teacher
assignments on a day-to-day basis in situations where the school district has exhausted our list of available
certified teachers teaching on call.

It is proposed that $20K be allocated on a one-time basis for the training of relief teachers in the district.

It is proposed that $20K be allocated on a one-time basis for the training of relief teachers in the district.

Education Leadership

Principals and vice principals serve in uniquely rewarding and demanding positions, balancing both managerial
and education leadership responsibilities. The School Act sets out the broad and extensive list of duties of
principals and vice principals. Within our current context of enrolment growth and increasing complexity of the
role, it is essential that education leadership positions are appropriately staffed and supported.

Elementary Administration Staffing

The implementation of the restored teacher collective agreement language provisions has significantly increased
the responsibilities and workload of school-based administrative staff. These added duties include school
organization related to class size and composition provisions, as well as the management of non-compliance
remedy provisions, non-enrolling staffing, and restored provisions relating to staff committee and school-based
teams. 1.7 FTE of additional vice principal staffing to support these added duties has been an allocation on a
one-time basis in each of the prior fiscal year from 2018/19 to 2024/25.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 53
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 77

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

It is proposed that $288K be allocated from the Classroom Enhancement Fund Overhead special purpose fund
on an ongoing basis for 1.70 FTE of additional vice principal administrative time at elementary schools. This
reflects 0.10 FTE of administration stafing time being added to the assignments of the 17 vice principals at
elementary schools. This change requires the ongoing transfer of 1.70 FTE teaching time (previously covered by
vice principals) to teachers, resulting in an ongoing decrease of $74K in operating budget expenses.

It is proposed that $288K be allocated from the Classroom Enhancement Fund Overhead special purpose fund on an ongoing basis for 1.70 FTE
of additional elementary vice principal administrative time, requiring the ongoing transfer of 1.70 FTE teaching time (previously covered by vice
principals) to teachers for an ongoing decrease to operating budget expenses of $74K.

School Staffing

Yennadon Elementary School

The Yennadon Elementary campus consists of the main school building, the Yennadon Annex, and four portables
(three for classrooms and one for dedicated staff and student support space) located adjacent to the Annex. In

fall 2024, additional space for staff and students was put into place to accommodate the unique needs of the
Yennadon Annex. The current district staffing methodology and formulas for elementary schools do not account
for the unique complexity of the enrolment and campus layout. For 2025/26, Yennadon Elementary is expecting
a student enrolment of 710, with 535 students in the main building and 175 students in the Annex and portables.

It is proposed that $33K be allocated on an ongoing basis for additional 0.57 FTE of clerical time in the
Yennadon Elementary Annex to maintain the 2024/25 clerical staffing level.

It is proposed that $33K be allocated on an ongoing basis for additional 0.57 FTE of clerical time in the Yennadon Elementary Annex to maintain
the 2024/25 clerical staffing level.

Extracurricular Elementary Band Program

The 2024/25 operating budget supplements an optional elementary band program offered at five secondary
schools. This extracurricular program, which serves approximately 200 elementary students annually, has
been funded through general enrolment allocations for several years; however, continued funding is no longer
sustainable.

To address the district’s structural deficit and ensure the long-term stability of programs across the system, it is
proposed that the district’s ongoing supplemental funding for this program be discontinued, resulting in ongoing
budget savings of approximately $82K (0.625 FTE teacher). Music programs at the grade 8—12 level will continue
to be offered at all secondary schools. This change will not impact the delivery of Arts Education, including music,
which remains a core component of the curriculum in elementary schools.

It is further proposed that $82K be allocated from the carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 operating fund
surplus on a one-time basis to support the extracurricular elementary band program for the 2025/26 school year.
This funding will ensure the program’s continued delivery while providing the time and stability needed to plan
for its long-term sustainability. Over the course of the 2025/26 year, the district will work collaboratively with the
BC Music Educators’ Association and program teachers to examine program structures and identify approaches
for the band program to operate in a cost-neutral manner beyond 2025/26.

Itis proposed that the district’s supplemental funding of the extracurricular elementary band program be discontinued to achieve ongoing budget
savings of $82K (0.625 FTE teacher). It is further proposed that $82K (0.625 FTE teacher) be allocated from the carryforward of appropriated
2024/25 operating fund surplus on a one-time basis to support the extracurricular elementary band program for the 2025/26 school year.

2.0 Learning Services

‘The Ministry of Education and Child Care provides supplemental inclusive education funding to school districts to
support students with disabilities and diverse abilities.

In 2025/26, learning services staffing base budget allocations include 539.31 FTE education assistants, 26 FTE child
and youth care workers (16.35 FTE funded from operating and 9.65 FTE funded from CommunityLINK), 7 FTE

54 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 78




helping teachers, 2 FTE hearing resource teachers, 0.6 FTE vision teacher, 1 FTE home and hospital teacher, 3.8 FTE
occupational therapists, 8 FTE speech and language pathologists, and 7.4 FTE school psychologists (including 0.4

FTE allocated for summer assessments to assist in reducing waitlists).

The base budget also includes allocations for accessibility needs, specialized supplies, transportation, early intervention
and inclusionary program training, and teacher release time to support collaborative planning, as well as an
instructional bank allocation of $1.28M to support additional staffing for needs emerging during the year.

The base budget allocation for 2025/26 includes an increase of 0.8 FTE for occupational therapists to work
collaboratively with school teams to provide appropriate accommodations and interventions designed to enhance
the learning potential of students with disabilities and diverse abilities. It also includes an increase of 0.1 FTE for
the helping teacher for gifted education to provide increased programming to gifted students whose numbers have
increased by 20% in the last two years.

Education Assistant Staffing

The district currently allocates 4.13 FTE of temporary education assistant (EA) staffing across elementary schools
during the first eight weeks of the school year to support kindergarten transition. This initiative was originally
introduced in 2021/22 to provide short-term assistance as young learners adapted to the school environment
after the pandemic. However, it has become evident that many kindergarten students who benefit from this
support require ongoing assistance beyond the initial eight-week period. Additionally, the temporary nature of
the positions creates recruitment and retention challenges, as short-term roles are less attractive to qualified EAs
seeking stable, ongoing employment.

It is proposed that these temporary positions be discontinued in favour of utilizing full-time EA positions to
support students requiring ongoing assistance. This approach will provide more consistent and sustainable
inclusive education programming throughout the school year while contributing budget savings to help address
the district’s structural deficit.

Itis proposed that 413 FTE of temporary education assistant staffing for kindergarten transition be discontinued for ongoing budget savings of
$235K and in favour of utilizing full-time EA positions to support students requiring ongoing assistance.

The district remains committed to supporting Kindergarten classrooms as positive and safe learning
environments. Each spring, schools and Learning Services work together to understand the needs of incoming
students to ensure supports are thoughtfully deployed, with ongoing review and timely adjustments continuing
into the fall and throughout the school year.

Home and Hospital Teacher Staffing

The district currently allocates 1.0 FTE of full-time home and hospital teacher stafing to support students who
are temporarily or intermittently unable to attend school due to medical, physical, or mental health conditions.
However, historical analysis indicates that only part-time staffing is typically required to meet the demand for this
service, as the need fluctuates throughout the year.

It is proposed that the full-time home and hospital teacher stathng be discontinued to achieve ongoing budget
savings of $131K, and that $72K be allocated to the instructional bank to support temporary home and hospital
teacher staffing needs that arise during the year. If the $72K is not fully utilized for this purpose, it will be
available to support other staffing needs for students with disabilities and diverse abilities, including EA stafhing.

It is proposed that the 1 FTE full-time home and hospital teacher staffing be discontinued to achieve ongoing budget savings of $131K, and that
$72K be allocated to the instructional bank to support temporary home and hospital teacher staffing needs that arise during the year.

Collaborative Teaching

Collaborative teaching is a strategy in supporting early intervention and fostering inclusive learning
environments. By pairing educators with complementary expertise, this approach enhances instructional
effectiveness and provides targeted support for diverse learners.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 55
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 79

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

It is proposed that $523K be allocated on a one-time basis for 4.0 FTE co-teaching stathng to support early
intervention and inclusionary programming in elementary schools.

It is proposed that $523K be allocated on a one-time basis for 4.0 FTE co-teaching staffing to support early intervention and inclusionary
programming in elementary schools.

School Psychologist Assessments
The district is continuing to experience a shortage of school psychologist staffing and recruitment challenges for
this position.

It is proposed that $184K savings from anticipated school psychologist vacancies (1.5 FTE) be reallocated on a
one-time basis for contracted school psychology services to complete psychoeducational assessments for students
throughout the district while we are unable to fill all of these positions.

It is proposed that $184K savings from anticipated school psychologist vacancies (1.5 FTE) be reallocated on a one-time basis for contracted school
psychology services.

3.0 Support for Operational Plans

Payroll Staffing

In 2009, stafhing for the payroll and benefits department was downsized from 5 FTE to 4 FTE. Since 2009,
staffing levels across the district have increased more than 30%, leading to an increase in the volume of payroll
and benefit records and transactions to administer.

In addition to the growth in employees, evolving legislative and regulatory requirements have increased the
complexity of payroll and benefits administration. These include the implementation of Employment Standards
Act (ESA) sick leave, new Canada Revenue Agency reporting requirements, updates to collective agreements,
expansion of benefit programs for TTOCs, and the management of remedies usage and tracking.

The current payroll team is operating beyond its capacity, increasing the risk of delays in payroll processing, non-
compliance with legislative and contractual obligations, payroll calculation errors, insufficient maintenance and
upgrades of the payroll system, decreased service levels, and staff burnout and turnover. Increasing capacity of the
payroll and benefits department is critical to reduce the risks associated with this essential service.

It is proposed that $91K be allocated on an ongoing basis to fund a 1.0 FTE senior payroll and benefits
administrator (CUPE position) in finance, increasing the capacity of the payroll and benefits department to fulfill

essential services.

It is proposed that $91K be allocated on an ongoing basis for 1 FTE senior payroll and benefits administrator (CUPE position), increasing the
capacity of the payroll and benefits department in finance to fulfill essential services.

Human Resources Staffing

The Human Resources (HR) function is critical to supporting the success of our staff and students. Over time, the
HR department has experienced an increased workload with the continued implementation of restored teacher
collective agreement language, employee growth, and increasing complexity of work. Unfortunately, the staffing
levels within our HR department have not kept pace with this growth, leading to challenges in managing the day-
to-day work demands and insufficient capacity to fully execute the HR operational plan.

Dispatch Coordination

One of the positions facing high volumes of work is the 0.74 FTE dispatch coordinator position. This CUPE
position is currently tasked with ensuring adequate float coverage for support staff absences, a demand that has
grown substantially. To address this heightened workload and improve operational efficiency, it is proposed that
$22K be allocated on an ongoing basis to add 0.26 FTE to the existing 0.74 FTE dispatch coordinator position,
partially offset by an ongoing $12K decrease to training and support budgets within HR.

It is proposed that $22K be allocated on an ongoing basis to add 0.26 FTE to the existing 0.74 FTE dispatch coordinator (CUPE position), partially
offset by an ongoing $12K decrease to training and support budgets within HR.

56 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 80




Health and Safety

Ensuring a safe working environment remains a priority for our district. WorkSafeBC encourages employers to
participate in the Certificate of Recognition (COR) program, which rewards employers who exceed the current
legal requirements and maintain a robust occupational health and safety management system (OHSMS). In fall
2024, our school district was awarded COR certification and subsequently received a financial incentive from
WorkSafeBC of $248K. This funding is reflected in the ongoing base budget for 2025/26 on the assumption that
the district will maintain the OHSMS and COR certification.

During 2024/25, a temporary 1 FTE human resources assistant position supporting workplace health and safety
was extended on a one-time basis. Prior to COR certification being awarded, it was noted that, once received, the
incentives provided by WorkSafeBC would offset the cost of staffing required to maintain an Occupational Health
and Safety Management System (OHSMS) that exceeds regulatory requirements. This non-management position
is essential for maintaining both the OHSMS and the districc's COR certification.

It is proposed that $101K be allocated on an ongoing basis for the 1 FTE human resources assistant.

It is proposed that $101K be allocated on an ongoing basis for the continuation of 1 FTE human resources assistant, funded through the
WorkSafeBC COR certification incentive, to support the school district in maintaining an occupational health and safety management system
that exceeds regulatory requirements.

English Language Learning

English Language Learning (ELL) student enrolment in the district has more than doubled over the past five
years and continued growth is projected in the foreseeable future. This growth spans all grades from K-12, with a
particular emphasis in elementary schools. Correspondingly, there has been comparable growth in the number of
teachers and teaching time dedicated to supporting and delivering ELL services.

District Helping Teacher

There is an educational and operational need for instructional leadership offered through an ELL district helping
teacher to ensure alignment and effective delivery of instructional and assessment practices for these learners.

The district stathng formula for secondary international students includes an allocation of ELL staffing. The
calculation assumes that every secondary international student requires ELL support. Recently, the overall profile
of our secondary international student population has shifted, with some students no longer requiring direct ELL
support during their time as students in our district.

It is proposed that 1.04 FTE of the ELL teacher stathing generated by international secondary student enrolment
be reallocated on an ongoing basis to fund 1 FTE district ELL helping teacher, including the incremental
department head allowance. This change will supplement the ongoing ELL stafling for secondary international
students and enhance ELL services for all students (K-12) across the district.

It is proposed that 1.04 FTE ELL teacher staffing generated by international secondary student enrolment be reallocated on an ongoing basis to
fund 1 FTE district ELL helping teacher. This change has a net budget impact of $0.

Budget Savings and Financial Sustainability

Services and Supplies

The district has been operating with a structural deficit during 2024/25 as ongoing operating expenses have
exceeded ongoing revenue. Considerable collaborative work has been undertaken to develop a 2025/26 budget
that is sustainable. This effort includes making strategic budget adjustments to generate cost savings while
maintaining essential services.

It is proposed that the departmental meeting food supply, travel, and training budgets be reduced by 10% to
achieve budget savings of $13K in meeting food supplies, $15K in training, and $15K in travel. This reduction
will help minimize discretionary spending while maintaining essential departmental functions.

The district has also explored the possibility of replacing its existing 8.5” by 11” traditional white paper—which
accounts for approximately 89% of total paper usage—with Sugar Paper, a more sustainable alternative. This has

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 57
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 81

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

been successfully piloted at the maintenance department office in 2024. By making this transition district-wide,
the district will be able to reduce annual greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by up to 65 tonnes and achieve an
estimated net annual saving of $26K (which includes reduced paper costs and reduced carbon neutral offset
payments to the Ministry of Finance for GHG emissions). It is proposed that the district transition from
traditional white paper to Sugar Paper to realize these environmental and financial benefits.

Additionally, the district currently incurs costs for Zoom licenses despite having access to Microsoft Teams,
which offers comparable virtual meeting capabilities. By fully transitioning to Microsoft Teams, the district
can eliminate redundant software expenses without impacting virtual collaboration and communication. It is
proposed to discontinue Zoom to generate an annual cost saving of $6K, while ensuring staff can continue to
conduct virtual meetings effectively.

Combined, these budget changes for services and supplies will reduce the structural deficit by $75K.

It is proposed that the departmental meeting food supply, travel, and training budgets be reduced by 10% to achieve ongoing budget savings of
$13K in meeting food supplies, $15K in training, and $15K in travel. It is further proposed to transition the supply of traditional white paper to Sugar
Paper district-wide to generate annual ongoing savings of $26K and discontinue Zoom to generate annual cost savings of $6K.

After-School Programs

For many years, the school district has coordinated after-school programming at elementary schools to

provide students with structured, supervised care beyond regular school hours. These programs offer expanded
educational, emotional, and physical learning opportunities. This program recovers fees payable to third parties
for each individual program. It also incurs administrative costs for program management and coordination that
is not currently covered by fees. From 2015 to 2023, a $50K annual grant from the United Way supported this
program but this funding ended in 2022/23, resulting in increased subsidization of the program by the district.

It is proposed that an administration fee of 11% be added to after-school program fees for an ongoing recovery of
$23K (23%) of the program manager’s salary and benefits cost.

It is proposed that an administration fee of 11% be added to after-school program fees for an ongoing recovery of $23K (23%) of the program
manager’s salary and benefits cost.

Staffing Banks

The district has several staffing banks which represent budget reserves that can be allocated to fill stafhing needs
arising over the course of the year, particularly staffing areas that are not restricted to one staffing position. These
staffing banks include the secondary staffing bank (established in 2016/17) and the instructional bank (established
in 2017/18) which have historically been funded on an ongoing basis but only utilized on a one-time basis each year
with most allocations occurring at the start of the year through the preliminary budget process.

To reduce the structural deficit, it is proposed that:

e 'The $1.28M ongoing instructional staffing bank be reduced by $1.0M and that one-time allocations for
staffing positions to begin at the start of the year—such as collaborative teaching that this portion has
historically been used for—be considered as being funded directly from available operating budget; and

* The ongoing secondary staffing bank of $0.19M be discontinued, and that one-time allocations for staffing
positions to begin at the start of the year—such as safe and caring staffing at secondary schools that it has been
historically used for—be considered as being funded directly from available operating budget.

Combined, these budget changes for staffing banks will further reduce the structural deficit by $1.19M.

It is proposed that the ongoing instructional staffing bank be reduced by $1.0M and that the ongoing secondary staffing bank of $0.19M be
discontinued for combined budget savings and structural deficit reduction of $1.19M.

58 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 82




4.0 Student Transportation

Within the School Act, there is no requirement for the board to provide student school bus transportation
service to and from school. In August 2016, the Ministry of Education announced an annual ongoing
transportation grant of $186K for our school district. Since 2016/17, this provincial grant has remained
unchanged (no increase for inflation or enrolment growth) and the board decided to use operating funds on a
one-time basis, evaluated each year, to provide subsidized student transportation for eligible students to their
catchment area school.

The school district defines eligible students for regular student transportation serving Blue Mountain Elementary,
Garibaldi Secondary, Highland Park Elementary, Pitt Meadows Secondary, Webster’s Corners Elementary, and
Whonnock Elementary as:

*  Resident primary students (grades K-3) and their siblings attending the same school who live farther
than 4 kilometers from their catchment area school.

*  All other resident students (grades 4-12) who live farther than 4.8 kilometers from their catchment area school.

In 2024/25, the school district facilitated transportation services for various student groups. Among these were
226 regular eligible riders, 5 riders with an identified disability or diverse ability, and 19 courtesy riders, all
served by six bus routes with expenses totaling $380K ($1,521 per student). Additionally, 27 eligible riders with
disabilities and diverse abilities, 13 regular eligible riders, and 1 courtesy rider were accommodated on four bus
routes, three of which required chaperones, incurring a cost of $306K ($7,465 per student). Furthermore, 12
students with an identified disability or diverse ability were provided taxi services at a cost of $45K. Despite
these expenses, only a portion of the transportation costs were covered by the $111K collected from all riders as
transportation fees.

Transportation fees were approved in the 2024/25 preliminary budget as outlined in the following table. No
changes to these fees are proposed in this budget. Eligible low-income families that use school district busing

may apply for a transportation fee waiver as provided for under Policy 9801 Fees Hardship.

Transportation ‘ 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28
First and second child $420 $441 $463 $486
Third child + $135 $140 $145 $152

For 2025/26, the base budget includes ongoing allocations to provide transportation services for students with
disabilities and diverse abilities with a cost of $361K including specialized buses and taxis. It is proposed that $260K
be allocated on a one-time basis to provide regular transportation services for an estimated 180 riders on four buses,
and that projected fee revenue for this service be set at $67K representing 26% of the cost of the service.

In comparison to 2024/25, this proposed one-time allocation reflects a discontinuation of two buses currently

serving Garibaldi Secondary students residing in Silver Valley and Rockridge areas where public transportation
options are safer and more accessible than other regions currently served. This proposal also takes the following
into consideration:

*  Current utilization of district-provided transportation services in 2024/25 is significantly below capacity
as a high proportion of registered riders are not regularly using this service. Recent ridership data for
routes serving Silver Valley and Rockridge show that routes are operating at less than 30% capacity in
the morning and less than 40% in the afternoon.

* The City of Maple Ridge recently confirmed that the following infrastructure improvements have
been completed in various areas of Silver Valley and Rockridge: road paving, sidewalk upgrades, street
lighting upgrades, a new roundabout, multi-use path lighting, and pedestrian-activated flashing lights
installed at crosswalks.

*  Coast Mountain Bus Company recently confirmed that their bus routes serve Silver Valley and Rockridge
to/from Garibaldi Secondary, with service approximately every 30 minutes during peak times, and
requiring a bus transfer at Haney Place. They further indicated that they have the funding and ability to
make modest changes to service levels to provide bus capacity to align with Garibaldi Secondary school
bell times, should public bus ridership in the area increase.

It is proposed that $260K be allocated on a one-time basis to provide regular transportation services on four buses, with the discontinuation
of two buses currently serving secondary students residing in Silver Valley and Rockridge areas where public transportation options are safer
and more accessible than other regions currently served, and that projected fee revenue for this service be set at $67K.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 59
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 83

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

5.0 Use of 2024/25 Available Operating Surplus
Support for the Capital Budget

Over the next four years, the district faces significant funding shortfalls across several key areas: $3.68 million
for the IT capital plan, $1.93 million for facility equipment and vehicles, $0.84 million for new temporary
classrooms, and $1.69 million for renewal of non-school facilities. Without additional funding, the district
may need to delay critical upgrades, reduce investments in operational efhiciency, or reallocate resources from
other priorities. The local capital funding shortfalls can be addressed by securing funding from the provincial
government for eligible capital projects and by considering the allocation of any future operating surpluses, if
available, to local capital.

To fund the capital needs identified in this budget, it is proposed that any additional available operating surplus

from 2024/25 be transferred to the local capital fund and allocated as follows:

1. First, to top up the contingency reserve held in local capital to 1.25% of budgeted operating expenses for
2025/26 (an increase of $0.58M)

2. Second, to increase the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan by up to $0.53M

3. 'Third, to increase new temporary classrooms by up to $0.84M

4. Finally, any remaining available operating surplus be allocated as follows: 50% to the IT capital plan, 25% to
other facilities renewal, and 25% as a further contribution to the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan.

Further details to support the above allocation of available operating surplus for local capital initiatives is outlined in

the local capital section of the Capital Fund Budget.

To fund the capital needs identified in this budget, it is proposed that any available operating surplus from 2024/25 be transferred to the local
capital fund and allocated as follows:

First, to top up the contingency reserve held in local capital to 1.25% of budgeted operating expenses for 2025/26 (an increase of $0.58M)
Second, to increase the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan by up to $0.53M

Third, to increase new temporary classrooms by up to $0.84M

Finally, any remaining available operating surplus be allocated as follows:

a. 50% to the IT capital plan,

b.  25% to other facilities renewal, and

c.  25% as a further contribution to the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan.

Bwp s

Summary of 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget Changes
The summary of 2025/26 proposed preliminary budget changes is presented in figure 1 on the page that follows.

60 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 84




FIGURE 1: Proposed Preliminary Operating Budget Changes 2025/26

2025/26 Budget Impact

Budget Changes Salaries & Services &
Benefits Supplies RetSnes
ONGOING BUDGET CHANGES
Support for School Growth Plans
Secondary assessment committee $18,000 $- $- $18,000
Elementary administration staffing (74,035) (74,035)
Clerical staffing - Yennadon Elementary 0.57 32,850 32,850
Extracurricular elementary band program (0.63) (81,689) (81,689)

Learning Services
Temporary education assistant staffing (413) (234,888) (234,888)
Home and hospital teacher (1.00) (58,644) (58,644)

Support for Operational Plans

Payroll staffing - Senior payroll & benefits administrator 1.00 90,115 500 90,615

Human Resources staffing - Dispatch coordinator 0.26 9,970 9,970

Human Resources staffing - HR assistant for health and safety 1.00 99,525 1,700 101,225

Secondary staffing bank (190,139) (190,139)

Instructional bank (1,004,265) (1,004,265)

Budget savings and financial sustainability (75,034) (23,161) (98,195)
TOTAL ONGOING BUDGET CHANGES (2.93) (1,393,200) (72,834) (23,161) (1,489,195)
ONE-TIME BUDGET CHANGES

Support for School Growth Plans

Literacy - Helping teacher 0.80 108,437 108,437
Literacy - Use of Curriculum and Learning Support Fund (54,218) (54,218)
Numeracy - Resources and supplies 10,000 10,000
Numeracy - Use of Curriculum and Learning Support Fund (10,000) (10,000)

Successful learning opportunities for secondary learners

=1
S
)
=

Resources and supplies 20,000 20,000
Use of Curriculum and Learning Support Fund (20,000) (20,000)
Early Learning - StrongStart - Use of other supplies budget 14,000 14,000 n_a
Safe and Caring Schools - Staffing at secondary schools 114 149,397 149,397 §"
Safe and Caring Schools - Staffing for Bridges 0.60 78,423 1,000 79,423 %’
Student Voice leadership 14,000 14,000 =
Relief teacher training 17,985 2,015 20,000
Extracurricular elementary band program 0.63 81,689 81,689
317 435,931 (23,203) - 412,728

Learning Services

Collaborative teaching 4.00 522,815 522,815

School psychologist assessments (1.50) (183,920) 183,920 -

2.50 338,895 183,920 - 522,815

Student Transportation 260,082 (67,098) 192,984
Use of Prior Year Surplus (119,072) (119,072)
TOTAL ONE-TIME BUDGET CHANGES 5.67 774,826 420,799 (186,170) 1,009,455
TOTAL BUDGET CHANGES 274 $(618,374) $347,965  $(209,331) $(479,740)

The following proposed budget changes having net budget impact of $0 are not presented on the table above: Carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 funds
for numeracy ($20K) and equity ($85K) to utilize these allocations in 2025/26 to support School Growth Plans, and ongoing addition of 1 FTE ELL
helping teacher fully funded from international student enrolment-generated ELL teacher staffing of 1.03 FTE.
April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 61
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 85



=
=)
=
[
-7}
]
8
(=]
=
<
=
(= ™

Summary of 2025/26 Preliminary Operating Budget

Operating Budget Revenue

The majority of school district revenues are received from the provincial government in the form of the Ministry
of Education and Child Care operating grant and other provincial grants (93.05%). The level of provincial
funding consequently has a significant impact on the educational services and programs that can be offered.

Because the primary determinant of provincial funding is enrolment, a forecasted decline or increase in
enrolment affects programs and services. Outside of provincial grants, international education and other tuition
fees are the primary source of revenue, which account for 5.21% of total revenue. The projected operating budget
revenue for 2025/26 is $216.40 million. See figure 2.

m 2025/26 OPERATING BUDGET REVENUE BY SOURCE ($ millions)

PROVINCIAL AND OTHER GRANTS $201.35 (93.05%)
TUITION $11.28 (5.21%)

RENTAL & LEASES $0.89 (0.40%)
4 INVESTMENT INCOME  $1.10 (0.51%)

% OTHER REVENUE $1.67 (0.77%)

APPROPRIATED SURPLUS $0.12 (0.06%)

Operating Budget Expenses

The projected operating expenses, including proposed budget changes, total $216.40 million, which results in a
balanced operating budget.

85.78% of the operating budget will be spent on instruction-related costs. This includes school-based teachers,
education assistants, school administrators, and school-based support staff and supplies.

Operations and maintenance accounts for 9.58%, district administration is 3.72%, and transportation is 0.30%.
The remaining 0.62% is spent on capital asset purchases and other transfers to local capital for capital asset purchases.

91.39% of the budget is spent on salaries and benefits, while services, supplies, utilities, and capital assets purchased
represent 8.61%. The graphs below show the allocation of expenses by function and type of expense.

m 2025/26 OPERATING BUDGET EXPENSES m 2025/26 OPERATING BUDGET EXPENSES

BY FUNCTION BY TYPE

($ millions) ($ millions)

0/
INSTRUCTION $185.63 (85.78%) e SALARIES $156.07 (72.12%)

/

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
$20.73 (9.58%)
— BENEFITS $41.70 (19.27%)

—— DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION $8.04 (3.72%)

% TRANSPORTATION $0.65 (0.30%)

CAPITAL ASSETS PURCHASED AND
OTHER $1.35 (0.62%)

™ SERVICES & SUPPLIES $14.47 (6.69%)

\\ UTILITIES $2.81(1.30%)
CAPITAL ASSETS PURCHASED AND OTHER $1.35 (0.62%)

62 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 86



FIGURE 5: Summary of 2025/26 Operating Revenue and Expenses

Ongoing One-Time [—

Budget

Base Budget Budget Budget
Changes Changes

% Change

Operating Revenue by Source

Grants

Provincial grants - MECC $200,571,868 $- $- $200,571,868 0.00%

Provincial grants - Other 417,800 417,800 0.00%

Federal grants 362,900 362,900 0.00%
Total Grants 201,352,568 - - 201,352,568 0.00%
Tuition 11,277,969 11,277,969 0.00%
Other revenue 1,569,066 23,161 67,098 1,659,325 5.75%
Rentals and leases 886,716 886,716 0.00%
Investment income 1,105,000 1,105,000 0.00%
Total Operating Revenue 216,191,319 23,161 67,098 216,281,578 0.04%

Operating Expense by Type

Salaries
Teachers 91,087,082 (887,504) 721,774 90,921,352 (0.18%)
Principals and vice principals 10,062,818 (230,695) 9,832,123 (2.29%)
Educational assistants 25,627,954 (171,767) 25,456,187 (0.67%)
Support staff 15,422,688 108,393 (146,445) 15,384,636 (0.25%)
Other professionals/exempt 7,609,247 79,076 7,688,323 1.04%
Substitutes 6,742,318 (11,835) 60,631 6,791,114 0.72%

Total Salaries 156,552,107 (1,114,332) 635,960 156,073,735 (0.31%)
Employee benefits 41,814,785 (276,305) 156,885 41,695,365 (0.29%)

Total Salaries and Benefits 198,366,892 (1,390,637) 792,845 197,769,100 (0.30%)

Services and Supplies
Services 7,373,813 (7,486) 183,920 7,550,247 2.39%
Student transportation 469,808 260,082 729,890 55.36% m
Professional development 1,123,007 (29,859) 1,500 1,094,648 (2.53%) -
Rentals and leases 9,407 9,407 0.00% §
Dues and fees 172,412 172,412 0.00% T
Insurance 976,972 976,972 0.00% ‘:{'
Supplies 4,014,882 (37,424) (42,703) 3,934,755 (2.00%) g"
Utilities 2,816,697 (1,625) 2,815,072 (0.06%) =

Total Services and Supplies 16,956,998 (76,394) 402,799 17,283,403 1.92%

Total Operating Expenses 215,323,890 (1,467,031) 1,195,644 215,052,503 (0.13%)

Interfund Transfers

Transfer to local capital reserve 1,058,185 1,058,185 0.00%

Capital purchases transferred to the capital fund 288,962 1,000 289,962 0.35%

Total Interfund and Capital Assets Purchased from Operating 1,347,147 1,000 - 1,348,147 0.07%

Projected Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (479,718) 1,489,192 (1,128,546) (119,072)

Use of Prior Year Surplus 119,072 119,072

Projected Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year $(479,718) $1,489,192 $(1,009,474) s$-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 63
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 87



=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

Operating Fund and CEF Budget Staffing

The projected full-time equivalent staffing, including proposed budget changes for 2025/26, totals 2,135.03 FTE, a
net decrease of 7.03 FTE from the ongoing 2024/25 operating budget and 3.21 decrease from the 2024/25 actual
CEEF staffing. The decrease in the operating fund is principally due to the following:

¢ Teachers: A decrease of 1.73 FTE teacher stafling required to meet collective agreement mandated non-
enrolling ratios and class size and composition, which includes 7.40 FTE increase due to enrolment, offset by
9.13 FTE decrease in generated prep time (to be covered by teacher-librarians); and an increase of 7.21 FTE
due to proposed budget changes.

* Principals/Vice Principals: 1.70 FTE elementary proposed to be funded from CEF overhead in 2025/26.

* Other Professionals, Exempt, District P/VPs: An ongoing increase of 1 FTE health and safety assistant.

* Educational Assistants: A budget decrease equivalent to 8.80 FTE education assistants (5.28 FTE ongoing
and 3.52 FTE one-time) to account for anticipated unplanned vacancies throughout the year; and an
ongoing decrease of 4.13 FTE for temporary 8-week kindergarten education assistants.

* Support Staff: An ongoing increase of 1.83 FTE clerical and 0.8 FTE occupational therapist; and a one-
time transfer of 1.5 FTE school psychologist to professional services.

m OPERATING FUND AND CEF BUDGET STAFFING

Staffing FTE

School-based Staffing

Operating Fund

2025/26 2025/26
Base Budget Base
Changes Budget

2024/25
Ongoing
Staffing

Operating
Budget
Changes

2025/26
Preliminary
Operating Budget

2025/26
CEF Budget

Total

2025/26
Preliminary
Budget

Teachers 879.27 (1.73) 877.54 .21 884.75 187.72 1,072.47
Principals/VPs - Teaching time 16.10 (0.28) 15.82 15.82 15.82
Principals/VPs - Admin time 4415 0.28 44.43 (1.70) 4273 170 44.43
Educational Assistants 604.43 (8.80) 595.63 (413) 591.50 591.50
Other Professionals 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Support Staff 201.53 0.80 202.33 (0.93) 201.40 201.40
Total School-based Staffing 1,748.48 (9.74) 1,738.74 0.45 1,739.19 189.42 1,928.61
District-based Staffing
Principals/VPs 765 7.65 7.65 7.65
Other Professionals 49.80 49.80 1.00 50.80 50.80
Support Staff 14516 14516 1.26 146.42 1.55 147.97
Total District-based Staffing 202.61 202.61 2.26 204.87 1.55 206.42
Total 1,951.09 (9.74) 1,941.35 2.7 1,944.06 190.97 2,135.03

For 2025/26, total projected staffing is 2,135.03 FTE, which includes 1,928.61 FTE (90.3%) for school-based staff
and 206.42 FTE (9.7%) for district-based staff. District-based staff includes all district leadership team members
other than elementary and secondary principals/VPs, as well as departmental staff, such as custodial, facilities, human
resources, information technology, and finance.

64 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 88



Special Purpose Fund Budget

The Special Purpose Fund budget includes revenue and expenses related to grants received from third parties that
have restrictions on how they may be spent. Special purpose funds consist of targeted funding allocated to school
districts for a specific purpose. The annual funding received varies from year to year and Ministry of Education
and Child Care funding is not always confirmed in a timely manner.

Pursuant to Sections 156(4) and (5) of the School Act, each special purpose fund must be accounted for in
accordance with the terms of that special purpose fund. Treasury Board Restricted Contribution Regulation
198/2011, issued in November 2011, defines a restricted contribution as “a contribution that is subject to a
legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to its use other than a contribution or part of a contribution
that is of, or for the purpose of acquiring, land.”

The following grants meet the definition of a restricted contribution per Treasury Board Regulation 198/2011:

¢ Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF)

* Learning Improvement Fund (LIF)

* Annual Facility Grants (AFG) (excludes capital amounts paid via bylaw certificates of approval)

* Official Languages in Education Programs (OLEP)

* Feeding Futures School Food Programs (FFSFP)

* National School Food Program

e CommunityLINK

* Early Learning Programs and Projects (includes StrongStart; Ready, Set, Learn; Changing Results for Young
Children; Strengthening Early Years to Kindergarten Transitions; Early Care and Learning)

* Mental Health in Schools

¢ First Nation Student Transportation

* Youth Education Support Fund

* Scholarships and Bursaries

¢ School Generated Funds (restricted contributions only)

* Literacy Professional Learning Fund

Operating and capital funding cannot be transferred to special purpose funds. The following table summarizes deferred
contributions, revenue, and expenses for the Special Purpose Fund (all special purpose funds combined) — actuals for
years 2021/22 to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

(5 millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $1.56 $1.76 $1.98 $2.44 $1.92 $1.92 $1.92 $1.92

Contributions Received m
Provincial Grants - MECC 21.65 25.32 30.89 33.47 2918 2918 2918 2918 -
Other 3.54 4.87 6.12 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 §
Investment Income 0.01 0.05 0.05 g
Total Contributions Received 25.20 30.24 37.06 38.67 34.38 34.38 34.38 34.38 E

Less: Allocated to Revenue or Recovered by MECC (25.00) (30.02) (36.60) (39.19) (34.38) (34.38) (34.38) (34.38) %

Deferred Revenue, end of year 1.76 1.98 2.44 1.92 1.92 1.92 1.92 1.92 =

Allocated to Revenue

Provincial Grants 21.61 25.21 30.75 33.99 2918 2918 2918 2918

Other Revenue 3.38 475 5.80 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20 5.20

Investment Income 0.01 0.04 0.05

Total Allocated to Revenue 25.00 30.00 36.60 3919 34.38 34.38 34.38 34.38
Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 18.81 22.87 27.90 31.54 2714 2710 2710 2710

Service and Supplies 5.41 6.75 812 741 6.78 6.82 6.82 6.82

Total Expenses 24.22 29.62 36.02 38.95 33.92 33.92 33.92 33.92
Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.78 0.38 0.58 0.24 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46
Total Expenses and Capital Purchases 25.00 30.00 36.60 39.19 34.38 34.38 34.38 34.38
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

Source: 2021/22 to 2023/24 audited financial statements, amended budget for 2024/25, and estimates for future years.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 65
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 89



=
(=]
-—
(S}
(%]
(7]
=
(=]
[—
(-]
£
(5 59

Special Purpose Funds Background Information

This section presents a detailed analysis of the individual special purpose funds that are maintained by the school
district and their impact on budget.

Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF)

On March 10, 2017, the Ministry of Education, the BC Public Schools Employers’ Association and the BC
Teachers’ Federation ratified a Memorandum of Agreement pursuant to Letter of Understanding (LoU) No. 17,
to the 2013-2019 BCPSEA-BCTF Provincial Collective Agreement. The memorandum of agreement fully and
finally resolves all matters related to the implementation of the Supreme Court of Canada decision from the fall
of 2016. This agreement has significantly changed the context for public education.

The ratification of this agreement resulted in the establishment of the Classroom Enhancement Fund to

address the additional teacher and corresponding overhead costs throughout the province associated with this
memorandum of agreement. The school district is required to record and report the actual costs and the amount
allocated may be adjusted to reflect the actual costs incurred. The following table summarizes the CEF allocations
received by the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District from 2020/21 to 2025/26.

$ millions 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

CEF - Teachers FTE 117.60 155.76 16216 182.31 190.93 18772
CEF - Teachers Funding $11.53 $16.36 $17.92 $21.38 $23.68 $23.68
CEF - Overhead $0.73 $0.73 $0.75 $0.80 $0.83 $0.83
CEF - Remedy $118 $1.60 $2.26 $2.42 $4.04 $-
TOTAL CEF Funding $13.44 $18.69 $20.93 $24.60 $28.55 $24.51

The preliminary CEF allocation of $23.68 million is sufficient to fund an estimated 187.72 FTE teachers
($23.68 million) and overhead costs ($0.83 million).

Adjustments to district allocations may be made once final fall 2025 staffing is known, especially if it
is determined that a particular school district received more funding than was required. Final 2025/26
allocations will be confirmed at the same time as the operating grant recalculation in December 2025.

Teacher Staffing

The restored MRTA collective agreement language includes changes to non-enrolling staffing generating ratios
and class size limits as outlined in the tables below.

District Non-Enrolling Ratios for

MECC Funded Students
Teacher-Librarians 1:702
Counsellors 1:693
Learning Assistance Teachers 1:462
Special Education Resource 1:249
ELL Teachers 1:33.3

Classroom teacher staffing is allocated using student enrolment-driven formulas. The formulas for allocating
teacher staffing under the Operating Fund and under the CEF by grade level are detailed in the table below. Prep

time for teachers is added over and above these calculations.

Elementary Restored Class Size

K 20
K-1blended 20
13 22
3-4 blended 24
4-7 28
4-7 multi age 26

66 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 90



Secondary English 28
Home Economics 24
Junior Science 28
Senior Science 24
Computer 24
Life Skills 26
Technical Education Laboratory 22
Inclusive Education: High Incidence 15
Inclusive Education: Low Incidence 10
Any other class 30

The School Act-stipulated class-size limits and restored class sizes are also in the table below.

School Act Collective Agreement
Class Size Restored Class Size
Kindergarten 1:22 1:20
Grade 1-3 1:24 1:22
Grade 4-7 1:30 1:28
Grade 8-12 1:30 Varies

It is estimated that an additional 138.87 FTE classroom teachers will need to be funded from the CEF to support the
implementation of the lower class sizes. The changes to non-enrolling ratios result in an additional estimated 48.85 FTE
non-enrolling teachers. This is comprised of increased teacher librarian, counselling, ELL, and support staffing. The actual
staffing required will not be confirmed until October 2025 when the actual student enrolment for September 2025 is
determined. However, school staffing and organization must occur in May-June 2025. There is currendy $0.05 million
in additional funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care that will be allocated to staffing after enrolment

changes and school organizations are confirmed in the fall.

Staffing Overhead

To support the implementation of the restored MRTA collective agreement language, increases to budget allocations
for school administration, facilities maintenance, services and supplies, and substitute budgets are required.

Teacher Substitutes
$0.41 million will be allocated from the overhead portion of the CEF to cover the estimated cost of substitutes for
the CEF-funded teachers. This represents an average of 4.55 replacement days per CEF funded teacher FTE.

Principals and Vice Principals

The implementation of the restored collective agreement language requires the skillful control and management
of enrolment along with the careful follow-up and reporting of staffing and class organizations to the Ministry of
Education and Child Care. At the school level, the implementation of the restored collective agreement language
provisions requires significant attention and time on principals and vice principals.

The added responsibilities and workload include but are not limited to school organization with respect to class
size and class composition provisions along with the management of non-compliance/remedy provisions, non-
enrolling staffing, and the restored provisions relating to staff committee and school-based team.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 67
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 91

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

It is proposed that an additional 1.70 FTE principal/vice principal administrative time is allocated on an ongoing
basis to elementary school-based administration staffing for the 2025/26 school year at a cost of $0.29 million

in support of managing restored collective agreement provisions. 1.7 FTE of additional vice principal staffing

to support these added duties has been an allocation on a one-time basis in each of the prior fiscal year from
2018/19 to 2024/25.

It is proposed that an additional 1.70 FTE principal/vice principal administrative time is allocated on an ongoing basis to elementary school-based
administration staffing for the 2025/26 school year at a cost of $0.29M.

Custodial Staff

The implementation of the restored MRTA collective agreement language required significant changes to school
district facilities. The additional facilities space created resulted in additional costs for facilities maintenance.
$0.13 million will continue to be allocated from overhead portion of the Classroom Enhancement Fund to

support 1.55 FTE custodial staff.

Summary of 2025/26 Classroom Enhancement Fund Revenue and Expense

Revenue
Classroom Enhancement Fund grant $24,509,985
Preliminary funding surplus (45,881)
Expenses
Teacher staffing 18772 (23,635,071)
Substitutes (408,502)
Principals and vice principals 170 (287,684)
Custodial staff 1.55 (132,847)
Total Classroom Enhancement Fund 190.97 $-

Classroom Enhancement Fund 2021/22 to 2028/29 Allocations

The table below summarizes the actual CEF revenue and expenses for 2021/22 to 2023/24 and projected revenue
and expense for 2024/25 to 2028/29. No changes are projected at this time.

(S millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Contributions Received 18.69 20.93 24.96 28.55 24.51 24.51 24.51 24.51
Investment Income Received
Allocated to Revenue (18.69) (20.93) (24.96) (28.55) (24.51) (24.51) (24.51) (24.51)

Recovered

Deferred Revenue, end of year - - - - o o - -

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC 18.69 20.93 24.96 28.55 24.51 24.51 24.51 24.51

Investment Income

Total Revenue 18.69 20.93 24.96 28.55 24.51 24.51 24.51 24.51
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 17.20 20.92 24.94 28.53 24.50 24.50 24.50 24.50
Service and Supplies 1.30 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Total Expenses 18.50 20.93 24.96 28.55 24.51 24.51 24.51 24.51
Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 019
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $ $ $

68 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 92




Learning Improvement Fund

The Learning Improvement Fund was established by the province for the purpose of providing additional
resources, specifically targeted to support complex classes that present challenging learning conditions. For
2025/26, this grant of $684,610 is used to top up education assistant staffing time by 1 hour per week at
secondary schools and 2 hours per week at elementary schools.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $- $0.02
Contributions Received 0.53 0.56 0.69 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68
Allocated to Revenue (0.53) (0.54) (0.71) (0.68) (0.68) (0.68) (0.68) (0.68)
Deferred Revenue, end of year - 0.02
Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC 0.53 0.54 071 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68
Total Revenue 0.53 0.54 0.7 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 0.53 0.54 0.7 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68
Total Expenses 0.53 0.54 0.7 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68 0.68
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $ $ $

Annual Facility Grant (AFG)

The Annual Facility Grant was established to account for Ministry of Education and Child Care grants and
expenses relating to annual facility maintenance projects. The AFG allocation is comprised of two components:
an operating component within the Special Purpose Fund, and bylaw capital component within the Capital
Fund. The funding is first allocated to the provincial Capital Asset Management System (CAPS) and the balance
is distributed to school districts.

The AFG special purpose funding allocation for the school district for 2025/26 is $517,597 of which $44,051

is allocated to CAPS and retained by the ministry, leaving $473,546 to be allocated by the board for facility
maintenance projects. The AFG bylaw capital allocated to the school district for 2025/26 is $3,114,391 for a total
AFG allocation of $3,631,988.

AFG funding is intended to fund projects required to maintain facility assets through their anticipated
economic life and to prevent premature deterioration of these assets.

The following table outlines the spending plan for projects to be funded from the AFG and completed
between April 1, 2025, and March 31, 2026. It includes allocations for roofing ($1.62M), flooring ($0.51M),
HVAC ($0.40M), electrical ($0.35M), accessibility enhancements ($0.17M), learning support spaces
enhancements ($0.10M), and other ($0.48M).

X
-
3
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 69
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 93



Summary of 2025/26 Annual Facilities Grant Spending Plan

AFG Project Description (Special Purpose Fund) Budget

Maintenance Shop Floor replacement - Main corridor, 3 washrooms, staff room $25,497
Alouette Elementary Wall carpet removal - Room 1031 10,009
District Wide Miscellaneous mechanical repairs 75,000
Harry Hooge Elementary Floor replacement - Staff room 1005 8,520
District Wide Plumbing repairs - Including backflow preventers, domestic water lines, drinking fountains 96,572
District Wide Painting - Exterior and Interior 100,000
District Wide Project tracking module of District's Asset Planner system 7,949
District Wide Ministry's Capital Asset Management System (CAPS) 44,051
District Wide Accessibility enhancements 50,000
District Wide Support spaces enhancement 100,000
Total AFG Special Purpose Fund $517,597

AFG Project Description (Capital Fund) Budget

Albion Elementary Asphalt replacement - Parking and main driveway $122,970

District Wide Card access upgrade 203,200

Kanaka Creek Elementary Fire alarm panel replacement 24,636

Alouette Elementary Fire alarm panel replacement 25,000

Glenwood Elementary Interior lighting and controls upgrade 93,539

Blue Mountain Elementary Low-efficiency boilers replacement with high-efficiency boilers 250,000

District Education Office Low-efficiency boiler replacement with high-efficiency boiler 75,000

Glenwood Elementary Floor replacement - Rooms 1009, 1022 & 1025 27109

Fairview Elementary Floor replacement - Rooms 1013, 1062, 1063 & 1064 30,771

Hammond Elementary Floor replacement - Gym rubber floor (damaged) 74,823

Glenwood Elementary Floor replacement - Main corridors 85,000

Thomas Haney Seconday 00T g room s —

= Highland Park Elementary Wall carpet removal - Library and side Rooms (1030 & 1082) 20,000
-,,g Riverside Centre Structural restoration of rotten beam 45130
3 Maple Ridge Secondary Replace elevator door system 31,500
-g Westview Secondary Roof replacement - Sections 14 & 15 642,840
E Harry Hooge Elementary Roof replacement - Sections 2 & 14 255,210
= Golden Ears Elementary Roof replacement - Sections 7, 8, 11 & 12 403,992
m Glenwood Elementary Roof replacement - Sections 4, 7 & 10 184,000
Samuel Robertson Secondary Roof replacement - Portables 4, 9, 10, & washroom portable 137,000

District Wide Portable ramp replacement (accessibility) - Phase 2 123,273

Total AFG Capital Fund $3,114,391

Total Annual Facilities Grant $3,631,988

For budgeting purposes, it is projected that the Annual Facilities Grant will remain unchanged for the years
2026/27 to 2028/29.

70 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 94



($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Contributions Received 0.51 0.51 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52

Allocated to Revenue (0.51) (0.51) (0.52) (0.52) (0.52) (0.52) (0.52) (0.52)
Deferred Revenue, end of year - - - - - - - -
Revenues

Provincial Grants - MECC 0.51 0.51 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52

Total Revenue 0.51 0.51 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 0.04 0.22 0.09 0.22 - - - -

Service and Supplies 0.08 0.16 0.05 0.1 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.06

Total Expenses 012 0.38 014 0.33 0.06 0.06 0.06 0.06
Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.39 043 0.38 0.19 0.46 0.46 0.46 0.46
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

Official Language Education Program (OLEP)

The Ministry of Education and Child Care administers federal funding intended to support costs resulting from
offering French as a second official-language instruction in B.C.

French funding is given under seven grants, and the school district can transfer funds within those grants.

All French funding is to be spent by June 30 of each year. The district receives 70% of the funding in the spring
of each year, and the 30% balance in the summer of the following year after it has submitted a report outlining
how the funds were spent and what benefits were derived from this funding.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.05 $0.08 $0.09 $0.09
Contributions Received 0.27 0.50 0.79 0.30 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.31
Investment Income Received 0.01
Allocated to Revenue (0.24) (0.50) (0.79) (0.39) (0.31) (0.31) (0.31) (0.31) m
Deferred Revenue, end of year 0.08 0.09 0.09 - - - - - -
Revenues §
Provincial Grants - MECC 0.24 0.49 0.79 0.39 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.31 o
Investment Income 0.01 §
Total Revenue 0.24 0.50 0.79 0.39 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.31 %’
Expenses =
Salaries and Benefits 0.1 015 0.57 0.24 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.21
Service and Supplies 0.07 0.20 0.22 0.15 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Total Expenses 018 0.35 0.79 0.39 0.31 0.31 0.31 0.31
Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.06 0.15
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 71
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 95



=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

Feeding Futures School Food Programs (FFSFP)

Feeding Futures School Food Programs funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care is designed

to address the top two barriers identified by schools in the province: sustainable and consistent food funding
and human resources. This funding is to enable school districts to deliver sustainable school food programs,
addressing the immediate need to support students in a stigma-free and barrier-free manner. The FFSFP funding
grant for 2025/26 is $1.88M. These projections assume the funding remains unchanged in future years.

FESFP ongoing base budget staffing allocations in 2024/25 support 1 FTE program manager, 6.43 FTE
additional child and youth care worker (CYCW) staffing time to top up hours at some elementary schools to 28
hours per week, specifically to assist with school food programs, and 0.57 FTE cafeteria assistant staffing time at
secondary schools without a teaching kitchen.

It is proposed for 2025/26 that $47K be allocated on an ongoing basis from the FESFP to add 1 FTE meal
preparation coordinator ($0.07M) to directly support menu planning, food preparation, purchasing, and delivery
across the district. It is further proposed for 2025/26, in response to a recent review of the CYCW role and
provision of food security, that the ongoing 6.43 FTE additional CYCW staffing time from this fund ($0.35M)
be discontinued, and 6.29 FTE cafeteria assistant staffing ($0.33M) be added on an ongoing basis to support
food programming across all elementary schools.

It is proposed that $47K be allocated on an ongoing basis from the Feeding Futures School Food Programs Fund to add 1 FTE meal preparation
coordinator ($0.07M). It is further proposed that the ongoing 6.43 FTE additional child and youth care worker staffing time from this fund ($0.35M)
be discontinued, and 6.29 FTE cafeteria assistant staffing ($0.33M) be added on an ongoing basis to support food programming across all
elementary schools.

(S millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $- $014
Contributions Received 1.90 1.87 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88
Allocated to Revenue - - (1.76) (2.01) (1.88) (1.88) (1.88) (1.88)
Deferred Revenue, end of year - - 014
Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC 176 2.01 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88
Total Revenue - - 176 2.01 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 0.40 0.55 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Service and Supplies 1.3 1.43 1.36 1.36 1.36 1.36
Total Expenses - - 17 1.98 1.88 1.88 1.88 1.88
Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.05 0.03
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $ $- $- $- $- $-

National School Food Program

As announced on March 7, 2025, the Ministry of Education and Child Care has finalized an agreement with
the Government of Canada for National School Food Program (NSFP) funding. B.C. will receive up to $71.4M
over the next five years in additional school food program funding to complement FESFP. The signing of this
agreement secures the first three years of funding for the province. Funding for this program for 2025/26 and
beyond has not yet been announced by the MECC and is therefore not included in these projections.

CommunityLINK

CommunityLINK (Learning Includes Nutrition and Knowledge) funding from the Ministry of Education and
Child Care is designed to support the academic achievement and social functioning of vulnerable students.
Programs and services can include breakfast, lunch, and snack programs, academic supports, counselling, youth

workers, and after-school programs. Total CommunityLINK funding for 2025/26 will be $636,848 and is
projected to remain unchanged.

72 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 96




This grant funds 9.65 FTE child and youth care workers, 0.29 FTE teacher, 0.25 FTE vice principal, supplies for
schools and support for before and after school programming.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.07 $0.08 $0.10

Contributions Received 0.58 0.59 0.61 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64

Investment Income Received 0.01

Allocated to Revenue (0.57) (0.58) (0.71) (0.64) (0.64) (0.64) (0.64) (0.64)
Deferred Revenue, end of year 0.08 0.10 - - - - - -
Revenues

Provincial Grants - MECC 0.57 0.57 0 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64

Investment Income 0.01

Total Revenue 0.57 0.58 0.7 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64
Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 0.55 0.57 0.63 0.61 0.62 0.62 0.62 0.62

Service and Supplies 0.02 0.01 0.08 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02

Total Expenses 0.57 0.58 0.7 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.64
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $ $ $

Early Learning Programs and Projects

As outlined in the ChildCareBC Plan, the province is working to establish an integrated early learning and child
care (ELCC) system. The Ministry of Education and Child Care is providing special purpose funding for a variety of
early learning programs and projects as outlined in the following table for 2025/26 funding totaling $513,100.

Early Learnlr.lg Programs/ Description 2025./26
Projects Funding

Allows parents to participate with their young child (aged birth to five) in play-based early learning activities,
StrongStart including stories, music, and art. At no cost to families, this early learning drop-in program helps prepare children ~ $256,000
for success in kindergarten.

Allows the district to facilitate community events targeted towards three-year-old children. The events are about
Ready, Set, Learn providing good information on how to support a young child’s early learning and development, and how to help 56,350
develop positive connections between families, the school system, and local community agencies.

Changing Results for Young Supporting educators and child care professionals to work together and learn from each other in support of social

Children emotional well-being in young children. 6,750

Partners with district/community sites and is focused on developing guidelines, models, and district/site
partnerships to ensure children and their families experience coherent transitions from community based early 19,000
learning experiences to Kindergarten in schools.

Strengthening Early Years
to Kindergarten Transitions

Supports school districts in deepening their understanding of the landscape of Early Learning and Child Care (ELCC)
Early Care and Learning on school grounds and establishing and growing strong relationships with early years' service providers, community
Funding to School Districts  (municipalities, child care partners, Indigenous people), and supports integrated planning for increased access and
school district capacity to expand access to affordable, quality child care on school grounds.

Total $513,100

175,000

The funding for future years has not been announced. Projections for these programs and projects are
consolidated in the following table and assume that funding will remain unchanged.

In 2024/25 these grants funded 8 FTE early childhood educators (ECE) for StrongStart, 0.20 FTE teacher for
Ready, Set, Learn, 0.55 FTE teacher and 1 FTE manager for Early Care and Learning Funding to school districts.

The district places a high value on early learning programs that welcome children into schools before they enter
kindergarten. Regrettably, StrongStart special purpose funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care
has remained unchanged since 2012/13. This is despite the increasing operational expenses incurred by these
centres that are impacted by inflation on salaries, benefits, and supplies. While the district wants to prioritize
early learning opportunities that create a strong foundation for kindergarten and future learning, subsidization
for all eight StrongStart Programs from the operating budget is unsustainable in the long-term due to operating

budget funding shortages.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 73
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 97

=1
S
)
=

uoNas [e




ion

| Sect

©
S
[—
(<]
=

A -

The number of StrongStart programs in the district are to be maintained at eight. The operating budget will
support $14K in supplies, and the additional shortfall of $55.5K for 1.426 FTE ECE staffing will be funded as a

budget reallocation within the early learning programs funding envelope.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.03 $0.01 $0.06 $0.05
Contributions Received 0.32 0.52 0.53 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Allocated to Revenue (0.34) (0.47) (0.54) (0.57) (0.52) (0.52) (0.52) (0.52)
Deferred Revenue, end of year 0.01 0.06 0.05 - - - - -
Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC 0.34 0.47 0.54 0.57 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Total Revenue 0.34 0.47 0.54 0.57 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 0.29 0.41 0.46 0.47 0.52 0.48 0.48 0.48
Service and Supplies 0.05 0.06 0.08 010 - 0.04 0.04 0.04
Total Expenses 0.34 0.47 0.54 0.57 0.52 0.52 0.52 0.52
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

Mental Health in Schools

The Mental Health in Schools funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care is designed to support
mental health and well-being promotion in our school community. Total Mental Health in Schools funding for
2024/25 was $51,000 and is projected to remain unchanged.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.07 $0.08 $0.08 $0.10

Contributions Received 012 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Investment Income Received 0.01 0.01

Allocated to Revenue (0.11) (0.06) (0.04) (0.15) (0.05) (0.05) (0.05) (0.05)
Deferred Revenue, end of year 0.08 0.08 0.10 - - - - -
Revenues

Provincial Grants - MECC 0.11 0.05 0.03 0.15 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Investment Income 0.01 0.01

Total Revenue 011 0.06 0.04 015 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Expenses

Salaries and Benefits 0.01 0.01 0.01 - - - -

Services and Supplies 0m 0.05 0.03 014 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Total Expenses 011 0.06 0.04 0.15 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

74 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 98



First Nation Student Transportation

The 2024/25 Joint First Nation Student Transportation Plans (Joint Plans) submitted by First Nations and the
school district has been approved. Total First Nation Student Transportation funding for 2024/25 was $70,501
and is projected to remain unchanged.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.01 $0.02 $0.03 $0.02
Contributions Received 0.01 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
Allocated to Revenue - (0.06) (0.08) (0.09) (0.08) (0.08) (0.08) (0.08)
Deferred Revenue, end of year 0.02 0.03 0.02 - - - - -
Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC - 0.06 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
Total Revenue - 0.06 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
Expenses
Service and Supplies - 0.06 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
Total Expenses - 0.06 0.08 0.09 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.08
Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

Youth Education Support Fund

The Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District is a registered charity. Donations received from community
members are recorded in the Youth Education Support Fund. The funds raised are used to support programs

and initiatives throughout the school district, which include playground equipment, breakfast, and hot lunch
programs, and other school-specific programs.

As the funding for the Youth Education Support Fund is based on community donations, the funding amount
for future years is difficult to estimate and our assumption is that contributions received will not change.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.23 $0.26 $0.27 $0.40 $0.40 $0.40 $0.40 $0.40 m
Contributions Received 0.37 0.35 0.61 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 -
Investment Income Received 0.01 0.02 §
Allocated to Revenue (0.34) (0.35) (0.50) (0.36) (0.36) (0.36) (0.36) (0.36) g

Deferred Revenue, end of year 0.26 0.27 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 E

Revenues %
Other Revenue 0.34 0.33 0.48 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 =
Investment Income 0.01 0.02
Total Revenue 0.34 0.34 0.50 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36

Expenses
Services and Supplies 0.27 0.27 0.38 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36
Total Expenses 0.27 0.27 0.38 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36 0.36

Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.07 0.07 012

Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 75
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 99



ion

| Sect

©
S
[—
(<]
=

A -

Scholarships and Bursaries

Scholarships and bursaries are established and awarded through the generosity of individuals and corporations

in our community. The scholarships and bursaries administered by the school district range from memorials to
honour the passing of a loved one, to corporations and individuals wanting to give back to the community. The
school district administers over 30 different scholarships and bursaries. It is estimated that contributions received
will remain the same in future years.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.16 $0.17 $0417 $0.17 $0.17 $0.17 $0.17 $0.17
Contributions Received 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
Investment Income Received 0.01 0.01 0.01
Allocated to Revenue (0.03) (0.04) (0.04) (0.04) (0.04) (0.04) (0.04) (0.04)

Deferred Revenue, end of year 017 017 0.17 017 017 017 017 017

Revenues
Other Revenue 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
Investment Income 0.01 0.01 0.01
Total Revenue 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04

Expenses
Services and Supplies 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04
Total Expenses 0.03 0.03 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04 0.04

Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $- $- $-

School Generated Funds

This fund represents the accumulated funds held by individual schools. Each school has its own bank account and
records the funds received and disbursed throughout the year. These funds are raised at the school level through
fundraising, cafeteria revenue, school store revenue, and various other activities. The school generated funds are
intended to be used to fund activities that directly benefit the students in the school.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year $0.93 $1.05 $115 $1.34 $1.34 $1.34 $1.34 $1.34
Contributions Received 314 4.49 5.48 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80
Allocated to Revenue (3.02) (4.39) (5.29) (4.80) (4.80) (4.80) (4.80) (4.80)

Deferred Revenue, end of year 1.05 115 1.34 1.34 1.34 1.34 1.34 1.34

Revenues
Other Revenue 3.02 4.39 5.29 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80
Total Revenue 3.02 4.39 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80

Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 0.07 0.05 0.06 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
Services and Supplies 2.91 4.33 5.21 470 470 470 470 470
Total Expenses 298 4.38 5.27 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80

Capital Purchases Transferred to the Capital Fund 0.04 0.01 0.02

Net Revenue (Expense) $- $- $- $- $- $ $- $-

Literacy Professional Learning Fund

The school district was awarded a grant of $221,496 in 2024/25 to support professional development for teachers and
support staff in the area of evidence-based approaches to literacy development, and literacy information/resources for
parents and caregivers. All funds are to be allocated before June 30, 2027. Due to the short nature of funding, no multi-
year table has been provided.

76 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 100



Capital Fund Budget

The Capital Fund includes capital expenditures related to land, buildings (purchases and enhancements),
computer hardware and software, vehicles and equipment that are funded from Ministry of Education and Child
Care capital grants (bylaw capital, Ministry of Education and Child Care restricted capital), land capital, local
capital, the operating fund, and special purpose funds. Pursuant to Ministerial Order 033/09, an annual deficit
may be incurred in the capital fund Statement of Operations for the portion of amortization expense that exceeds
revenues from deferred capital contributions. This deficit does not require prior approval from the Minister of

Education and Child Care.

In December 2024, school districts were advised that the Capital Management Branch of the Ministry of
Education and Child Care (MECC) will transition to the newly established Ministry of Infrastructure. This new
ministry will be responsible for the planning, procurement, and delivery of major capital projects for schools and
other provincial infrastructure. While this shift may affect the ministry through which school districts report
and receive capital funding, no formal communication has been received regarding the detailed implications of
this change. Therefore, the 2025/26 Preliminary Budget continues to reference the MECC in relation to capital
matters, until further details about the transition to the Ministry of Infrastructure are confirmed.

The Capital Fund budget includes local capital revenue, amortization of deferred capital revenue, amortization of
tangible capital assets, and capital assets estimated to be acquired or constructed and funded from local capital,
operating funds, and special purpose funds.

The following table summarizes the changes in the Capital Fund — actuals for years 2021/22 to 2023/24,
amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

($ millions) 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 | 2028/29
Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Accumulated Capital Surplus, beginning of year $89.25 $89.22 $79.90 $81.40 $79.80 $77.61 $75.46  $73.28

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC - - = - - - - -

School Site Acquisition Fees - - - - - - - -

Investment Income 0.06 0.30 - - - - - -

Other Revenue 0.04 0.05 0.06 - - - - -

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6.55 6.68 6.78 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68

Total Revenue 6.65 7.03 6.84 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68
Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 14.78

Total Expenses 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 14.78
Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 2.00 112 1.84 116 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

Local Capital 1.92 419 3.60 1.30 1.06 1.06 1.06 1.06

Total Interfund Transfers 3.92 5.31 5.44 2.46 1.81 1.81 1.81 1.81
Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (0.03) 1.69 1.50 (1.60) (2.19) (215) (218) (2.29)
Prior Period Adjustment - (11.01) - - - - - -

Use of Prior Year Operating Surplus

Accumulated Capital Surplus, end of year $89.22 $79.90 $81.40 $79.80 $77.61 $75.46 $73.28  $70.99
Source: 2021/22 - 2023/24 audited financial statements, amended budget for 2024/25, and estimates for future years.

The Capital Fund consists of multiple categories reflected in two financial projection tables, that follow this section:

* Capital Funds Invested in Tangible Capital Assets
* Bylaw Capital
* Ministry of Education and Child Care Restricted Capital
¢ Other Provincial Capital
* Land Capital
* Local Capital

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 77
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 101

=1
S
)
=

uoNas [e




ion

| Sect

©
S
[—
(<]
=

A -

The projections are high-level estimates based on assumptions about major budget change factors over the next
four years. These assumptions are as follows:

* There will be no provincial capital funding for site acquisitions, which is recorded as provincial grant
revenue when the sites are purchased.

* Provincial capital funding received for 2026/27 to 2028/29 for the acquisition of depreciable tangible
capital assets will be consistent with the approved capital funding for 2025/26 and is recorded as
amortization of deferred capital revenue over the life of the asset acquired.

e There will be no changes in the bylaw capital portion of annual facilities grants and other provincial
funding.

* There will be no cost escalation for projects in progress and the projects will be completed on time.

¢ School site acquisition charges will be utilized to partially fund the acquisition of new school sites.

¢ 'The Eric Langton Elementary seismic replacement and expansion project adding nine classrooms,
approved in November 2022, will be substantially completed and ready for occupancy in May 2026.

¢ 'The Blue Mountain Elementary prefabricated addition project adding five classrooms, approved in
September 2024, will be substantially completed and ready for occupancy in September 2026.

* The Golden Ears Elementary prefabricated addition project adding eight classrooms, approved in
September 2024, will be substantially completed and ready for occupancy in September 2026.

* 'The Pitt Meadows Secondary seismic replacement project, approved in August 2024, will be substantially
completed and ready for occupancy in September 2028.

The district’s business case for the Harry Hooge Elementary seismic upgrade and addition project is nearing
finalization. The ministry has identified this as a supported project; however, it is not reflected in these capital
projections as ministry funding and project schedule is not yet confirmed.

Capital Funds Invested in Capital Assets

The following table summarizes changes in the invested in capital assets portion of the Capital Fund balance — actuals
for years 2021/22 to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

Invested in Capital Assets (S millions) 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
P Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Accumulated Capital Surplus, beginning of year $83.07 $8276  $70.92 $71.99 $72.72 $7313 $7311  $74.02

Revenues
Provincial Grants - MECC

School Site Acquisition Fees

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6.55 6.68 6.78 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68

Total Revenue 6.55 6.68 6.78 6.88 7.01 7.88 8.81 10.68
Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 1.01 1.84 12.80 14.78

Total Expenses 10.60 10.65 10.78 10.94 11.01 11.84 12.80 14.78
Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 2.00 112 1.84 116 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

Total Interfund Transfers 2.00 112 1.84 116 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 0.71 1.57 172 3.63 3.61 314 415 2.65
Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital 1.03 0.45 1.51 - 0.05 0.05 - -
Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 174 2.02 3.23 3.63 3.66 319 415 2.65
Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (0.31) (0.83) 1.07 0.73 0.41 (0.02) 0.91 (0.70)
Prior Period Adjustment (11.01)
Accumulated Capital Surplus, end of year $8276  $70.92 $71.99 $72.72 $7343 $731 $74.02 $73.32

78 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 102



Bylaw Capital

Bylaw Capital Fund includes the Ministry of Education and Child Care capital grants for specific capital
projects funded by the MECC through certificates of approval. These projects include the capital portion of the
Annual Facility Grant (AFG), School Replacement Program (REP), School Expansion Program (EXP), School
Enhancement Program (SEP), Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP), Playground Equipment Program
(PEP), and the Food Infrastructure Program (FIP).

Ministry of Education and Child Care Restricted Capital

The Ministry of Education and Child Care Restricted Capital includes the MECC portion (usually 75%) of

the proceeds on disposal of land and buildings, and any bylaw project surpluses on completed projects. MECC
permission must be received to spend these funds. The balance in the fund at June 30, 2024 was $1.32M, of which
$1.18M is approved to partially fund the Eric Langton Elementary seismic replacement and expansion project and
the remaining $0.14M is approved to partially fund the Pitt Meadows Secondary seismic replacement project.

Other Provincial Capital

Other Provincial Capital Fund totalled $1.95M at June 30, 2024. This amount represents $1.78M for the child
care facility associated with Eric Langton Elementary seismic replacement and expansion project and $0.17M
accumulated interest allocations to this fund in previous years, which is restricted to child care capital projects.

Land Capital

The Land Capital Fund is comprised of school site acquisition charges, which municipalities collect on behalf of school
districts to help school districts pay for future school sites. Municipalities collect these charges for each new residential
parcel to be created and new multiple-family residential units to be constructed on an existing parcel. The funds may
be used only to purchase ministry-approved sites for new schools. These funds, totaling $3.08M at June 30, 2024, are
planned to be used for the acquisition of a new elementary school site in Silver Valley. This site has been included in the Five-
Year Capital Plan submitted to the Ministry of Education and Child Care, but MECC funding has not yet been confirmed.

Local Capital

The following table summarizes the changes in the local capital portion of the Capital Fund balance — actuals for
years 2021/22 to 2023/24, amended budget for 2024/25 and preliminary budget for 2025/26 to 2028/29.

Local Capital ($ millions) 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
P Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget

Accumulated Capital Surplus, beginning of year $6.18 $6.46 $8.98 $9.41 $7.08 $4.48 $2.35  $(0.74)
Revenues

Investment Income 0.06 0.30

Other Revenue 0.04 0.05 0.06

Total Revenue 0.10 0.35 0.06
Interfund Transfers

Local Capital 1.92 419 3.60 1.30 1.06 1.06 1.06 1.06

Total Interfund Transfers 1.92 419 3.60 130 1.06 1.06 1.06 1.06
Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital (0.71) (1.57) (1.72) (3.63) (3.61) (314) (4.15) (2.65)

Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital (1.03) (0.45) (1.51) (0.05) (0.05)

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances (1.74) (2.02) (3.23) (3.63) (3.66) (3.19) (4.15) (2.65)
Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year 0.28 2.52 0.43 (2.33) (2.60) (213) (3.09) (1.59)
Accumulated Capital Surplus, end of year $6.46 $8.98 $9.41 $7.08 $4.48 $2.35 $(0.74)  $(2.33)

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 79
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 103

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-




=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

Contingency Reserve Held in Local Capital

The Board of Education is responsible for ensuring the district is protected financially from extraordinary
circumstances which would negatively impact school district operations and the education of students. To
discharge this responsibility, the board maintains a contingency reserve of at least 1% of operating expenses and
not exceeding 3% of operating expenses to mitigate any negative impact such circumstances might cause. The
current balance of $2.11M is held in local capital and equates to 0.98% of 2025/26 budgeted Operating Fund
expenses. An increase of $0.58M is needed to meet the 1.25% target.

Information Technology (IT) Capital Plan

The IT capital plan serves as a cornerstone for managing technology refresh cycles and ensuring the sustained
availability of dependable I'T equipment and services. Encompassing a diverse range of technologies, including
multifunction devices (printers, copiers, scanners), projectors, public announcement (PA) systems, phone
systems, wireless internet systems, laptops, tablets, servers and storage, network switches, enterprise resource
planning system, and other infrastructure, this plan is designed to meet evolving educational needs.

The four-year IT capital plan is reviewed and updated annually, taking various factors into consideration including
projections for student enrolment and staffing levels, user feedback, assessment of identified requirements, long-
term operational stability, availability of technology, inflation trends, cost and operational effectiveness of available
solutions, and fiscal constraints. This iterative process ensures that the plan remains responsive to the dynamic
educational landscape and effectively supports the district’s technological requirements.

The following table outlines the projected IT capital needs for the next four years and shows a four-year funding

shortfall of $3.68M.

($ millions) 2024/25 | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29
IT Capital Plan
Projected Expenses $1.45 $1.48 $1.65 $2.86 $2.1 $9.55
Ongoing Transfer from the Operating Fund (0.85) (0.85  (0.85) (0.85)  (0.85) (4.25)
Available Funding in the Local Capital Fund (0.60) (0.63) (0.39) (1.62)
Total Funding Required $- $- $0.41 $2.01 $1.26 $3.68

New Temporary Classrooms

The Strategic Facilities Plan, adopted in 2022, identifies capital needs that the provincial government does not fund
as part of the capital plan, including new temporary classroom spaces such as portables.

Since 2016/17, our school district has experienced sustained and significant growth in student enrolment, a
trend that continues today. As a result, the district has been facing a classroom shortage and has added temporary
classrooms to meet the needs of the growing student population.

From 2021/22 to 2024/25, the district has transferred a total of $4.64M from available operating surplus to local
capital to support the purchase of new temporary classrooms of which $0.9M is projected to be available beyond
2024/25. It is projected that $0.02M will be spent in 2025/26 to create a new classroom from space currently
used for a StrongStart program at cosqonelo Elementary as that program will be relocated to Webster’s Corners
Elementary to operate as an afternoon program.

In September 2024, the MECC approved prefabricated addition projects at Blue Mountain Elementary (adding five
classrooms) and Golden Ears Elementary (adding eight classrooms), with both projects expected to be substantially
completed and ready for occupancy by September 2026. It is projected that $1.72M will be needed to relocate

six portables from these schools to other schools during 2025/26 ($0.88M) and 2026/27 ($0.84M) to support
projected classroom needs up to 2028/29. This results in a shortfall of $0.84M as presented in the following table.

($ millions) | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29 | Total

New Temporary Classrooms

Projected Expenses $0.90 $0.84 $- $- $1.74
Available Funding in the Local Capital Fund (0.90) - - - (0.90)
Total Funding Required $- $0.84 $- $- $0.84

80 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 104



Facility Equipment and Vehicle Capital Plan

The facility equipment and vehicle capital plan, established in 2025, provides a structured framework for the
sustainable replacement and upgrade of essential equipment and fleet vehicles. This includes various grounds
and custodial equipment, as well as more than 30 vehicles used by the maintenance team. This plan reflects a
replacement frequency for equipment ranging from 7 to 40 years, and for vehicles ranging from 7 to 10 years.

The current ongoing annual allocation from the Operating Fund to the local capital reserve to support these
expenses is $0.14M, while the estimated total replacement value of all existing facility equipment and vehicles is
$5.6M. Increasing the annual allocation will help reduce repair costs, improve fuel efficiency, minimize service
disruptions, and enhance both employee safety and productivity.

The following table outlines the projected facility equipment and vehicle capital needs for the next four years and shows

a four-year funding shortfall of $1.93M of which $0.53M pertains to 2025/26 and needs to be addressed urgently.

($ millions) 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028/29 Total
Facility Equipment and Vehicle Capital Plan
Projected Expenses $0.67 $0.68 $0.59 $0.54 $2.49
Ongoing Transfer from the Operating Fund (0.14) (0.14) (0.14) (0.14) (0.56)
Total Funding Required $0.53 $0.54 $0.45 $0.40 $1.93

Other Facilities Renewal

The Strategic Facilities Plan clearly identifies capital needs that are not funded by the provincial government as
part of the capital plan which includes renewal of facilities other than schools.

The Ministry of Education and Child Care does not fund the construction or upgrades made to administrative
and maintenance facilities. By 2040, all school district administrative buildings will require major renovations,
expansion, and upgrades. To support this future capital need, it is recommended within the Strategic Facilities
Plan that the school district allocate funds, on an annual basis, within local capital reserve for this purpose. The
estimated deferred maintenance for these facilities and the Facilities Condition Index (FCI) is summarized in

the following table. The FCI scale is from 0 to 1 and a higher FCI indicates buildings in poorer condition that
may require more maintenance or full replacement. The District Education Office deferred maintenance costs far

exceeds the value of the building. In general, the buildings that fall into this category (Other Facilities Renewal) m
have high FCI created by the lack of capital funding programs for administrative buildings.
-
T
Deferred =
Other Facilities FCI Maintenance S
Costs P
D
District Education Office 075 $3,130,044 =X
(=]
District Maintenance Office 0.55 $1,605,844 =
Riverside Centre 0.48 $4,367,982
TOTAL $9,103,870

As part of the Strategic Facilities Plan, the board approved a recommendation that the school district allocate
funds, on an annual basis, within local capital reserve to fund major renovations, expansion, and upgrades for
school district administrative buildings not funded by the MECC. In the 2022/23 budget, the board approved
that up to $1.6M be allocated from future years’ available surplus, not needed for other local capital, to support
the renewal of school district administrative buildings for the four years ending in 2025/26 ($0.4M per year). This
annual $0.4M allocation for the seven years ending 2028/29 results in a total local capital funding allocation of
$2.8M during the period. The current funded balance is $1.11M and the unfunded balance is $1.69M.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 81
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 105



=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

Local Capital Budget Summary

The following table summarizes the budget for local capital, including funding requirements related to the IT
capital plan, the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan, and implementation of the Strategic Facilities Plan.

($ millions) 2025/26 Proposed Identified Funding
Preliminary Budget Requirements

Contingency Reserve Held in Local Capital $2.1 $0.58
IT Capital Plan 2.27 3.68
Facilities Equipment and Vehicles 0.14 1.93
Child Care Capital 0.24
Virtual Boardroom 0.01

Strategic Facilities Plan Implementation

New Temporary Classrooms 0.90 0.84
Capital Planning 0.09
Sustainability Upgrades 0.57
Other Facilities Renewal m 1.69
Capital Cost Share — Eric Langton Elementary 0.70

Total Local Capital $814 $8.72

Impact of Capital Plan on Budget

Five-Year Capital Plan

On an annual basis the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District prepares a Five-Year Capital Plan and submits
it for funding consideration to the Ministry of Education and Child Care. The plan identifies capital funding needs
for existing and new facilities. The Strategic Facilities Plan outlines how capital plan priorities are to be established
for existing and new facilities.

Capital plan priorities for existing facilities are determined based on the following facility specific data:

* seismic risk

e facility condition

* energy management rank
* future utilization

New school site acquisitions and new space requests are defined and prioritized in the capital plan based on the
following data:

* long-term enrolment projections by capital zone

* development areas and the associated projected student enrolment in each development area
e available space in existing facilities

* potential for expansion of existing facilities

* potential for joint development with the City of Maple Ridge or City of Pitt Meadows

82 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 106



Bylaw Capital Plan Projects Completed or in Progress 2021/22 to 2024/25

Capital projects funded by the Ministry of Education and Child Care through bylaw capital that have been
completed or are in progress for the period 2021/22 to 2024/25 are summarized in the table below.

Facility Name ($ millions) Project Description Fﬁﬁldai:g Szp(:aznlen;; 52::"2;51 ?; Sz:ezr?efn: le?dz:eltzesd BT;t:\:v

Spending | Spending
Alouette Elementary Roofing $1.28 $- $1.28 $- $- $1.28
Blue Mountain Elementary 5 Prefabricated classrooms 750 0.60 0.60
¢asqenele Elementary New school - building 2573 0.16 0.26 0.06 0.48
Davie Jones Elementary Universally accessible playground equipment 017 017 0417
Edith McDermott Elementary FIP — Kitchen equipment upgrade 0.06 0.06 0.06
Edith McDermott Elementary HVAC upgrade 1.45 0.02 143 1.45
Edith McDermott Elementary Roofing 0.44 0.44 0.44
Edith McDermott Elementary Universally accessible playground equipment 0.20 0.20 0.20
Eric Langton Elementary Seismic replacement and extension 46.36 0.59 216 13.71 16.46
Garibaldi Secondary Domestic hot water tank system & boiler upgrade 0.63 0.63 0.63
Garibaldi Secondary FIP — Kitchen equipment upgrade 0.16 0.13 0.03 0.16
Glenwood Elementary Gender neutral washroom upgrade 0.52 0.32 0.19 0.51
Glenwood Elementary Roofing 017 017 017
Golden Ears Elementary 8 Prefabricated classrooms 12.00 0.80 0.80
Golden Ears Elementary Roofing 0.40 0.40 0.40
Harry Hooge Elementary Roofing 0.26 0.26 0.26
Harry Hooge Elementary Window replacement 0.31 0.28 0.28
Laity View Elementary Roofing 0.37 0.37 0.37
Maple Ridge Secondary Roofing 0.39 0.39 0.39
Mount Crescent Elementary Roofing 0.33 0.33 0.33
Multiple Schools Roof replacements and other minor capital 5.51 2.03 1.25 1.02 121 5.51
Pitt Meadows Secondary Seismic replacement and extension 143.74 0.40 0.40
Samuel Robertson Technical Roofing 010 010 010
Webster's Corners Elementary ~ Universally accessible playground equipment 017 017 0417
Webster's Corners Elementary  Boiler upgrade 0.39 0.03 0.36 0.39
Westview Secondary Roofing 1.38 0.72 0.66 1.38
Westview Secondary FIP — Kitchen equipment upgrade 0.04 0.03 0.03
Whonnock Elementary HVAC upgrade 1.46 0.20 1.26 1.46
Whonnock Elementary Roofing 0.21 0.21 0.21
Various Sites FIP - Kitchen equipment upgrades 0.02 0.02 0.02
Total $251.75 $3.79 $5.29 $5.98 $20.05 $35.11

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 83
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 107

=1
S
)
=

uoNas [e




ion

| Sect

©
S
[—
(<]
=

A -

Major Capital Plan 2025-2030

The Major Capital Plan for 2025-2030 was approved by the board in June 2024 and includes the capital projects
summarized in the table that follows for which ministry funding or support has not yet been confirmed.

2025-2030 Major Capital Plan

Program, Type &
Priority

o A P Estimated
Facility Name Project Description Project Value

BEP Upgrade 1" Fairview Elementary Building envelope upgrade 1987 and 1989 additions $1,513,336
BEP Upgrade 1 Alouette Elementary Building envelope upgrade of 1992 and 1993 additions 856,680
BEP Remediation 1** Pitt Meadows Elementary Building envelope remediation 543,290
EXP Addition 1% Harry Hooge Elementary Addition to increase capacity from 465 to 680 (80K/600E) 15,719,436
EXP Addition 1 Golden Ears Elementary Addition in increase capacity from 515 to 710 (20K/175E) 31,452,805
EXP New School 1 Silver Valley Elementary New elementary school for 660 (60K/600E new) 92,314,732
EXP New Site 1 Silver Valley Elementary New school site 26,090,000
EXP Addition 2 Blue Mountain Elementary Addition to increase capacity from 320 to 680 (60K/300E) 46,293,683
EXP New School 2 East Albion Elementary New elementary school for 395 (20K/375E new) 71,052,016
EXP Addition 3 Samuel Robertson Technical Secondary Addition to increase capacity from 600 to 1,300 114,791,106
EXP Addition 4 Highland Park Elementary Addition to increase capacity from 395 to 680 (60K/300E) 36,634,649
REP Renovation 1 Mount Crescent Elementary Major renovation 68,291,059
REP Renovation 1 Pitt Meadows Elementary Major renovation 7,231,214
REP Replacement 1* Pitt Meadows Secondary School replacement 138,533,066
SMP Upgrade 1% Harry Hooge Elementary Seismic upgrade 1block H3 1,486,898
SMP Upgrade 1 Maple Ridge Elementary Seismic upgrade of 1 block H1, 2 blocks H2 & 1 block H3 11,115,057
SMP Upgrade 2 Highland Park Elementary Seismic upgrade of 2 blocks H2 & 1 block H3 6,884,319
SMP Upgrade 3 Pitt Meadows Elementary Seismic upgrade of 2 blocks H1, 1 block H2 & 1 block H3 12,214,955
SMP Upgrade 4 Alouette Elementary Seismic upgrade of 1 block H1 & 1 block H2 11,133,807
SMP Upgrade 5 Glenwood Elementary Seismic upgrade of 1 block H1 7,019,651
SMP Upgrade 6 Davie Jones Elementary Seismic upgrade of 1 block H2 & 1 block H3 2,880,494
SMP Upgrade 7 Albion Elementary Seismic upgrade of 4 blocks 5,800,000
SMP Upgrade 8 Mount Crescent Elementary Seismic upgrade of 5 seismic blocks rated H1 to H3 12,287,438
Total 2025-30 Major Capital Plan $722139,691

*Pitt Meadows Secondary seismic replacement project was approved by the ministry for funding of $143,883,931 in August 2024.
**Fairview Elementary and Pitt Meadows Elementary building envelope upgrade projects were approved by the ministry in March 2024. Awaiting next

steps from BC Housing.

***Harry Hooge Elementary addition/seismic project was approved by the ministry to proceed to business case development and submission.

84 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 108



Minor Capital Plan 2025-2030
The Minor Capital Plan for 2025-2030 was approved by the board in September 2024 and includes the capital

projects summarized in the table that follows. These minor projects will help to address required deferred
maintenance items and realize the district’s sustainability goals.

2025-2030 Minor Capital Plan

T o - - Estimated
Program & Priority Facility Name Project Description e e VA

CNCP 1* Golden Ears Elementary Replace end-of-life boilers with high efficiency boilers $563,750
CNCP 2 Maple Ridge Elementary Replace end-of-life boilers with high efficiency boilers 563,750
CNCP 3 Maple Ridge Secondary Replace end-of-life boilers with high efficiency boilers 871,250
CNCP 4 Highland Park Elementary Replace end-of-life boilers with high efficiency boilers 615,000
CNCP 5 Blue Mountain Elementary Replace end-of-life boilers with high efficiency boilers 563,750
FIP 1* Riverside Centre Purchase electric (EV) delivery van to deliver meals 117,000
FIP 2 Maple Ridge Secondary Replace end-of-life cafeteria equipment 146,063
FIP 3 Highland Park Elementary Upgrade kitchen infrastructure and equipment 71,750
FIP 4 Thomas Haney Secondary Replace end-of-life cafeteria equipment 39,206
FIP 5 Samuel Robertson Technical Replace end-of-life cafeteria equipment 26,138
PEP 1* Highland Park Elementary Replace end-of-life playground equipment 199,875
PEP 2 Fairview Elementary Replace end-of-life playground equipment 199,875
PEP 3 Alouette Elementary Replace end-of-life playground equipment 199,875
SEP 1 Thomas Haney Secondary Replace end-of-life digital control systems (DDC) 512,500
SEP 2* Highland Park Elementary Replace unit ventilators in classrooms (1to 10) - Phase 1 666,250
SEP 3 Davie Jones Elementary Replace unit ventilators in classrooms (8) 563,750
SEP 4 Highland Park Elementary Replace unit ventilators in classrooms (11 to 21) - Phase 2 732,875
SEP 5 Harry Hooge Elementary Replace unit ventilators in classrooms (15 of 30) - Phase 1 999,375
Total 2025-30 Minor Capital Plan $7,652,031

*Projects are approved by the ministry in March 2025 to proceed to design, tender and construction, and to be completed by March 31, 2026.

Four-Year Projection for Bylaw Capital Projects

The following table presents confirmed ministry-approved capital projects and the estimated capital spending
associated with these projects over the next four years.

=1
S
)
=

Estimated | Amount |\ ' | 2025/26 | 2026/27 | 2027/28 | 2028129
Project Funded by

Project Description Value Others | Funding

uoNas [e

Facility Name

Eric Langton Elementary Seismic replacement and expansion $53.76 $51.26 $2.50  $20.40 $8.80 $10.62 $-
Pitt Meadows Secondary Seismic replacement 143.88 143.74 014 6.70 36.00 49.00 5178
Blue Mountain Elementary Addition 5 prefabricated classrooms 750 750 6.40 0.50

Golden Ears Elementary Addition 8 prefabricated classrooms 12.00 12.00 10.00 1.20

Golden Ears Elementary CNCP - HVAC upgrades 0.56 0.56 0.56

Highland Park Elementary SEP — HVAC upgrades 0.67 0.67 0.67

Highland Park Elementary PEP - Playground upgrade 0.20 0.20 0.20

Riverside Centre FIP — Delivery Vehicle 012 012 012

Thomas Haney Secondary SEP — HVAC upgrades 0.51 0.51 0.51

Total $219.20  $216.56 $2.64 $45.56 $46.50 $59.62  $51.78

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 85
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 109



=
(=]
=]
(&)
D
(7]
s
(%)
[—
(<]
£
(5 59

Risk to the Preliminary Budget Estimates

Revenue

The provincial operating grant included in these estimates may differ from the actual amounts confirmed and
distributed by the Ministry of Education and Child Care later in the year. The main factors that create variances
of provincial funding are actual funded enrolment at September 30, 2025, and other provincial funding
announcements made during the remainder of 2024/25 and into 2025/26. Other provincial grants included in
these estimates, such as funding for other wage and benefit increases, early learning programs and projects, and
the Classroom Enhancement Fund, may also differ from amounts actually received.

The projected international education revenue of $10.08M (net revenue of $2.02M) is based on an enrolment
estimate of 550 FTE students. The actual revenue and net revenue from international education may

vary significantly from estimates due to the highly competitive nature of this market, changes to Canada’s
international student program regulations, and shifts in the global economy or political climate. Significant
negative variance would need to be funded from the contingency reserve.

Expenses

Staffing levels included in these estimates are based on projected student enrolment. Any material change to
student enrolment or the distribution of students by school may impact the staffing levels required in 2025/26.

The salaries and benefits estimates are based on estimated average salaries for teachers, specific salaries for other
employee groups, and known benefit rate changes. Actual average salary and benefit costs will vary from these
estimates. Substitute costs may vary significantly from the projected costs that are based on historical trends.
These estimates are further based on the assumption that all costs related to the implementation of the restored
MRTA and CUPE collective agreement language will be fully funded by the Ministry of Education and Child
Care through the Classroom Enhancement Fund and that all costs related to labour settlements with MRTA and
CUPE will be fully funded by the ministry.

Education assistant staffing is based on estimated funded enrolment for students with disabilities and diverse
abilities. Due to delays in medical assessments and therapeutic preschool programming, some kindergarten
students may enter school without official diagnoses or supports. These students may require higher levels of
service than funded, resulting in additional staffing needs to be funded from the contingency reserve.

On September 4, 2024, the BC Public School Employers’ Association (BCPSEA) announced a change in
direction regarding access to Employment Standards Act paid sick leave whereby casual employees (e.g., TTOCs
and casual EAs) may be eligible for paid sick leave if they decline shifts due to illness or injury. The financial
impact of this change is not yet known and is not included in these estimates.

Delays in energy management initiatives, changing weather patterns, or unexpected increases in utility rates or
consumption may lead to higher utility costs.

Current budget allocations are insufficient to fully support the procurement, maintenance or timely replacement
of school district assets. As a result, I'T hardware is not refreshed on a regular basis, the deferred maintenance

for district facilities continues to grow, and the facility condition index for school district facilities continues to
decline. Any major equipment failures during 2025/26 would need to be funded from the contingency reserve.

Cost Pressures

Recent U.S. tariffs are expected to increase the cost of goods and materials, affecting expenses in several areas
including construction, facility maintenance, technology, and classroom supplies. As procurement and capital
projects become more expensive, the district may face further budget pressures, forcing reallocation of funds
or delays in planned upgrades and initiatives. Long-term, this may strain operational flexibility and limit
investments in educational improvements.

86 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 110



Capital Projects

Due to their magnitude, capital projects have the potential to significantly impact the financial position of
the school district. Although risk is assessed for individual projects on an ongoing basis, there is no process to
assess risk of the entire capital program. Project agreements with the MECC include contingencies to mitigate
financial risk. Smaller projects consider contingency requirements when building the overall project budget
and are managed internally. The contingency reserve held in local capital is available to mitigate the residual
risk for capital projects.

Enrolment and Staffing Growth

With the implementation of the restored MRTA collective agreement language resulting in smaller class sizes, a
greater number of teacher FTEs need to be added than would previously have been required. As the district grows,
additional classroom space needs to be created. This growth brings with it a financial risk in how to provide for these
additional resources under the current Ministry of Education and Child Care funding envelope.

Contingency Reserve

The operating budget estimates do not include a contingency for unforeseen or unbudgeted costs that may arise, or
changes in estimates resulting from external factors The board’s only available emergency fund is the contingency
reserve fund held in local capital, which has a current balance of $2.11M.

X
-
7]
-
=)
)
w
(1°3
(=]
=
(=]
-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 87
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 111



>
(<]
£
£
=]
(%]
[}
2
=
=
(%}
(7]
>
i
1IN

g Financial Section

{f;é Informational Section

88 April 30,2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 112




INFORMATIONAL SECTION

-
L)
@‘\(4
=~ )
=3
—r
o
=
3
(-7}
=
(=]
-
=2
w
D
(=]
2
o
=}



=
o
=
[®)
(7]
(7]
©
=
o
=
[}
e
D
(=]
e
=
-
\[ﬁ
\ |

STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT

Our school district mission is to support all individuals in their development as successful learners, and as
respectful, caring, and responsible members of society. Our vision is for every individual to feel valued and for all
learners to reach their potential.

Completion Rates

We are pleased that once again our six-year school completion rate data continues to increase. The graphs below
show the six-year graduation rates for all B.C. students, Indigenous students, and students with disabilities and
diverse abilities. For 2023/24, the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District six-year graduation rates for all
three categories were above the provincial average: B.C. students 97.4% (provincial average: approximately 91%),
students of Indigenous ancestry 93.2% (provincial average: approximately 75%), and students with disabilities
and diverse abilities 88.3% (provincial average: approximately 78%). Completion rates include a Certificate of
Graduation and Adult Graduation Diploma.

All Students

The Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District’s six-year completion rate for B.C. students for the 2023/24
school year was 97.4%, exceeding the provincial average of approximately 91%.

Seven years ago, in 2016/2017, the school district’s overall six-year completion rate was 89.5%. Considerable
attention and effort has been dedicated to providing engaging and inclusive programming for students focusing
both on improving graduation rates and the quality of graduation.

A comprehensive review and analysis of student achievement is provided in the Supporting All Learners:
Enhancing Student Learning Report (September, 2024).

2023/24 SIX-YEAR GRADUATION RATES BC STUDENTS

981%  97.4%
956% 96.0%

92.7% 92.3% 93.2%
89-5% I I

2016/17 2017/18 2018119 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

90 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 114


https://www.sd42.ca/assets/media/2024-09-11-2023-24-SD42-Framework-for-Enhancing-Student-Learning.pdf
https://www.sd42.ca/assets/media/2024-09-11-2023-24-SD42-Framework-for-Enhancing-Student-Learning.pdf

Students with Indigenous Ancestry

In 2016/17, the six-year completion rate for students with Indigenous ancestry was 83.5%. For 2023/24, this
completion rate is 93.2%, which is above the provincial average of approximately 75%. It is our goal to continue
to improve this good result. Our ultimate goal is to achieve the same rate of graduation for all of our graduating
students, and we are close to achieving this goal.

Students with Disabilities and Diverse Abilities

The six-year completion rate for students with disabilities and diverse abilities for 2023/24 is 88.3%. This is a significant
improvement from 71.8% in 2016/17, and is higher than the provincial average of approximately 78%. School District
42 focuses on the inclusion of all students. We celebrate the success of students with disabilities and diverse abilities
and will continue to work hard to improve the outcomes for these students.

INDIGENQUS STUDENTS SIX-YEAR GRADUATION RATES

93.2%

00.0% 90.3%
86.2%
835y o49% 84.1%

IIsz.%IIII

2016/17 201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES AND DIVERSE ABILITIES S/X-YEAR GRADUATION RATES

91.4%
88.3%

85.3% 87.0%
g80.7% 81.9%
74.8%
71.8% I

2016/17 2017/18 2018119 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

L\
L)
R
=~ )
5
—
o
-
3
[-3}
=2
(=]
-
=3
w
D
(=]
=
(=]
-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 91
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 115




OPERATING BUDGET HISTORICAL DATA

The information presented in this section is based on comparative final operating budget information for the years
2017/18 to 2024/25.

Amended Budget Revenue and Expenses

Since 2017/18, both revenue and expenses have increased due to labour settlement costs and corresponding increases
in provincial funding. In the same period, expense reductions have been made to compensate for increased costs not
funded by the province. The following table summarizes the revenues and expenses submitted as part of the amended
annual budgets.

Budget ($ millions) 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 | 2024/25
Operating Revenues $142.34 $147.42  $155.32 $156.21 $16778  $183.57 $201.71  $213.85
Use of Prior Year Operating Surplus 519 4.35 438 751 6.37 4.48 4.23 517
Operating Expenses (142.39)  (148.59)  (156.95) (161.08) (171.43)  (184.87)  (204.07)  (216.80)
Transfers to Other Funds @) (318) (2.75) (2.64) (2.53) (318) (1.87) (2.22)
Budgeted Surplus $0.43 $- $- $- $0.19 $- $- $

Source: 2017/18 — 2024/25 amended annual budget submissions. 2017/18 surplus reflects board approved use of surplus to fund one-time budget items
approved in 2016/17. 2021/22 surplus reflects provincial policy direction to show contingency reserves for operating as surplus.

From 2017/18 to 2024/25, budgeted revenues have increased by $71.51 million. This increase is mainly due
to provincial grants received to fund negotiated labour settlement costs for all unionized employees. Per pupil
funding has increased from $7,301 per student in 2017/28 to $8,915 in 2024/25.

The 2024/25 budgeted revenue by type is shown in the graph below.

BUDGETED OPERATING REVENUE ($ millions)

[ PROVINCIAL AND OTHER GRANTS $198.45 (90.61%)

REVENUE [ TUITION FEES $11.22 (5.12%)
AMENDED
BUDGET [ PRIOR YEAR OPERATING SURPLUS $5.17 (2.36%)
2024/25 [ OTHERREVENUE $1.69 (0.77%)
B INVESTMENT INCOME  $1.66 (0.76%)
[T RENTALS & LEASES $0.83 (0.38%)

=
o
=
[®)
(7]
(7]
©
=
o
=
[}
e
D
(=]
e
=
-
\[ﬁ
\ |

92 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 116




BUDGETED OPERATING REVENUE BY TYPE  ($ millions)

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Provincial Grants - MECC $130.93 $135.51 $143.08 $149.90 $157.26 $170.37 $187.85 $197.67
Provincial Grants - Other 0.4 0.33 0.33 0.26 0.31 0.33 0.31 0.42
Federal Grants 0.16 0.26 0.24 0.01 017 0.28 0.34 0.36
Tuition 8.86 9.32 9.34 4.38 8.33 9.61 10.07 11.22
Other Revenue 0.97 0.91 0.92 0.78 0.86 1.03 1.26 1.69
Rentals and Leases 0.48 0.47 0.75 0.55 0.62 0.75 0.68 0.83
Investment Income 0.53 0.62 0.66 0.33 0.24 1.20 1.20 1.66
Total Revenue $142.34 $147.42 $155.32 $156.21 $167.79 $183.57 $201.71 $213.85

Source: Amended annual budget submissions

BUDGETED OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTION  ($ millions)

201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Instruction $121.78 $127.03 $133.46 $137.58 $147.04 $158.95 $176.14 $186.40
District Administration 5.39 5.77 6.29 6.33 6.41 6.93 767 8.54
Operations and Maintenance 14.57 151 16.57 16.83 17.40 18.37 19.63 21.04
Transportation 0.64 0.68 0.64 0.34 0.58 0.62 0.63 0.82
Other 472 318 2.76 2.64 2.53 318 1.87 2.22
Total Expenses $14710 $151.77 $159.72 $163.72 $173.96 $188.05 $205.94  $219.02

Source: Amended annual budget submissions

Each year, approximately 85% of the district’s expenses are allocated to instruction. Operations and maintenance,
district administration, transportation, capital assets purchased from operating and interfund transfers account
for the remainder of the expenses.

For the period shown, the school district has spent approximately 90% of its budget on salaries and benefits. The
balance is used to cover supplies, utilities, services, and other costs.

BUDGETED OPERATING EXPENSES BY TYPE ($ millions)

201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Salaries and Benefits $126.85 $132.51 $140.73 $146.80 $155.94 $168.40 $186.33 $198.03
Services and Supplies 15.54 16.08 16.23 14.28 15.49 16.47 17.74 18.77
Total Expenses 142.39 148.59 156.96 161.08 17143 184.87 204.07 216.80
Capital Purchases and Other 47 318 2.76 2.64 2.53 318 1.87 2.22
Total $14710 $151.77 $159.72 $163.72 $173.96 $188.05 $205.94 $219.02

Source: Amended annual budget submissions

The budgeted expenses by function and by type for 2024/25 are shown in the graphs below.

[ INSTRUCTION (85.11%) [ SALARIES (71.71%)

BUDGETED

O .71%,
supgereo W o
EXPENSES EXPENSES
BY FUNCTION BY TYPE
2024/25 A @ visRICT ADMINISTRATION (3.90% 2024/25 B SERVICES & SUPPLIES (7.30%)

B TRANSPORTATION (0.37%)
I OTHER (1.01%)

W UTILITIES (1.27%)

[ CAPITAL ASSETS PURCHASED
&OTHER (1.01%)

L\
)
X,
=~ )
5
—
o
-
3
[-3}
=2
o
-
=3
w
D
(=]
=
(=]
-

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 93
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 117




=
.°
=
[®)
(7]
(7]
(¢}
f—
K=
2
(<]
e
e
(=]
L
=
-
1
\[ﬁ
\ |

Staffing

From 2017/18 to 2024/25, as presented in the following table, total operating and classroom enhancement
funded staffing in the Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows School District has increased by 500 FTE (30%), primarily
to support increased enrolment and collective agreement staffing requirements. This includes an increase in

school-based stafhing of 468 FTE (32%) and an increase in district-based staffing of 32 FTE (19%).

Teaching staff and principals/vice principals have increased due to increased enrolment. Education assistants
have increased to support higher enrolment of students with disabilities and diverse abilities. Support staft and
other professionals have increased to support the operations of the district.

L)
2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020721 | 202122 | 2022/23 | 2023724 | 2024/25 FrEf::;"Qe J ?:’:n':ge
FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE e | 2008

School-based Staffing

Teachers 903.43 912.74 929.85 951.87 989.29 1,002.97 1,051.82  1,070.19 166.76 18.46%
Principals/VPs - Teaching time 9.40 1.40 13.60 14.20 14.20 1517 16.30 16.10 6.70 71.28%
Principals/VPs - Admin time 3770 39.44 42.29 42.37 43.55 43.85 43.82 4415 6.45 171%
Educational Assistants 343.08 368.43 418.43 446.91 478.44 529.36 561.62 604.42 261.34 76.17%
Support Staff 177.82 179.96 186.14 189.66 190.93 19314 19414 201.53 2371 13.33%
Other Professionals 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Total School-based Staffing 1,471.43  1,511.97  1,590.31  1,645.01 1,719.41 1,787.49 1,870.70  1,939.39 467.96 31.80%

District-based Staffing

Principals/VPs 6.00 6.00 6.95 6.35 6.65 7.45 175 7.65 1.65 27.50%
Other Professionals 3230 36.30 39.30 40.30 40.30 43.30 47.80 49.80 17.50 5418%
Support Staff 133.41 135.96 142.41 143.63 143.90 143.65 144.90 146.71 13.30 9.97%
Total District-based Staffing 17.n 178.26 188.66 190.28 190.85 194.40 200.45 204.16 3245 18.90%
Combined Total 1,64314 1,690.23 177897 1,835.29  1,910.26 1,981.89 2,07115  2,143.55 500.41 30.45%

Source: 1530 report submissions for 2017/18 to 2019/20, restated to reflect ongoing allocations only and calculation of budgeted hours per week
divided by full time hours per week per position; child and youth care worker FTE removed for all prior years as paid from special purpose funds.
Positions have been summarized between school-based and district-based staffing. Comparable information is presented for 2020/21 to 2024/25 for
which 1530 report submissions were not required.

Staffing levels across all employee groups have increased since 2017/18, as detailed in the table below. Teacher
staffing has increased by 170 FTE (18%), primarily due to the restoration of the collective agreement language
regarding class size. CUPE stafhng has increased by 296 FTE (46%), largely driven by a 261 FTE (76%)
increase in educational assistant staffing to support the growing enrolment of students with disabilities and
diverse abilities. Principal staffing has increased to meet school needs, and other professionals staffing has
increased to support district operations in human resources, communications, finance, and information

technology.
FTEchange | % change
201718 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 202122 | 2022/23 | 202324 | 2024125 | ™ rom
FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE e | e

MRTA 919.03 928.34 94725 969.27 1,006.69 1,020.57 1,069.42 1,088.59 169.56 18.45%
CUPE 638.71 668.75 729.58 762.80 795.87 848.55 883.06 934.26 295.55 46.27%
Principals/VPs/Other 85.40 9314 10214 10322 10770 1277 11867 12070 3530  4133%
Professionals
Total 1,64314 1,690.23 177897 1,835.29 1,910.26 1,981.89 2,071.15 21143.55 500.41 30.45%

94 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 118



The following table provides a history of students-to-staff ratios for each staffing category. This is a broad measure

of the ability of staff to support the needs of students and the district.

School-based Staffing

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio

% change

2024/25

. from
Ratio o

2017118

Teachers 16.78 16.76 16.76 16.20 16.25 16.55 1615 16.08 (4.16%)
Principals/VPs - Teaching time 1,612.91  1,341.62 1146.00  1,085.97 1131.88 1,094.26 1,041.86  1,069.07  (33.72%)
Principals/VPs - Admin time 40216 38779 368.54 363.96 369.06 378.56 387.55 389.85 (3.06%)
Educational Assistants 4419 41.51 37.25 34.51 33.59 31.36 30.24 2848  (35.56%)
Support Staff 85.26 84.99 8373 81.31 8418 85.95 87.47 85.41 0.17%
Other Professionals 535755 553330 566075 5737.33
School-based Staffing Average 10.30 1012 9.80 9.37 9.35 9.29 9.08 8.87

District-based Staffing
Principals/VPs 2,526.90 2,549.08 2,24254 2,42847  2,416.94 2,22817 219126  2,249.93  (10.96%)
Other Professionals 469.39 42133 396.58 382.65 398.83 383.37 355.28 345.62  (26.37%)
Support Staff 113.65 112.49 109.44 107.36 111.69 115.56 117.20 117.32 3.23%
District-based Staffing Ratio 88.30 85.80 82.61 81.04 84.22 85.39 8472 84.31

Combined Average Ratio 9.23 9.05 8.76 8.40 8.41 8.38 8.20 8.03

The staff-to-student ratio has improved modestly since 2017/18, but the changes have not been equal across
employee groups.

Staff-to-student ratios have improved for the following positions:

e Teachers (down 4.16%)

* Principals and Vice Principals (down 3.06% in admin component, 31.72% in teaching component, and
10.96% in district-based)

e Other Professionals (down 26.37% in district-based)

* Educational Assistants (down 35.56%) This substantial improvement is mainly due to the increased number
of education assistants employed to support students with disabilities and diverse abilities

* Support Staff (up 0.17% in school-based and 3.23% in district-based)

The average class size in the Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District increased slightly from 22.90 in 2017/18 to
23.00 in 2024/25.

AVERAGE CLASS SIZE 201718 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Province of BC 21.90 22.00 2210 21.30 22.50 22.70 22.80 22.90
Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District 22.90 2310 23.30 22.20 22.60 23.00 23.20 23.00

Source: https://catalogue.data.gov.be.ca/dataset/be-schools-class-size

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 95
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 119

L\
L)
@-\
=~ )
=3
—r
(=]
—
S
[-3)
=
(=]
-
=R
w
D
(=]
=
o
-




=
'O
=
[®)
(7]
(7]
(¢}
f—
=]
=
(<]
£
e
(=]
L
=
-
1
\[ﬁ
\ |

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

AFG

Amended Budget

Amortization

Annual Budget

BCPSEA
BCSTA
BCTF

BIPOC
Budget Year

Capital Fund

Capital Bylaw

Casual Employee
CcCcYw

CEF

CEO

CFO

CNCP

CommunityLINK

CPI
CPP
CUPE

Curriculum and

Learning Support Fund

Annual Facilities Grant

Boards must prepare, have adopted by bylaw and submit to the MECC amended (final) budget
on or before February 28. For the 2024/25 amended budget only, the ministry changed the
deadline to March 28, 2025.

The cost of a tangible capital asset with a limited life less any residual value is amortized over
the assets useful life. Amortization is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Operations.

Boards must prepare a preliminary budget and have it adopted by bylaw on or before June 30 as
per section 113 of the School Act (Adoption of Budget) and submitted to the MECC by this date.

British Columbia Public School Employers' Association
British Columbia School Trustees' Association

British Columbia Teachers' Federation

Black, Indigenous, and People of Colour

July 1to June 30

The capital fund includes capital expenditures related to facilities (purchases and
enhancements) and equipment (purchases) that are funded by Ministry of Education and Child
Care capital grants, operating funds, and special purpose funds.

If the MECC approves a capital plan, the board must prepare a capital bylaw in a form specified
by the minister. The capital bylaw must be adopted by a majority of the board and the board
may not amend a capital bylaw except as approved in writing by the minister.

Individuals who substitute for regular continuing staff other than teachers.

Child and Youth Care Worker

Classroom Enhancement Fund

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Carbon Neutral Capital Program, a category of funding under the MECC capital plan.

CommunityLINK (Learning Includes Nutrition and Knowledge) funding is designed to support the
academic achievement and social functioning of vulnerable students. Programs and services can
include breakfast, lunch and snack programs, academic supports, counseling, youth workers and
after-school programs.

Consumer Price Index
Canada Pension Plan
Canadian Union of Public Employees - Local 703

The Curriculum and Learning Support Fund is an operating grant provided to assist boards of
education as they implement the new curriculum.

96 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 120



Deferred Revenue

Deferred Capital
Contribution

DPAC
EA
ECE

EDI

Educational Assistants

EHB

El

ELL

Enrolment Count

FCI

FFSFP

FIP

FTE

Inclusive Education

Indigenous Education

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of
restricted contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury
Board. When restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue.

Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as
deferred capital contribution and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the
statement of operations.

District Parent Advisory Council
Education Assistant
Early Childhood Educator

The Early Years Development Instrument is a short questionnaire completed by kindergarten
teachers across Canada and internationally which measures children's ability to meet age
appropriate developmental expectations.

Education assistants, early childhood educators, teacher assistants, child and youth care
workers, and Indigenous Education support workers.

Extended Health Benefits
Employment Insurance
English Language Learners

School district submission of enrolment information to the Ministry of Education and Child Care.
This includes data about each student enrolled in a educational program provided by the board,
each child registered with a school or distributed learning school operated by the board, and
each child who participates in an early learning program. Enrolment counts are completed in
September, February and May of each school year.

The Facility Condition Index is a comparative index allowing the Ministry of Education and
Child Care to rank each school against all others in the province and is expressed as a
decimal percentage of the cost to remediate maintenance deficiencies divided by the current
replacement value.

Feeding Futures School Food Programs fund, a special purpose fund that commenced in 2023/24.
Food Infrastructure Program, a category of funding under the MECC capital plan
Full Time Equivalent

Inclusive Education refers to programming and services support and accommodations provided
to students with disabilities and diverse abilities to enable them to access and participate in
educational programs. School districts receive supplemental operating grant funding from the
Ministry of Education and Child Care for Inclusive Education for students categorized as Level
1to 3 where Level 1includes students identified as Physically Dependent or Deafblind; Level 2
includes students identified as Moderate to Profound Intellectual Disability, Physical Disability
or Chronic Health Impairment, Visual Impairment, Deaf or Hard of Hearing, Autism Spectrum
Disorder; and Level 3 includes students identified as Intensive Behaviour Interventions or
Serious Mental lliness.

Indigenous Education refers to programing and services provided by for culturally appropriate
educational programs and services to support the success of Indigenous students. School districts
receive targeting funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care for Indigenous Education.

Information Technology

Thousand

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 97

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 121

L\
L)
@‘\A
=~ )
=3
—
(=]
-
3
[-3)
=
(=]
-
=2
w
D
(=]
=
o
=}




=
.O
=
[®)
(7]
(7]
(¢}
f—
=]
=
(<]
£
e
(=]
L
=
-
1
\[ﬁ
\ |

LCR
M

Memorandum of
Agreement

MECC
MRPVPA
MRTA
MyEd BC
MyPortfolio
OLEP

Operating Fund

Operating Grant

oT

Other Professionals

PIVP

Parent Portal

PEP

Preliminary Budget

Principal and
Vice Principal

PSEC
PST

Relief Teachers

School Site Acquisition

Charges (SSAC)

SD42

SEL

Local Capital Reserve
Million

In March 2017, the Ministry of Education, the BC Public Schools Employers' Association and the BC
Teachers' Federation ratified a Memorandum of Agreement that fully and finally resolved all matters
related to the implementation of the Supreme Court of Canada decision from the fall of 2016.

Ministry of Education and Child Care

Maple Ridge Principals’ and Vice Principals’ Association

Maple Ridge Teachers' Association

Student information system

SharePoint platform for collecting and sharing a student's educational journey through portfolios
Official Language Education Program, a special purpose fund for French programming

The Operating Fund includes operating grants and other revenues used to fund instructional
programs, school and district administration, facilities and IT operations, maintenance and
transportation.

The Operating Grant represents the amount of operating funding allocated by the Ministry of
Education and Child Care to boards of education on an annual basis.

Occupational Therapist

Superintendents, assistant superintendents, secretary treasurers, assistant secretary
treasurers, managers, and any other board employee who is excluded from a union agreement.

Principal/Vice Principal

SD42-developed online tool that allows parents/guardians to register their children for
kindergarten, fill in school forms, sign off on field trips, receive timely school and school district
communications, make secure payments online, and more.

Playground Equipment Program is a category of funding under the MECC capital plan.

Boards must prepare, adopt by bylaw, and submit to the MECC an annual (preliminary) budget on or
before June 30 as per section 113 of the School Act (Adoption of Budget).

Certified teachers (or teachers with a letter of permission) employed by a school district in
administrator roles on a continuous basis, full-time or part-time, under contract.

Public Sector Employers' Council
Provincial Sales Tax

Casual on-call exempt (non-union) position where the relief teacher is dispatched on a day-to-
day basis to provide coverage in classrooms.

School Site Acquisition Charges are charges set under section 575 of the British Columbia Local
Government Act. Contributions from these charges are restricted for school site acquisitions
and recorded as revenue when the sites are purchased.

The Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

Social Emotional Learning

98 April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 122



SEP

SOGI

Special Purpose Fund
(SPF)

Strategic Facilities Plan

Student Voice
Substitutes

Support Staff

Teacher

Transportation

TTOC

Unearned Revenue

Universal Design for
Learning (UDL)

Utilities

WIP

80K/600E

School Enhancement Program, a category of funding under the Ministry of Education and Child
Care capital plan.

Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity Framework

The Special Purpose Fund is comprised of separate funds established to track revenue and expenses
received from the MECC and other sources that have restrictions on how they may be spent.

To ensure future capital plan submissions to the MECC accurately reflect the priorities and
needs of the school district, the board updated the comprehensive school district Strategic
Facilities Plan in consultation with local First Nations, Métis, Inuit, education partners, post-
secondary institutions, stakeholders, people with diverse lived experiences, the public, and the
two municipalities. The Strategic Facilities Plan is available on the district website at https://
www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/strategic-facilities-plan/

Student Voice consists of students from grades 6-12, representing all schools in the school district.
Individuals substituting for regular continuing staff while regular staff are temporarily absent.

Administrative staff (other than principals and vice principals) and support staff that are
employed by a school district on a continuous basis, full-time or part-time.

Certified teachers (or teachers with a letter of permission) employed by a school district
on a continuous basis, full-time or part-time, excluding superintendents, assistant/deputy
superintendents, principals, vice principals, and directors of instruction.

Costs of activities related to the conveyance of students to and from school on a regular basis
and direct supervision of busing.

Teacher Teaching on Call

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods
and receipt of proceeds for services to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be
recognized in that future period when the services are provided.

An educational framework that aims to make learning accessible and effective for all students,
regardless of their abilities, learning styles, or backgrounds. It is based on the idea that there is no
“one-size-fits-all” approach to learning and emphasizes flexibility in teaching methods, materials,
and assessments.

Costs incurred by the school district for the consumption of heat, light, and water, as well as
expenditures on garbage, sewer, conservation measures, recycling programs and internet/
telephone providers.

Work in Progress

80 kindergarten spaces/600 elementary spaces, equivalent to 4 kindergarten classrooms and
24 grade 1-7 classrooms. Combined, this represents the nominal capacity of a given elementary
school.

April 30, 2025 - Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 99

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 123

L\
L)
@‘\A
=~ )
=3
—
(=]
-
3
[-3)
=
(=]
-
=2
w
D
(=]
=
o
=}



https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/strategic-facilities-plan/
https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/strategic-facilities-plan/

M
School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

22225 Brown Avenue
Maple Ridge, BC
V2X 8N6



ATTACHMENT B

2025/26 PROPOSED PRELIMINARY BUDGET
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY

April 30, 2025



2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 126



2025/26 PRELIMINARY BUDGET PROCESS TIMELINE

The 2025/26 Preliminary Budget process timeline is outlined below.

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

= - Presentation and approval of the proposed budget process and consultation timeline

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, February 12, 2025 . Presentation of projected enrolments for 2025/26, 2026/27, 2027/28, and 2028/29

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, March 5, 2025 - Presentation and board approval of the 2024/25 Amended Annual Budget

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

«  Presentation of the 2025/26 draft preliminary budget estimates
. Consultation with partner groups on budget priorities

«  Consultation with students on budget priorities

Wednesday, March 5, 2025

FIRST NATIONS AND INDIGENOUS PARTNERS BUDGET CONSULTATION

- Presentation of the 2025/26 draft preliminary budget estimates

«  Co-construct on budget priorities for targeted funds for Indigenous Education
«  Consultation on budget priorities for non-targeted funds

Monday, April 7, 2025

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, April 16, 2025 «  Presentation of the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

Thursday, April 17 to ONLINE BUDGET SURVEY
Thursday, April 23, 2025 «  Online budget survey on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

FIRST NATIONS AND INDIGENOUS PARTNERS BUDGET APPROVAL AND CONSULTATION
Tuesday, April 22, 2025 . Approval of the proposed 2025/26 spending plans for targeted funds
. Feedback on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget for non-targeted funds

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Wednesday, April 23, 2025 «  Public and partner group input on the Proposed 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

PUBLIC BOARD MEETING

. Approval of 2025/26 Budget Balancing Proposals

. Receipt of approved 2025/26 spending plans for targeted Indigenous Education funds
. Adoption of the 2025/26 Preliminary Budget

Wednesday, April 30, 2025

Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 1
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 127



PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT SUMMARY: WHAT WE HEARD

Following the April 16, 2025, presentation of the Proposed Preliminary Budget for 2025/26, feedback on the proposed
budget was collected through an online survey, the April 22, 2025, Indigenous Education Community meeting (Katzie First
Nation, Kwantlen First Nation, Golden Ears Métis Society, and Fraser River Indigenous Society), written submissions, and
presentations at the April 23, 2025 Finance Committee of the Whole meeting.

In total, the school district received 54 presentations on the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget, some of which were
accompanied by written submissions. Additionally, 1211 individuals provided feedback through our online survey, which
was open to the public from April 17, 2025, to April 23, 2025.

Overview

Feedback from Indigenous Education Community consultations identified key priorities for Indigenous Education
funding, including protecting family events, advancing Language Revitalization, amplifying Indigenous student voice,
and honouring Elder-in-Residence protocols. Respondents emphasized the importance of supporting staff learning about
Indigenous Worldviews and proposed a pilot project to add two Indigenous Education Child and Youth Care Worker
(CYCW) positions.

The 54 delegations who presented at the April 23, 2025, Finance Committee of the Whole spoke to the following topics:
teacher librarian time, Grade 7 band program, elementary clerical hours, staffing at Yennadon Annex, child and youth
care worker hours, ADST program support, home and hospital teacher stafling allocation, safe and caring school blocks,
regular student transportation, and support for accounting clerks.

Of the 1,211 participants who responded to our online survey, 841 answered the optional self-identification question,
inviting them to select all applicable categories. The demographic breakdown is as follows: 500 respondents self-identified
as parents/guardian; 339 as SD42 employee; 226 as community member; and 31 as student. Because respondents were
invited to select all applicable categories, totals exceed 841 as some individuals identified with more than one group (e.g.,
both parent/guardian and SD42 employee).

The opening question, to which 1,211 participants responded, asked if the Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26
reflected the needs of the school district. 13% respondents stated that it did, 54% stated that it did not, and 33% were
unsure. To establish a clearer understanding of which areas of the budget may have had lower levels of support, we
invited participants to provide feedback on individual budget balancing proposals. 921 (76%) respondents stated their
willingness to participate in this part of the survey. The feedback received is summarized below.

Support for School Growth Plans

Supporting Effective Literacy Practices

It is proposed that $135K be allocated on a one-time basis for 1 FTE literacy helping teacher staffing to support literacy
initiatives in schools, with $108K of this amount funded from the Operating Fund.

761 participants responded to this question. 27% expressed strong support, 30% somewhat

72% supported the recommendation, 21% had no opinion either way, 11% somewhat did not
support it, and 11% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 72% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 28% expressed concern.

2 Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 128



78%

77%

)

72%

47%

73%

Supporting Effective Numeracy Practices

It is proposed that $20K be allocated as a carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 numeracy funds and $10K be
allocated on a one-time basis to expand our district’s numeracy exploration teams to continue their work on creating
numeracy curricular progressions and formative and summative assessment tools.

735 participants responded to this question. 26% expressed strong support, 31% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 27% had no opinion either way, 8% somewhat did not
support it, and 8% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 78% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 22% expressed concern.

Successful Learning Opportunities for Secondary Learners

It is proposed that $20K of the Curriculum Learning and Support Fund be allocated on a one-time basis to review
what alternate educational and alternative learning opportunities are needed in the district and secondary schools
to support each student towards graduation.

728 participants responded to this question. 27% expressed strong support, 30% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 26% had no opinion either way, 8% somewhat did not
support it, and 9% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 77% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 23% expressed concern.

Early Learning - StrongStart

It is proposed that $14K be allocated from the operating budget on a one-time basis to fund the portion of
StrongStart supply expenses that exceed available early learning grant funding.

724 participants responded to this question. 28% expressed strong support, 28% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 22% had no opinion either way, 13% somewhat did not
support it, and 9% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 72% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 28% expressed concern.

Secondary Assessment Committee

It is proposed that $18K be allocated on an ongoing basis to support the secondary assessment committee.

713 participants responded to this question. 9% expressed strong support, 20% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 38% had no opinion either way, 18% somewhat did not
support it, and 15% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 47% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 53% expressed concern.

Safe and Caring Schools
Safe and Caring Staffing at Secondary Schools

It is proposed that $112K be allocated on a one-time basis for 6 safe and caring school blocks (0.857 FTE teacher) for
secondary schools to support student wellness.

694 participants responded to this question. 33% expressed strong support, 25% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 20% had no opinion either way, 10% somewhat did not
support it, and 12% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 73% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 27% expressed concern.

Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 3

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 129



75%

56%

66%

55%

58%

Safe and Caring Staffing for Bridges Program

It is proposed that $79K be allocated on a one-time basis to increase itinerant teacher staffing by 0.6 FTE to 1 FTE to
support the Bridges Program for grade 5-9 students.

690 participants responded to this question. 30% expressed strong support, 28% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 23% had no opinion either way, 8% somewhat did not
support it, and 11% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 75% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 25% expressed concern.

Equity Team

It is proposed that $85K be allocated as a carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 anti-racism funds to support
the development of a Train-the-Trainer model for anti-racism learning and the establishment of an Equity Team to
advance this critical work.

695 participants responded to this question. 19% expressed strong support, 22% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 27% had no opinion either way, 17% somewhat did not
support it, and 15% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 56% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 44% expressed concern.

Student Voice Leadership

It is proposed that $14K be allocated on a one-time basis for secondary schools, inclusive of alternate education, to
support student-led selection of resources that promote equity, diversity, and inclusion.

686 participants responded to this question. 23% expressed strong support, 25% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 27% had no opinion either way, 12% somewhat did not
support it, and 13% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 66% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 34% expressed concern.

Relief Teachers

It is proposed that $20K be allocated on a one-time basis for the training of relief teachers in the district.

689 participants responded to this question. 21% expressed strong support, 24% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 19% had no opinion either way, 14% somewhat did not
support it, and 23% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 55% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 45% expressed concern.

Educational Leadership
Elementary Administration Staffing

It is proposed that $288K be allocated from the Classroom Enhancement Fund Overhead special purpose fund on
an ongoing basis for 1.70 FTE of additional elementary vice principal administrative time, requiring the ongoing
transfer of 1.70 FTE teaching time (previously covered by vice principals) to teachers for an ongoing decrease to
operating budget expenses of $74K.

4 Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 130



76%

21%

[ g

54%

[ od

73%

667 participants responded to this question. 18% expressed strong support, 24% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 28% had no opinion either way, 14% somewhat did not
support it, and 16% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 58% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 42% expressed concern.

School Staffing
Yennadon Elementary School

It is proposed that $33K be allocated on an ongoing basis for additional 0.57 FTE of clerical time in the Yennadon
Elementary Annex to maintain the 2024/25 clerical staffing level.

676 participants responded to this question. 20% expressed strong support, 30% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 34% had no opinion either way, 9% somewhat did not
support it, and 7% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 76% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 24% expressed concern.

Extracurricular Grade 7 Music Program

It is proposed that the district’s supplemental funding of the optional Grade 7 music program be discontinued to
achieve ongoing budget savings of $82K (0.625 FTE teacher).

695 participants responded to this question. 10% expressed strong support, 9% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 8% had no opinion either way, 11% somewhat did not
support it, and 62% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 21% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 79% expressed concern.

Learning Services
Education Assistant Staffing

It is proposed that 4.13 FTE of temporary education assistant staffing for kindergarten transition be discontinued
for ongoing budget savings of $235K and in favour of utilizing full-time EA positions to support students requiring
ongoing assistance.

671 participants responded to this question. 26% expressed strong support, 20% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 15% had no opinion either way, 13% somewhat did not
support it, and 26% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 54% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 46% expressed concern.

Home and Hospital Teacher Staffing

It is proposed that the 1 FTE full-time home and hospital teacher staffing be discontinued to achieve ongoing budget
savings of $131K, and that $72K be allocated to the instructional bank to support temporary home and hospital
teacher staffing needs that arise during the year.

671 participants responded to this question. 28% expressed strong support, 26% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 26% had no opinion either way, 11% somewhat did not
support it, and 9% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 73% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 27% expressed concern.

Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 5

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 131



Collaborative Teaching

It is proposed that $523K be allocated on a one-time basis for 4.0 FTE co-teaching staffing to support early
intervention and inclusionary programming in elementary schools.
662 participants responded to this question. 20% expressed strong support, 24% somewhat
59% supported the recommendation, 25% had no opinion either way, 15% somewhat did not

support it, and 16% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 59% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 41% expressed concern.

School Psychologist Assessments

It is proposed that $184K savings from anticipated school psychologist vacancies (1.5 FTE) be reallocated on a one-
time basis for contracted school psychology services.

658 participants responded to this question. 32% expressed strong support, 31% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 23% had no opinion either way, 6% somewhat did not
support it, and 8% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 82% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 18% expressed concern.

82%

Support for Operational Plans
Payroll Staffing

It is proposed that $91K be allocated on an ongoing basis for 1 FTE senior payroll and benefits administrator in finance,
increasing the capacity of the payroll and benefits department to fulfill essential services.

658 participants responded to this question. 10% expressed strong support, 18% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 28% had no opinion either way, 17% somewhat did not
support it, and 27% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 39% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 61% expressed concern.

39%

Human Resources Staffing
Dispatch Coordinator

It is proposed that $10K be allocated on an ongoing basis to add 0.26 FTE to the existing 0.74 FTE dispatch
coordinator position.

647 participants responded to this question. 17% expressed strong support, 26% somewhat
61% supported the recommendation, 30% had no opinion either way, 12% somewhat did not
support it, and 15% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 61% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 39% expressed concern.

Health and Safety

It is proposed that $101K be allocated on an ongoing basis for the continuation of 1 FTE human resources assistant,
funded through the WorkSafeBC COR certification incentive, to support the school district in maintaining an
occupational health and safety management system that exceeds regulatory requirements.

40%

6 Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 132



75%

)

82%

)

83%

64%

650 participants responded to this question. 10% expressed strong support, 17% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 32% had no opinion either way, 16% somewhat did not
support it, and 25% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 40% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 60% expressed concern.

English Language Learning

District Helping Teacher

It is proposed that 1.04 FTE ELL teacher staffing generated by international secondary student enrolment be
reallocated on an ongoing basis to fund 1 FTE district ELL helping teacher. This change has a net budget impact of $0.

654 participants responded to this question. 25% expressed strong support, 22% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 37% had no opinion either way, 5% somewhat did not
support it, and 11% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 75% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 25% expressed concern.

Budget Savings and Financial Sustainability

Service and Supplies

It is proposed that the departmental meeting food supply, travel, and training budgets be reduced by 10% to achieve
ongoing budget savings of $13K in meeting food supplies, $15K in training, and $15K in travel.

650 participants responded to this question. 44% expressed strong support, 20% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 22% had no opinion either way, 9% somewhat did not
support it, and 5% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 82% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 18% expressed concern.

It is further proposed to transition the supply of traditional white paper to Sugar Paper district-wide to generate annual
ongoing savings of $26K and discontinue Zoom to generate annual cost savings of $6K.

651 participants responded to this question. 43% expressed strong support, 25% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 18% had no opinion either way, 6% somewhat did not
support it, and 8% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 83% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 17% expressed concern.

After-School Programs

It is proposed that an administration fee of 11% be added to after-school program fees for an ongoing recovery of $23K
(23%) of the program manager’s salary and benefits cost.

651 participants responded to this question. 23% expressed strong support, 25% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 25% had no opinion either way, 12% somewhat did not
support it, and 15% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 64% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 36% expressed concern.

Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 7

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 133



2

53%

51%

64%

53%

80%

Staffing Banks

It is proposed that the ongoing instructional staffing bank be reduced by $1.0M and that the ongoing secondary staffing
bank of $0.19M be discontinued for combined budget savings and structural deficit reduction of $1.19M.

639 participants responded to this question. 14% expressed strong support, 18% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 40% had no opinion either way, 13% somewhat did not
support it, and 15% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 53% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 47% expressed concern.

Student Transportation
Support for the Special Purpose Fund Budget

It is proposed that $260K be allocated on a one-time basis to provide regular transportation services on four buses,
with the discontinuation of two buses currently serving secondary students residing in Silver Valley and Rockridge
areas where public transportation options are safer and more accessible than other regions currently served, and that
projected fee revenue for this service be set at $67K.

650 participants responded to this question. 17% expressed strong support, 22% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 24% had no opinion either way, 11% somewhat did not
support it, and 26% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 51% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 49% expressed concern.

Use of 2024/25 Available Operating Surplus

To fund the capital needs identified in this budget, it is proposed that any available operating
surplus from 2024/25 be transferred to the local capital fund and allocated as follows:

First, to top up the contingency reserve held in local capital to 1.25% of budgeted operating expenses for 2025/26 (an
increase of $0.58M).

626 participants responded to this question. 12% expressed strong support, 20% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 50% had no opinion either way, 9% somewhat did not
support it, and 9% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 64% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 36% expressed concern.

Second, to increase the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan by up to $0.53M.

624 participants responded to this question. 9% expressed strong support, 18% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 49% had no opinion either way, 13% somewhat did not
support it, and 11% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 53% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 47% expressed concern.

Third, to increase new temporary classrooms by up to $0.84M.

627 participants responded to this question. 24% expressed strong support, 31% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 31% had no opinion either way, 7% somewhat did not
support it, and 7% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 80% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 20% expressed concern.

8 Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 134




Finally, any remaining available operating surplus be allocated as follows: 50% to the IT capital plan, 25% to other
facilities renewal, and 25% as a further contribution to the facilities equipment and vehicle capital plan.

629 participants responded to this question. 11% expressed strong support, 27% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 43% had no opinion either way, 10% somewhat did not
67% support it, and 9% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 67% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the

recommendation while 33% expressed concern.

Feeding Futures School Food Programs Fund

It is proposed that $47K be allocated on an ongoing basis from the Feeding Futures School Food Programs Fund to add
1FTE meal preparation coordinator ($0.07M).

630 participants responded to this question. 23% expressed strong support, 21% somewhat
supported the recommendation, 25% had no opinion either way, 13% somewhat did not
59% support it, and 18% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 59% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 41% expressed concern.

It is further proposed that the ongoing 6.43 FTE additional child and youth care worker staffing time from this fund
($0.35M) be discontinued, and 6.29 FTE cafeteria assistant staffing ($0.33M) be added on an ongoing basis to support
food programming across elementary schools.)

644 participants responded to this question. 12% expressed strong support, 14% somewhat

34% supported the recommendation, 23% had no opinion either way, 14% somewhat did not
support it, and 37% strongly did not support it. Taking those who did not have an opinion
out of our final analysis, 34% of respondents either strongly or somewhat supported the
recommendation while 66% expressed concern.

Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 9
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 135



Other Feedback Received

Of the 1,211 respondents who participated in the survey, 529 provided further input at the end of our survey. Additional feedback was
also received through the April 7 and April 22, 2025, Indigenous Education Community (Katzie First Nation, Kwantlen First Nation,
Golden Ears Métis Society, and Fraser River Indigenous Society), written submissions, and presentations at the April 23, 2025, Finance
Committee of the Whole meeting. Feedback collected fell into the general categories listed below.

Support for continued Grade 7 music program: 183 respondents expressed concern about the proposed discontinuation of
the elementary Grade 7 music program, emphasizing the role of music education in student development, engagement, and
well-being. A few respondents suggested re-evaluating administrative costs or exploring community partnerships to sustain
music instruction.

Support for child and youth care worker (CYCW) staffing: 113 respondents expressed concerns related to child and

youth care worker staffing, with feedback focusing on the importance of the role in mentorship, relationship-building, and
supporting vulnerable students. Although the addition of food preparation duties to part-time CYCW positions in elementary
schools in 2024/25 —implemented to increase those positions to full-time hours—had not been universally supported, some
respondents expressed concern that the removal of these duties has resulted in a reduction of hours.

Feedback on proposed discontinuation of bus routes: 79 respondents shared concerns about the potential impact of
discontinuing the Grade 8—12 bus routes serving students in the Silver Valley and Rockridge areas who attend Garibaldi
Secondary School. Several respondents highlighted the importance of maintaining equitable access to education and noted that
public transit servicing these areas is perceived as unreliable. In addition to expressing concern, respondents proposed a range
of alternate solutions, including reducing the number of routes rather than eliminating them entirely, introducing a partial
user-pay model, and exploring partnerships with public transit providers to enhance service.

Support for education assistants (EAs): 55 respondents included in their feedback acknowledgements of the critical role
educational assistants (EAs) play in supporting inclusive education and student success. While much of the feedback reflected
general concern about protecting EA staffing levels, some respondents specifically referenced kindergarten transition EAs,
which under the proposed budget would be discontinued in favour of using full-time EA positions to support students
requiring ongoing assistance.

Safe and caring schools: 26 respondents shared concerns related to the proposed reduction in safe and caring schools blocks
at secondary schools. Feedback emphasized the importance of maintaining dedicated staffing time to support student wellness,
attendance, and connection to school. Respondents highlighted the role that safe and caring blocks play in early intervention,
relationship-building, and promoting a sense of belonging for vulnerable and at-risk students.

Feedback on teacher-librarian staffing: 25 respondents shared concerns about changes to teacher-librarian roles and how
these might affect library services. Respondents expressed a desire to preserve equitable access to school libraries and spoke to
the value of teacher-librarians in supporting literacy, inquiry-based learning, and meaningful student engagement with books
and resources.

Other feedback themes: Several respondents shared concerns about maintaining student support structures, including
counselling, clerical, and accounting clerk staffing, while others spoke to the importance of early learning programs like
StrongStart and services for students with diverse needs. A number of respondents expressed a preference for prioritizing
school-based staffing and programs in the budget, while some expressed appreciation for the opportunity to provide input.

How the Feedback Was Used

The following budget changes and clarifications have been incorporated in the 2025/26 Proposed Preliminary Budget based on
the feedback received. Page references to the proposed preliminary budget document are included where appropriate. Matters
that were operational in nature have been referred to staff for appropriate follow up with schools.

*  For Safe and Caring Staffing at Secondary Schools, the proposal was amended to further propose that $37,383 be allocated
on a one-time basis for an additional 2 safe and caring school teacher staffing blocks (0.286 FTE) from the carryforward of
appropriated 2024/25 operating fund surplus for 2025/26, thereby increasing the total blocks from 6 to 8 (page 52 of the
2025/26 Preliminary Budget document).

10 Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 136



For the Extracurricular Elementary Band Program, the proposal was amended to further propose that $81,689 (0.625 FTE
teacher) be allocated from the carryforward of appropriated 2024/25 operating fund surplus on a one-time basis to support the
extracurricular elementary band program for the 2025/26 school year. This funding will ensure the program’s continued
delivery while providing the time and stability needed to plan for its long-term sustainability. Over the course

of the 2025/26 year, the district will work collaboratively with the BC Music Educators’ Association and program teachers to
examine program structures and identify approaches for the band program to operate in a cost-neutral manner beyond

2025/26 (page 54).

For Indigenous Education, the Indigenous support worker staffing is restored to 21 to maintain the 2024/25 allocation,
and the pilot project of 2 FTE Indigenous child and youth care workers is changed to be funded from 2024/25
carryforward into 2025/26 (page 42).

For Education Assistant Staffing, clarification was added that the district will continue to plan and adjust supports for
kindergarten classrooms each year based on the needs of incoming students (page 55).

For Feeding Futures School Food Programs staffing, clarification was added that the 6.43 FTE of CYCW time added in
2023/24 and continued in 2024/25 was for the top up of hours at some elementary schools specifically to assist with school
food programs and that the 6.29 FTE cafeteria assistant staffing for 2025/26 will support food programming across «//
elementary schools (page 72).

For Clerical Staffing, the district recognizes that there were some significant changes impacting clerical staffing workload
in the 2024/25 school year and is exploring an increase in the clerical staffing bank funded from the 2024/25 budget for
May to June, 2025, to address this workload.

For Transportation, the district heard concerns that the two routes proposed for discontinuation to Garibaldi Secondary
are not adequately serviced by public transit. The preliminary budget notes that Coast Mountain Bus Company has
confirmed its bus routes serve Silver Valley and Rockridge with peak service approximately every 30 minutes, and that it
has the funding and ability to make modest adjustments to align bus capacity with Garibaldi Secondary’s bell times should
public bus ridership in the area increase. If Coast Mountain is unable to increase service levels, the district will consider a
move to a full cost recovery model for the two routes.

Finally, we heard concerns about reductions to direct student supports and questions about district-based staffing levels.
Recent independent reviews have found that district-based staffing is insufficient to meet system-wide needs. These reviews
recommended increases in district-based capacity to maintain essential services and better support schools, particularly in
human resources, facilities, and information technology. In this budget, only very small, targeted increases are being
proposed for essential services. We continue to review all staffing allocations carefully to ensure that resources are used
efficiently, effectively, and in ways that support student success.

Proposed Preliminary Budget 2025/26: Public Engagement Summary | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows School District No. 42 11
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 137



ATTACHMENT C

Annual Budget

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

June 30, 2026

Version: 4658-3912-1930

April 28, 2025 9:22 2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 138



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
June 30, 2026

Table of Contents
2377 -\ SRS 1
Annual Budget - Revenue and EXPENSE - STAEMENT 2 ..ottt b e bbb e 2
Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) - StateMent 4 ... e 4
Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and EXPense - SChedUIE 2 .........cooiiiiiiii e 5
Schedule 2A - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by SOUICE .......ccoeviireieiiinisee e 6
Schedule 2B - Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating EXpense by ODjJECt ........ccoeiiiiiiiinniciereeee s 7
Schedule 2C - Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object ...........cccocvevveviviircvicvcccciee, 8
Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and EXpense - SChedule 3 ........ovoiiiiieiiieeee e 10
Schedule 3A - Annual Budget - Changes in Special PUrPOSE FUNS .......cccoviiiiiiiiieiene e 11
Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and EXPeNnse - SCNEAUIE 4 ..........oviiiiiiieiii et 13

*NOTE - Statement 1, Statement 3, Statement 5, Schedule 1 and Schedules 4A - 4D are used for Financial Statement reporting only.

April 28, 2025 9:22 .
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 139



ANNUAL BUDGET BYLAW
A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 42 (MAPLE RIDGE-PITT MEADOWS)
(called the "Board") to adopt the Annual Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2025/2026 pursuant
to section 113 of the School Act, R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the "Act").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ministerial Orders, and Ministry of
Education and Child Care Policies respecting the Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2025/2026.

3. The attached Statement 2 showing the estimated revenue and expense for the
2025/2026 fiscal year and the total budget bylaw amount of $264,391,495 for the 2025/2026 fiscal
year was prepared in accordance with the Act.
4, Statement 2, 4 and Schedules 2 to 4 are adopted as the Annual Budget of the Board
for the fiscal year 2025/2026.
READ A FIRST TIME THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2025;

READ A SECOND TIME THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2025;

READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED AND ADOPTED THE 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2025;

Chairperson of the Board

( Corporate Seal )

Secretary Treasurer

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true original of School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Annual Budget Bylaw 2025/2026, adopted by the Board the 30th DAY OF APRIL, 2025.

Secretary Treasurer

Version: 4658-3912-1930

April 28, 2025 9:22 2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 140



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2026

2026
Annual Budget

Statement 2

2025 Amended
Annual Budget

Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's
School-Age
Adult
Other
Total Ministry Operating Grant Funded FTE's

Revenues

Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other

Federal Grants

Tuition

Other Revenue

Rentals and Leases

Investment Income

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenses
Instruction
District Administration
Operations and Maintenance
Transportation and Housing
Total Expense

Net Revenue (Expense)
Budgeted Allocation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit)
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year comprised of:
Operating Fund Surplus (Deficit)
Special Purpose Fund Surplus (Deficit)

Capital Fund Surplus (Deficit)
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year

Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22

16,575.260 16,498.500
88.000 68.750
188.750 200.500
16,852.010 16,767.750
$ $
229,754,067 231,659,770
417,800 417,800
362,900 362,900
11,272,469 11,218,921
6,859,825 6,888,166
886,716 825,904
1,105,000 1,662,500
7,011,541 6,882,573
257,670,318 259,918,534
219,173,611 224,645,401
8,152,447 8,692,916
31,929,920 32,430,617
733,321 916,641
259,989,299 266,685,575
(2,318,981) (6,767,041)
119,072 5,168,458
(2,199,909) (1,598 583)
(2,199,909) (1,598,583)
(2,199,909) (1,598,583)

. Page 2
2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 141



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Annual Budget - Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2026

2026
Annual Budget

Statement 2

2025 Amended
Annual Budget

Budget Bylaw Amount

Operating - Total Expense 215,052,503 216,795,797
Operating - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 289,962 921,474
Special Purpose Funds - Total Expense 33,923,148 38,949,716
Special Purpose Funds - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 454,051 237,000
Capital Fund - Total Expense 11,013,648 10,940,062
Capital Fund - Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 3,658,183 3,625,746
Total Budget Bylaw Amount 264,391,495 271,469,795

Approved by the Board

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education Date Signed

Signature of the Superintendent Date Signed

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

Version: 4658-3912-1930

April 28, 2025 9:22 Page 3

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 142



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows) Statement 4

Annual Budget - Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Year Ended June 30, 2026

2026 2025 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (2,318,981) (6,767,041)
Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets
From Operating and Special Purpose Funds (744,013) (1,158,474)
From Local Capital (3,658,183) (3,625,746)
From Deferred Capital Revenue (48,673,891) (22,669,579)
Total Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (53,076,087) (27,453,799)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 11,013,648 10,940,062
Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (42,062,439) (16,513,737)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) (44,381,420) (23,280,778)

Version: 4658-3912-1930

i : Page 4
April 28, 2025 9:22 2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 143 9



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Annual Budget - Operating Revenue and Expense

Year Ended June 30, 2026

Schedule 2

2026 2025 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education and Child Care 200,571,868 197,668,054
Other 417,800 417,800

Federal Grants 362,900 362,900

Tuition 11,272,469 11,218,921

Other Revenue 1,664,825 1,693,166

Rentals and Leases 886,716 825,904

Investment Income 1,105,000 1,662,500

Total Revenue 216,281,578 213,849,245
Expenses

Instruction 185,627,802 186,389,575

District Administration 8,042,999 8,541,814

Operations and Maintenance 20,728,879 21,043,811

Transportation and Housing 652,823 820,597

Total Expense 215,052,503 216,795,797
Net Revenue (Expense) 1,229,075 (2,946,552)
Budgeted Prior Year Surplus Appropriation 119,072 5,168,458
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (289,962) (921,474)

Local Capital (1,058,185) (1,300,432)

Total Net Transfers (1,348,147) (2,221,906)
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year - -
Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22

Page 5

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 144



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows) Schedule 2A

Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source
Year Ended June 30, 2026

2026 2025 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 198,045,996 193,631,294
ISC/LEA Recovery (613,078) (613,078)
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants
Pay Equity 1,874,965 1,874,965
Funding for Graduated Adults 296,383 154,950
Student Transportation Fund 185,990 185,990
Support Staff Benefits Grant 311,930
FSA Scorer Grant 15,693 15,693
Labour Settlement Funding 1,914,830
Integrated Child and Youth Team 765,919 191,480
Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 200,571,868 197,668,054
Provincial Grants - Other 417,800 417,800
Federal Grants 362,900 362,900
Tuition
Summer School Fees 44,650 44,650
Continuing Education 1,332,784 1,225,288
International and Out of Province Students 9,895,035 9,948,983
Total Tuition 11,272,469 11,218,921
Other Revenues
Funding from First Nations 613,078 613,078
Miscellaneous
Revenue Generation 54,000 64,000
Partnership Program 208,190 208,190
Miscellaneous 357,707 387,296
Transportation 78,876 108,546
Before and After School Programming 265,512 242,351
Ridge Meadows College 27,462 9,705
BC Hydro Grant 60,000 60,000
Total Other Revenue 1,664,825 1,693,166
Rentals and Leases 886,716 825,904
Investment Income 1,105,000 1,662,500
Total Operating Revenue 216,281,578 213,849,245

Version: 4658-3912-1930

i . Page 6
April 28, 2025 9:22 2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 145 9



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Annual Budget - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Year Ended June 30, 2026

Schedule 2B

2026 2025 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
Salaries
Teachers 90,921,352 90,849,957
Principals and Vice Principals 9,832,123 10,078,560
Educational Assistants 25,456,187 26,191,046
Support Staff 15,384,636 15,204,887
Other Professionals 7,688,323 7,772,873
Substitutes 6,791,114 6,951,965
Total Salaries 156,073,735 157,049,288
Employee Benefits 41,695,365 40,976,025
Total Salaries and Benefits 197,769,100 198,025,313
Services and Supplies
Services 7,550,247 8,190,018
Student Transportation 729,890 824,735
Professional Development and Travel 1,094,648 1,240,967
Rentals and Leases 9,407 6,457
Dues and Fees 172,412 169,873
Insurance 976,972 1,038,613
Supplies 3,934,755 4,511,637
Utilities 2,815,072 2,788,184
Total Services and Supplies 17,283,403 18,770,484
Total Operating Expense 215,052,503 216,795,797
Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22 Page 7

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 146



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Year Ended June 30, 2026

Schedule 2C

Principals and Educational Support Other
Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total
Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
1 Instruction
1.02 Regular Instruction 69,645,641 395,090 275,815 581,144 3,151,649 74,049,339
1.03 Career Programs 401,000 33,480 550,070 31,366 1,015,916
1.07 Library Services 1,531,315 6,306 65,915 1,603,536
1.08 Counselling 2,350,186 108,365 2,458,551
1.10 Inclusive Education 9,772,389 1,866,127 23,388,554 1,960,082 188,423 2,356,130 39,531,705
1.20 Early Learning and Child Care 8,450 8,450
1.30 English Language Learning 2,878,034 120,085 2,998,119
1.31 Indigenous Education 692,303 158,891 917,098 56,332 18,900 1,843,524
1.41 School Administration 6,870,497 3,171,304 358,322 10,400,123
1.60 Summer School 504,268 17,840 122,945 26,125 671,178
1.61 Continuing Education 16,740 132,561 899,043 9,209 1,057,553
1.62 International and Out of Province Students 3,100,856 306,056 505,935 263,371 154,564 4,330,782
1.64 Other 182,955 427,500 610,455
Total Function 1 90,875,992 9,664,721 25,437,437 6,448,239 1,778,337 6,374,505 140,579,231
4 District Administration
4.11 Educational Administration 52,817 1,315,465 14,900 1,383,182
4.20 Early Learning and Child Care -
4.40 School District Governance 455,519 455,519
4.41 Business Administration 167,402 2,750 737,830 2,138,803 54,062 3,100,847
Total Function 4 - 167,402 2,750 790,647 3,909,787 68,962 4,939,548
5 Operations and Maintenance
5.20 Early Learning and Child Care 58,370 58,370
5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 45,360 16,000 227,409 1,504,809 58,255 1,851,833
5.50 Maintenance Operations 7,363,836 483,234 289,392 8,136,462
5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 490,250 490,250
5.56 Utilities -
Total Function 5 45,360 - 16,000 8,139,865 1,988,043 347,647 10,536,915
7 Transportation and Housing
7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 5,885 12,156 18,041
7.70 Student Transportation -
Total Function 7 - - - 5,885 12,156 - 18,041
9 Debt Services
Total Function 9 - - - - - - -
Total Functions 1 -9 90,921,352 9,832,123 25,456,187 15,384,636 7,688,323 6,791,114 156,073,735

Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28,2025 9:22

Page 8

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 147



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Annual Budget - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Year Ended June 30, 2026

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and 2026 2025 Amended
Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $ $ $ $ $
1 Instruction
1.02 Regular Instruction 74,049,339 18,585,535 92,634,874 2,687,961 95,322,835 95,357,051
1.03 Career Programs 1,015,916 283,326 1,299,242 850,894 2,150,136 2,170,038
1.07 Library Services 1,603,536 405,139 2,008,675 194,898 2,203,573 2,162,997
1.08 Counselling 2,458,551 620,418 3,078,969 46,966 3,125,935 3,129,668
1.10 Inclusive Education 39,531,705 11,240,069 50,771,774 629,865 51,401,639 52,118,380
1.20 Early Learning and Child Care 8,450 2,574 11,024 14,000 25,024 70,556
1.30 English Language Learning 2,998,119 756,956 3,755,075 53,612 3,808,687 3,333,714
1.31 Indigenous Education 1,843,524 515,932 2,359,456 257,636 2,617,092 2,890,606
1.41 School Administration 10,400,123 2,962,089 13,362,212 269,160 13,631,372 13,674,693
1.60 Summer School 671,178 164,676 835,854 15,947 851,801 847,163
1.61 Continuing Education 1,057,553 186,821 1,244,374 305,722 1,550,096 1,588,204
1.62 International and Out of Province Students 4,330,782 1,107,853 5,438,635 2,393,559 7,832,194 7,858,538
1.64 Other 610,455 166,297 776,752 330,666 1,107,418 1,187,967
Total Function 1 140,579,231 36,997,685 177,576,916 8,050,886 185,627,802 186,389,575
4 District Administration
4.11 Educational Administration 1,383,182 436,706 1,819,888 396,878 2,216,766 2,333,698
4.20 Early Learning and Child Care - - 2,298 2,298 2,298
4.40 School District Governance 455,519 73,442 528,961 206,179 735,140 770,506
4.41 Business Administration 3,100,847 905,066 4,005,913 1,082,882 5,088,795 5,435,312
Total Function 4 4,939,548 1,415,214 6,354,762 1,688,237 8,042,999 8,541,814
5 Operations and Maintenance
5.20 Early Learning and Child Care 58,370 17,785 76,155 12,600 88,755 88,160
5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 1,851,833 475,777 2,327,610 1,117,845 3,445,455 3,392,811
5.50 Maintenance Operations 8,136,462 2,634,590 10,771,052 2,140,631 12,911,683 13,250,592
5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 490,250 149,378 639,628 361,197 1,000,825 1,059,600
5.56 Utilities - - 3,282,161 3,282,161 3,252,648
Total Function 5 10,536,915 3,277,530 13,814,445 6,914,434 20,728,879 21,043,811
7 Transportation and Housing
7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 18,041 4,936 22,977 1,000 23,977 81,582
7.70 Student Transportation - - 628,846 628,846 739,015
Total Function 7 18,041 4,936 22,977 629,846 652,823 820,597
9 Debt Services
Total Function 9 - - - - - -
Total Functions 1 - 9 156,073,735 41,695,365 197,769,100 17,283,403 215,052,503 216,795,797

Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28,2025 9:22

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 148

Schedule 2C

Page 9



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Annual Budget - Special Purpose Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2026

Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care
Other Revenue
Total Revenue

Expenses
Instruction
District Administration
Operations and Maintenance
Transportation and Housing
Total Expense

Net Revenue (Expense)
Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased

Total Net Transfers

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year

Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22

Schedule 3

2026 2025 Amended
Annual Budget Annual Budget
$ $
29,182,199 33,991,716
5,195,000 5,195,000
34,377,199 39,186,716
33,545,809 38,255,826
109,448 151,102
187,393 446,744
80,498 96,044
33,923,148 38,949,716
454,051 237,000
(454,051) (237,000)
(454,051) (237,000)
Page 10

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 149



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows) Schedule 3A
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2026

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom
Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement
Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 165,000 1,340,000
Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 517,597 684,610 256,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 829,033
Other 35,000 4,800,000
517,597 684,610 35,000 4,800,000 256,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 829,033
Less: Allocated to Revenue 517,597 684,610 35,000 4,800,000 256,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 829,033
Deferred Revenue, end of year - - 165,000 1,340,000 - - - - -
Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 517,597 684,610 256,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 829,033
Other Revenue 35,000 4,800,000
517,597 684,610 35,000 4,800,000 256,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 829,033
Expenses
Salaries
Teachers 20,816 108,206 28,672
Principals and Vice Principals 56,930 36,484 230,387
Educational Assistants 566,965 40,000 188,332 22,215 389,735
Support Staff 25,000 94,924
Other Professionals
Substitutes 20,000 21,651 348,712
- 566,965 - 85,000 188,332 43,031 165,136 476,542 674,023
Employee Benefits 117,645 15,000 67,268 13,319 41,499 137,980 146,010
Services and Supplies 63,546 35,000 4,700,000 400 98,962 22,326 9,000
63,546 684,610 35,000 4,800,000 256,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 829,033
Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers 454,051 - - - - - - - -
Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (454,051)
(454,051) - - - - - - - -

Net Revenue (Expense) - - - - - - R B B

Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22 Page 11

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 150



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows) Schedule 3A
Annual Budget - Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2026

Classroom First Nation Mental Changing SEY2KT ECL Feeding
Enhancement Student Health Results for  (Early Years to Early Care Futures YES
Fund - Staffing  Transportation in Schools Young Children Kindergarten) & Learning Fund Foundation TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Deferred Revenue, beginning of year 405,098 1,910,098
Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 23,680,952 80,498 51,000 6,750 19,000 175,000 1,882,964 29,182,199
Other 360,000 5,195,000
23,680,952 80,498 51,000 6,750 19,000 175,000 1,882,964 360,000 34,377,199
Less: Allocated to Revenue 23,680,952 80,498 51,000 6,750 19,000 175,000 1,882,964 360,000 34,377,199
Deferred Revenue, end of year - - - - - - - 405,098 1,910,098
Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 23,680,952 80,498 51,000 6,750 19,000 175,000 1,882,964 29,182,199
Other Revenue 360,000 5,195,000
23,680,952 80,498 51,000 6,750 19,000 175,000 1,882,964 360,000 34,377,199
Expenses
Salaries
Teachers 18,855,762 59,514 19,072,970
Principals and Vice Principals 323,801
Educational Assistants 4,970 13,978 297,307 1,523,502
Support Staff 119,924
Other Professionals 78,596 93,852 172,448
Substitutes 3,933 9,341 403,637
18,855,762 - 3,933 4,970 13,978 138,110 400,500 - 21,616,282
Employee Benefits 4,825,190 936 1,780 5,022 34,690 116,082 5,522,421
Services and Supplies 80,498 46,131 2,200 1,366,382 360,000 6,784,445
23,680,952 80,498 51,000 6,750 19,000 175,000 1,882,964 360,000 33,923,148
Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers - - - - - - - - 454,051
Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (454,051)
- - - - - - - - (454,051)
Net Revenue (Expense) - - - - - - - - -
Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22 Page 12

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 151



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)

Annual Budget - Capital Revenue and Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2026

2026 Annual Budget

Schedule 4

Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2025 Amended
Capital Assets Capital Balance Annual Budget
$ $ $ $

Revenues

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 7,011,541 7,011,541 6,882,573

Total Revenue 7,011,541 - 7,011,541 6,882,573
Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 11,013,648 11,013,648 10,940,062

Total Expense 11,013,648 - 11,013,648 10,940,062
Net Revenue (Expense) (4,002,107) - (4,002,107) (4,057,489)
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 744,013 744,013 1,158,474

Local Capital 1,058,185 1,058,185 1,300,432

Total Net Transfers 744,013 1,058,185 1,802,198 2,458,906
Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital 3,608,183 (3,608,183) -

Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital 50,000 (50,000) -

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 3,658,183 (3,658,183) -
Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year 400,089 (2,599,998) (2,199,909) (1,598,583)
Version: 4658-3912-1930
April 28, 2025 9:22 Page 13

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 152



Public Board Meeting

A April 30, 2025

C L. Information Memo
SchoolMQelédE{&St’EMfl.d% Item #5

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Chairperson’s Update

BACKGROUND:

The Board Chairperson will provide the Board with a verbal update. The update will include
the following topic(s):

e CommunityLINK Funding Advocacy

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board receive the Chairperson’s Update, for information.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 153



’) Public Board Meeting
A April 30, 2025
School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item #6

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups

BACKGROUND

A revision to the list of trustee appointments (Attachment A) has been made to reflect a
recent change in appointments to the Board Policy Development Committee.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board receive for information the updated list of Trustee Appointments to
Committees and Community Liaison Groups for the period ending November 2025.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 154



ATTACHMENT A

Committees of the Board

Facilities Planning Committee of the Whole
Finance Committee of the Whole

Board Policy Development Committee

School District Advisory Committees

Education Advisory Committee

Accessibility Advisory Committee

Indigenous Education Community Gathering

Collective Agreement Bargaining
MRTA
CUPE

Committee Representation with Trustee Voting Authority

City of Maple Ridge Livable Community Advisory Committee

City of Maple Ridge Engaged, Healthy Community Advisory
Committee

City of Maple Ridge Municipal Advisory Committee on
Accessibility & Inclusiveness

City of Pitt Meadows Community Support & Accessibility
Committee

Youth Planning Table

Other Representation
Student Voice
District Parent Advisory Council
BCPSEA
BCSTA Provincial Council
City of Pitt Meadows Community Service Awards Task Force
Culture Collective Network
English Language Learners Consortium
Maple Ridge Pitt Meadows Arts Council
Ridge Meadows Education Foundation

Ridge Meadows Overdose Community Action Team

All Trustees
All Trustees

Kim Dumore, Hudson Campbell
(Mike Murray, Alternate)

Pascale Shaw, Hudson Campbell
(Mike Murray, Alternate)

Kim Dumore (Pascale Shaw, Alternate)

Kathleen Sullivan, Elaine Yamamoto
(Pascale Shaw, Alternate)

Elaine Yamamoto
TBD

Gabriel Liosis (Elaine Yamamoto, Alternate)

Mike Murray (Gabriel Liosis, Alternate)

Kim Dumore (Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)

Kathleen Sullivan (Hudson Campbell, Alternate)

Hudson Campbell (Kim Dumore, Alternate)

All Trustees Rotating

All Trustees Rotating

Elaine Yamamoto (No Alternate)

Gabriel Liosis (Mike Murray, Alternate)

Hudson Campbell (Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)
Elaine Yamamoto (Pascale Shaw, Alternate)
Elaine Yamamoto (Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)
Pascale Shaw (Hudson Campbell, Alternate)
Mike Murray (Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)

Pascale Shaw (Kim Dumore, Alternate)

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 155



’) Public Board Meeting
/\ April 30, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Item #7
From: Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools

Topic: Superintendent’s Update

BACKGROUND:

The Superintendent will provide the Board with a verbal update. The update will include the
following topic(s):

o Artificial Intelligence: A Year of Learning

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT the Board receive the Superintendent’s Update, for information.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 156



’) Public Board Meeting
A April 30, 2025
School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item #8

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Question Period

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

Question period will be restricted to questions only - statements and debate will not be
permitted. Questions, with the exception of Trustee questions, will be limited to one question
per person. Members of the public can submit questions for the board by emailing them to
board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30pm on April 30, 2025. The email subject line should
read: QUESTION PERIOD. All questions received before the start of the question period will
be answered in the order they are received. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes;
extension is at the discretion of the board.

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 157


mailto:board@sd42.ca

School District 42 ™

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Topic: Public Board Record

RECORD

April 30, 2025
Information Memo
Item #9

Pursuant to provisions of 72 (1) of the School Act, the following report is a general statement
of: (a) matters discussed; and (b) the general nature of decisions resolved at the following
meetings from which persons other than Trustees or officers of the Board, or both were

excluded:

March 5, 2025 Closed

Territory Acknowledgement

Call to Order

Motion of Exclusion

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes

Superintendent of Schools Decision Item
Superintendent of Schools Information Items
Adjournment

Meeting called to order at 2:13pm
Approved

Approved as amended

Approved

Approved

Received

Meeting adjourned at 2:50pm

March 5, 2025 Special Closed

Call to Order

Motion of Exclusion

Approval of Agenda

Superintendent of Schools Decision Item
Adjournment

Meeting called to order at 5:28pm
Approved

Approved

Approved

Meeting adjourned at 5:35pm

2025-04-30 Public Agenda Package - Page 158



	Agenda Public
	ITEM 1 Opening Procedures
	ITEM 1 ATTACHMENT A April 16, 2025 Public Board Meeting Minutes
	ITEM 2 Presentation
	ITEM 3 Naming of Environmental School
	ITEM 3 ATTACHMENT Environmental School
	ITEM 4 2025-26 Preliminary Budget Changes and Annual Budget Bylaw
	ITEM 4 ATTACHMENT A 2025-26 Proposed Preliminary Budget
	ITEM 4 ATTACHMENT B 2025-26 Proposed Preliminary Budget Public Engagement Summary
	ITEM 4 ATTACHMENT C 2025-26 Annual Budget Bylaw
	ITEM 5 Chairperson's Update
	ITEM 6 Updated Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups April 2025
	ITEM 6 ATTACHMENT A Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups
	ITEM 7 Superintendent's Update
	ITEM 8 Question Period
	ITEM 9 Public Board Record



